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Financial Summary
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SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

i@ mimEl D 2 5 B

Revenue from external customers

REIBEFEZHWA
2019 2018
—B-hEF — N\
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong BB 38,583 36,916
Mainland China AR it 232,299 631,034
Total R 270,882 667,950
Revenue Shareholders’ funds
g RERESE
(HK$ million ¥ EET) (HK$ million BB &ET)
1,609 4 53y
668
570
811 687
271
o9 (284)
w
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(ié%i@i”) (&s5)) (&55)
Net asset value per share
(excluding non-controlling interests)
BREEFE(TEEFEHEER)
(HK cents 71l ) 230
20.9
1i4
(8.6)
2016 2018 2019
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Financial Summary
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total THAREBEEREERAR(TAAT]) MEKE
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGY! NE (G AER ) RBERAFEE=A=T—H
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries IFFEZREE  BBE Bz BRE - FER
(collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five HAa B E R o

years.

Financials (HK$ Million) B¥KIEE (B¥BET) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZB-NE T\ CZ—+& TR CT-If

(Restated) (Restated)

(fz=5)) (k=51)

Total assets HWEE 2,827 3,055 2,229 2,569 513
Total liabilities maf 1,296 1,447 1,542 1,758 727
Total equity BiER 1,531 1,609 687 811 (214)
Non-controlling interests FEHESI RS - - - - 70
Shareholders’ funds BRES 1,531 1,609 687 811 (284)
Share capital R

— in number (Million) —#E(BER) 7,328 6,944 5,318 4,936 3,305

- invalue -#E 73 69 53 49 33
Revenue WA 27 668 570 41 29
Loss attributable to ARRIEEA

the owners of the Company [EfhEE (213) (222) (441) (511) (r24)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) BREAR (B
Loss - Basic BE-ER (3.00) (3.79) (8.49) (11.54) (21.92)

- Diluted — % (3.00) (3.79) (8.49) (11.54) (21.92)

Dividends % & - - - - -
Net asset (iability) value (excluding BE(BE)FE

non-controling interests) (MEE R ER) 20.90 23.17 12.92 16.43 (8.6)
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Hang Seng Bank Limited
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22 Victoria Street

Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda
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AGENT IN BERMUDA

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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69 Pitts Bay Road
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Bermuda

(to be relocated to 4th Floor North, Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda with effect from 19 July 2019)

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG
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Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(to be relocated to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong with effect from 11 July 2019)

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 508

WEBSITE
http://www.dingyi.hk
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Chairman’s Statement

A

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seizing early opportunities, pursuing
excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead innovatively”,
over the years, we have been adhering to the industry intrinsic value
as the core of our investment philosophy. We believe all investment
values are built on the growth and success of business operation. We
applied the comprehensive investment evaluation and management
system to select and invest in those enterprises that have high
growth potential and solid business in their respective industry sector.
Meanwhile, we also worked closely with the management teams of
prominent enterprises, seeking mutual development to maximize our
own investment value through the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continue to move forward dependably in achieving
to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and become a
professional investment institute with international competitiveness
focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from our existing
securities trading, loan financing, financial leasing, properties
development and sale of food and beverages businesses, we
persevered unremittingly to make the best use of various resources and
channels to proactively seek significant opportunities that are suitable
for enterprise development, so as to achieve growth for the Group in
repaying the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for
their long-term support.

During the past year, the Company devoted much time to continue
exploring different investment opportunities proactively. In addition,
the management team visited different regions in the world to explore
and study other investment opportunities in resources and energy
projects, properties development, financial technology, pharmaceutical
and ocean industry. The Company is confident about the prospect of
such investment projects. We will notify our shareholders important
information whenever is available.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The loss of the Company during the year was mainly attributable to the
fair value loss of derivative financial assets on the issued convertible
bonds, the loss arising from the changes in fair value of financial assets
calculated according to the accounting standard and effective interest
expenses on convertible bonds. However, these accounting losses did
not have any effect on the cash flow of the Group. The Group’s annual
revenue was mainly contributed by sale of properties and loan financing
interest income.

In last year, the Group completed the acquisition of the 100% indirect
equity interest in Xintai Investment Company Limited* G/ L EZHKE
BBRAE]) (“Xintai”). Xintai is principally engaged in the development,
operation and investment of property. Xintai also holds One Parkview*
(ABE—3%), a complex land use development which is located
at Chikan District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the
“Properties”). Xintai holds the Existing Land Use Right Certificates (with
a total site area of approximately 106,492 square meters) in respect of
the Properties. The Properties comprises of three phases, (i) phase |
comprises of two blocks of residential buildings with a number of retail
shops, car parks and facilities; (i) phase Il comprises of four blocks
of residential buildings with a number of retail shops, car parks and
facilities; and (iii) phase Il comprises of ten blocks of residential buildings
with a number of retail shops, car parks and facilities. The Company
is very optimistic about the revenue and profit to be brought by the
property development industry in which it will engage in the PRC in
future.

* For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

BN

The Company has been included by Morgan Stanley Capital
International (“MSCI”) as a constituent of the MSCI Hong Kong Small
Cap Index with effect on 31 May 2017. The Company has also been
selected as a constituent stock of Hang Seng Global Composite
Index and Hang Seng Composite Index and its subdivisions of: Hang
Seng Composite SmallCap Index, Hang Seng Composite MidCap
& SmallCap Index and Hang Seng Composite Industry Index —
Financials, by the Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited, with effect
on 4 September 2017. The Company has further been selected as
a constituent stock of the following index series by the Hang Seng
Indexes Company Limited, with effect on 5 March 2018: Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong Index; Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong
Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index; Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong
Kong SmallCap Index; Hang Seng SCHK HK Companies Index; and
Hang Seng SCHK ex-AH Companies Index. The Hang Seng Stock
Connect Hong Kong Index serves as a benchmark to reflect the
overall performance of the securities listed in Hong Kong that are
eligible for trading via the southbound trading link of Stock Connect.
The Company’s inclusion in the market benchmark index and Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index represents capital market’s
recognition of the Company, and is expected to expand shareholder
base and trading liquidity of the Company, resulting in realization of
the value of investment in the Company and enhancement of the
Company’s reputation in the capital market.

In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in new energy, finance, ocean industry and
property development.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyil

Li Kwong Yuk
Chairman

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ARABCEERTIANEABE AR QA
(TMSCI])  AMSCIZ B/ NEL IR FE B DAL - 70
—EtFRAA=THAEM - ARRIEEELE
BARAPIERSEBERNGA BB NELFAER
REBTHEEGENBRIES - BEGREH/ A
BB REAFRAITRER - SREZKROE - ©
T FNAAWBAR - ARRDE-FEIEE
EHARARERANMEERIZK O R=F
—N\F=ARBARN : BEBRBER  BAER
R/ NUIRIERE ¢ BABRGR/NERIER BB
PoRP BRI AR RELBBUBIFAHERA
AR - BABRBREBAISRWERBETAE
REBERARZFEENEE LHEFBEBRRANE
12 ARBBSATISEEEH R EABRRER
B RREAMBEARA ZATE - KRR
ARBZBERERLIEMZ ZRBNE - EMERA
RAZKREBERESARAREEATIB ZMEA
o

EAK  AREREERRTESRARE  BNE
SWEFER  SRE TEEERNERNESE
B -

RI& - RABRUBE R AASERAFE ML
BEEHMZMAAL BEEXHAKEZK
R -ARAZEF(EE)  EZHBEBH BRET
FUAEBANMEERRE=RHET - BUARRUHH

=z
= o
T

RAED  BERE

T
FHIE



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in sale of food and beverages,
loan financing, financial leasing, securities trading and properties
development.

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations for the year
amounted to approximately HK$271 million or HK$397 million less than
that for the previous year. There was a loss for the year attributable
to the Company’s owners of approximately HK$213 million (2018:
HK$222 million) which included a fair value loss on derivative financial
assets amounted to approximately HK$107 million (2018: gain of
HK$90 million). There was no loss on early redemption of convertible
bonds (2018: approximately HK$35 million) and no fair value loss on
derivative financial liabilities (2018: approximately HK$97 million) during
the year.

The basic and diluted loss per share was HK3.00 cents, as compared
with loss per share of HK3.79 cents last year.

SECURITIES TRADING

During the year, the Group has been involved in the securities trading
business. The Group had realised loss on the disposal of these listed
securities investments amounting to approximately HK$7 million
(2018: HK$7 million) during the year. The Group recorded a loss
of approximately HK$50 million (2018: HK$30 million) arising from
changes in the fair value of the listed securities shares. As a result, the
Group reported a segment loss of approximately HK$56 million (2018:
HK$37 million) during the year. Going forward, the Group expects that
the future performance of the listed securities investments held by the
Group will be volatile and substantially affected by overall economic
environment, equity market conditions, investor sentiment and the
business performance and development of the investee companies.
The Board will closely monitor the performance progress of the
investment portfolio from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR W i B or H

As at 31 March 2019, there was no investment held by the Group which
value was more than 5% of the total assets of the Group.

LOAN FINANCING

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$160 million (2018: HK$88 million) from loan financing segment and
the segment profit was approximately HK$157 million (2018: HK$84
million). The Group will further develop this segment in order to earn a
higher interest income.

PROPERTIES DEVELOPMENT

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$108 million (2018: HK$572 million) and segment profit of
approximately HK$19 million (2018: HK$43 million). The decrease in
revenue was mainly because the number of residents units available
for sales was almost sold out during the year. The Group anticipates
further revenue and positive results from this segment in the future
upon completion of properties under development and the sales of
completed properties.

FINANCIAL LEASING

During the year, the Group did not record any revenue on financial
leasing. The Group will seek for more opportunities in this segment.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

The food and beverages segment generated a revenue of approximately
HK$3 million during the year (2018: HK$3 million). The segment
reported a loss of approximately HK$2 million (2018: HK$1 million). The
loss was contributed by the restaurant in Beijing, PRC.

TRADING OF WINE

The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks will be
offered to sell when the market prices are favorable such that the Group
can obtain a good return on the trading. At present, the stocks are kept
in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RIZE-NF=ZA=+—H FrEEREFFEIM
HEEBBASEREESNNERE -

EN@E

RAFER » AEBRERBE D EEBRALE
1.601EL(ZZE—/\F : BHE8,8008 L) MHia
NEHABEAB7ET(ZZE— \F : B8 4008
T0) o AEEBE—TERUESEUHRNESF B
L ONE

e

FA - AEBEREIBEFEHSIRALEE1.0818T
(ZZ—N\F B 72E7T) RO BRI BEHEE
1,900087L(ZZ— N\F : B¥4,30087T) ° Wk
LETERRAMEEENTEEEMEERERNLTE
HED - RTRERMEREECRIYEERNR
REE - AEBETERANRE —FREREZDEN
A K IE T SE4E -

BEME
RAERER - AR E Y W5 R A 7 E S E IR
A o REEBBRE SR EORE

i

2357
EHOBERFRNEERALNBEI0ET(=F
— )\ : BE300ETL) c XD HEERZEEAEY
B 2008 T (ZZ— \F  BE1008TT) ° %E
BRERP B REEE -

BEEH

AEEDRTF -EHEZELDE - ZFFEHRD
EBRFEL  UWSAKERERFER 2B HOR -
B ZEFEFERBEZIBE -



CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of issued shares of the Company
was 7,328,060,715 (31 March 2018: 7,002,772,481) of HK$0.01 each
(the “Shares”) and its issued share capital was HK$73,280,607 (31
March 2018: HK$70,027,725). During the year, the details of changes
of the capital structure of the Company were set out below:

(i) On 12 April 2018, the rights attaching to the convertible bonds to
subscribe 152,941,176 Shares at conversion price of HK$0.85
per conversion share were exercised and these 152,941,176
Shares were allotted and issued on 13 April 2018.

(i)  On 12 April 2018, a total of 2,375,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,375,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 20 April 2018.

(i) On 16 April 2018, a total of 6,325,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
6,325,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 20 April 2018.

(ivy  On 17 April 2018, a total of 1,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
1,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 20 April 2018.

(v)  On 29 October 2018, a total of 82,000,000 repurchased Shares
were cancelled.

(vi)  On 12 November 2018, a total of 2,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
2,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 27 November
2018.

(vi)  On 13 March 2019, the rights attaching to the convertible bonds
to subscribe 242,647,058 Shares at conversion price of HK$0.85
per conversion share were exercised and these 242,647,058
Shares were allotted and issued on 21 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year under review.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR W i B or H

OUTSTANDING CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has outstanding convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,410,750,000 (the
“Outstanding Convertible Bonds”), among which principal amount
of HK$1,000,000,000 has the conversion price of HK$0.80 per share
and principal amount of HK$410,750,000 has the conversion price of
HK$0.85 per share. The number of shares that would be issued upon
full conversion of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds is 1,733,235,294
shares (representing approximately 23.65% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2019 and approximately 19.13% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by such outstanding
conversion shares).

Assuming that the Outstanding Convertible Bonds were converted in
full as at 31 March 2019, the respective shareholdings of the substantial
shareholders of the Company would have been changed as follows:

Before conversion of Outstanding

Convertible Bonds

e ARAT 2 AT IR R S R AT

% of total issued

Name of Substantial Number of shares

M AT TR AT AR B 25
RZE-NF=ZA=+—H ' AQFEHEEL
B A& 78 #1,410,750,0007T 2 7] 2 B% & 5 i R
TEERTETERES ) HHEEEE
1,000,000,000 JT A 8 (8 & & AR ¥ 0.80 TT A &
E{EB 1 410,750,000 TTH A (E A IRE R 0.85
TC o BHEREARITE A RKRESFHEIT /G
£1,733,285 294 ({h R A BN = —NF= A
=+ —HZBEBITIRHD%23.65% REHRE T
BB IBEA 2 AN ARIEBEITIRAL 19.13%) ©

B RITE AR ISR =B NEF=A=+—
REENES - AXTEERTAE A2 HRERY
BT

Immediately after conversion of
Outstanding Convertible Bonds
EEEATETRRESERE

Number of shares % of total issued

shareholders held shares held shares
FTERRHES BB BERGOEE HEBTRET % BFERGOEE HEBTRT %
Mr. LI Kwong Yuk (note)

e oA (MTsE) 3,847,675,405 52.51% 5,097,675,405 56.26%
China Shipbuilding Capital Limited

FEMMERBRAF 908,685,000 12.40% 908,685,000 10.03%
Total issued shares

BRITRM 7,328,060,715 9,061,296,009

Note: including shares held by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk and WCIL and WAML which are Mzt BEFAEBEEBAFEORGEEFLELERE

wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li.

The dilutive impact on the loss per share of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 is not applicable as conversion of the Outstanding
Convertible Bonds (if any) would have resulted in decrease in loss per
share.

It is expected that the financial and liquidity position of the Company
as at 31 March 2019 or afterwards would not be materially affected by
the redemption of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds (if any), as the
redemption will only take place with the Company’s consent according
to the terms of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds.
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CANCELLATION OF REPURCHASED SHARES

On 29 October 2018, a total of 82,000,000 repurchased Shares were
cancelled.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

1)

On 11 April 2019, the Company granted 716,300,000 share
options to eligible participants of the Group. Among these
share options granted, the share options in respect of a total of
107,000,000 were granted to the directors.

On 23 April 2019, R{ELE ORI IREERBER AT (Dingyi
Jinhui (Shenzhen) Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd*) (“Jinhui”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a non-legally binding framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement I”) with FINHFEREBREF A A (Shenzhen
Weiyan Technology Co., Ltd*) (“Weiyan”) in relation to a strategic
cooperation to be implemented through a series of transactions,
including Jinhui’s proposed strategic investment in, and joint
venture with, Weiyan as further detailed below.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement |, Jinhui will (1) subscribe
an aggregate of 8.99% of the enlarged share capital of Weiyan
with an aggregate subscription price of RMB78,000,000 in
phases (“Strategic Investment”); and (2) establish a joint venture
entity (“Joint Venture Entity I”) with Weiyan in connection with
the provision of innovative technology-oriented retail finance
solutions to clients in the PRC upon completion of the Strategic
Investment. The Joint Venture Entity | will be owned as to 60%
by Weiyan and 40% by Jinhui (or its designated affiliate). In
addition, it has been agreed that upon completion of the Strategic
Investment, Weiyan will also grant an option to Jinhui to subscribe
for additional new shares of Weiyan which represents 10.0%
of the enlarged share capital of Weiyan upon completion of the
Strategic Investment at a price of RMB88,000,000. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 April
2019.

On 283 May 2019, the rights attaching to the convertible bonds to
subscribe 25,000,000 Shares at conversion price of HK$0.80 per
conversion share were converted and these 25,000,000 Shares
were allotted and issued on 29 May 2019.

On 28 May 2019 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the non-legally binding framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement II”) with 1814 8EIRIZERR (36 ) AR A A (China
United Energy Holding Co., Ltd.”) (“CHUEH”) and Stillwater

*  For identification purpose only
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Investment Limited (“Stillwater”, together with the Company
and CHUEH, collectively, the “dV Parties”) in relation to the
proposed establishment of the joint venture company (“Joint
Venture Entity II”) between the Company, CHUEH and Stillwater
for the exploration and development of certain oil and gas assets
in the Republic of Niger. Pursuant to the Framework Agreement
I, the JV Parties will commence strategic cooperation through
the establishment of the Joint Venture Entity Il in relation to the
exploration and development of oil and gas assets in the blocks
R5, R6 and R7 located in the Termit Basin in the Republic of
Niger. The Joint Venture Entity Il will be owned as to 65% by
the Company, 20% by Stillwater and 15% by CHUEH (or their
respective designated affiliate(s)). For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 May 2019.

On 30 May 2019, Golden Season International Limited (“Golden
Season”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a subscription agreement with Kore Potash Plc
(“Kore”), pursuant to which Golden Season agrees to subscribe
and Kore agrees to issue a certain number of ordinary shares
in Kore for a consideration of USD2.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$19.6 million). Further information about Kore
is disclosed in the sub-section headed “Financial Assets at Fair
Value Through Profits or Loss” on page 23 of this annual report.

Subsequent change in fair value of the equity securities listed in
Hong Kong, Australia and the PRC

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there was a
significant decline in the fair value of the equity securities listed
in Hong Kong, Australia and the PRC. The total unrealised
loss arising from changes in fair value is approximately
HK$10,000,000 at report date.

USE OF PROCEEDS

M

A placing was completed on 16 January 2018 and an aggregate
of 600,000,000 placing shares were successfully placed to not
less than six independent placees. The net proceeds from the
placing was approximately HK$264 million (representing a net
issue price of approximately HK$0.440 per placing share).

As at the date of the annual report for the year ended 31 March
2018, the net proceeds from the placing had been fully utilised,
of which approximately HK$232 million was utilised for short
term loans financing business; approximately HK$13 million was
utilized for redemption of convertible bonds; and approximately
HK$19 million was used for general working capital of the Group,
according to the purposes of the placing.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

AT

M

NE M HMNEBARERIERSEBIEEH )
J#ﬂ/iéi’ﬁim%[ 217 (MR =
) RABBEEARE - @A ERIZER
&Stiuwater?ﬁﬁﬂ%&ﬁ%)ﬁaﬁﬁ FEE

FhHREEMNERNLAENR([GEEHE
) - RIBERBEN A2 BB BKT
AEERIHERAZMNE BB LR
TermitZ i R5 + R6 R R7 & E 8 m R EEFE
BRI AE - AL EERIBHARNF - Stilwater
wwn B & R (S S5 8 2 B

NSIDE E'%ﬁﬁ%% 20% M 15% ° FIEm 2
BMARBHBA—ZE-—NFRA=-TNBZ
NG

RZE—NAFRAZ1+H ARAHEELE
WEARSEHERERAR ([£F])HKore
AV RERE - Bt - @R EREMKore
Potash PIC(fKoreJ) RAEETAETHEZ
KoreZ W% - KRB AE250 8= T(HERY

7B 1,060 & 70) - BEE— S ERNARFER
%QSE [REZFREAAEREY SRVEE]

DEIHEE o

RES BNEFBE LM ZBRAESAARE

2 EizEE)

Rk iﬁﬂﬂﬂé RES  BNEFE EmZ

§$ A RARBEHBEABTE - RFER -
NEEBFEA  RERBEEBREBHAES

’% 10,000,000TE °

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ

BER-_ZE—NF—A+SHEHRLEHX
600,000,000&@8%&1%65&%@E%%K?
RANBEIARA - BEMERIBEFROA
B2 64 BT (MEERFRITESRIEER D
#)7EH50.4407T) °

RBE-_ZT-N\F=ZA=+—BLFEZF
HEH  REMSHIEFECBRELENE
WA - EhE%232ETE AN
HEFREXY K8 1,3008 TE ARE
Bl ES - MAEE1,9008 T E AIEAR
EEN—REEESD -



(i) Aplacing was completed on 21 February 2018 and an aggregate
of 472,000,000 placing shares were successfully placed to not
less than six independent placees. The net proceeds from the
placing was approximately HK$323 million (representing a net
issue price of approximately HK$0.685 per placing share).

As at the date of the annual report for the year ended 31 March
2018, the net proceeds from the placing had been fully utilised,
of which approximately HK$219 million was utilized for short
term loans financing business, (i) approximately HK$100 million
for redemption of convertible bonds and (iii) approximately HK$4
million for general working capital for the Group, according to the
purposes of the placing.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

The Company has been selected as a constituent stock of Hang Seng
Global Composite Index and Hang Seng Composite Index and its
subdivisions of: Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index, Hang Seng
Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index and Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index — Financials, by the Hang Seng Indexes Company
Limited, since 4 September 2017. The Company has further been
selected as a constituent stock of the following index series by the Hang
Seng Indexes Company Limited, with effect from 5 March 2018: Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index; Hang Seng Stock Connect
Hong Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index; Hang Seng Stock Connect
Hong Kong SmallCap Index; Hang Seng SCHK HK Companies Index;
and Hang Seng SCHK ex-AH Companies Index. The Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong Index serves as a benchmark to reflect
the overall performance of the securities listed in Hong Kong that are
eligible for trading via the southbound trading link of Stock Connect.
The Company’s inclusion in the market benchmark index and Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index represents capital market’s
recognition of the Company, and is expected to expand shareholder
base and trading liquidity of the Company, resulting in realization of
the value of investment in the Company and enhancement of the
Company’s reputation in the capital market.

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, food and
beverages, wine trading, loan financing, properties development and
financial leasing, the Group will continue to explore other potential
investment opportunities with reasonable returns that meet the
Company’s criteria. This will not only strengthen our core business but
also increase the shareholders’ values. The Group has been exploring
some investment opportunities in resources and energy projects,
properties development, financial technology, pharmaceutical and
ocean industry.
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Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LI KWONG YUK (“MR. LI”)

Mr. Li, aged 57, joined the Company as executive Director and
chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also the
chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is a
businessman with over 12 years’ investment experience in the highway
industry in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He studied at
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade from 1978 to 1981. Mr. Li had
worked on various investment projects in areas such as infrastructure
and finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has 50% shareholding in
Wincon International Limited (“Wincon International”), a company
set up by Mr. Li and incorporated in Hong Kong, which is principally
engaged in investment business in highways in the PRC. He is a sole
director and the beneficial owner of Wincon Capital Investment Limited,
the controlling Shareholder, and also directors of various companies
including Wincon International, Wincon Asset Management Limited,
Dingyi Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi Venture Capital (HK)
Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited, EMNIREE SR A AR
A 7] (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation) and R R EEBIEERR AR (Shenzhen
Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English
translation).
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MR. SU XIAONONG (“MR. SU”)

Mr. Su, aged 55, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) on
27 October 2011. He is also a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Su graduated from East China College of Political
Science and Law in 1986. He has been director or management of
various venture capital, private equity and investment consultancy
companies in the PRC, including worked at ;&I B EEIEH
FR 28] (Shenzhen Gofar Investment Management Co., Ltd., being its
unofficial English translation) from April 2003 to November 2007. Mr.
Su currently works at JRJIT B S I EER AR AT (Shenzhen
Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English
translation) and &Y R EEBIREBR A F (Shenzhen Dingyi
Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English translation).
He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen Dingyi Venture
Capital L.P..

MR. ZHENG XIANTAO (“MR. ZHENG”)

Mr. Zheng, aged 48, joined the Company as executive Director on 21
February 2017. Mr. Zheng served as the vice general manager of it
RENB BRI AR AR (Beijing Union Power Technology Limited
Company*) from March 2003 to November 2012, in which he was
mainly responsible for the business of the Company in relation to sales
and mergers and acquisitions. During his tenure with 1t 588 #1= B 5 1i
BBRAT] (Beijing Yin Wan Information Technology Limited Company*)
from 2013 to 2015, Mr. Zheng served as the vice president and was
responsible for internet finance related business. Mr. Zheng was an
executive director of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited
(“China Ruifeng”) (stock code: 527) from July 2015 to June 2016, a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Following of his resignation as
an executive director of China Ruifeng and until December 2016, he
was a senior consultant of China Ruifeng and provided consultation
services for the new energy business and financing of China Ruifeng.
Mr. Zheng has years of experience in doing mergers and acquisitions
in capital markets and in dealing with various types of financial
instruments.

* For identification purpose only

Management Profile

B fE g

FEREE(E#ELD

BRAEE 55 RZE——FTAZTHHEMA
RRABHEEARRR Z NI TESFRITBARE ([1THE
R -EBNHAARRAFTHEZES(FHEES))
ZRERZHEMBARIZES - HEEN—N/US
FREFBUEZMEE - F—HETTREZHERR
B AERERREER AT 2 EENEREH
% HPeER - EE=FMAE _TT+F+—
AERAEBARYMEBEREETEBRAR © 3L
ERERBRFRITHE S EREBRER QG KR
MR EEBRERERRAA - BIFARYTHREE
TEERHE (BRER) 2EB ARRBH -

s A ([EEE D)

BS54 485 MZZE—tF_A=Z+—HMA
ARARIHERITES - BEER_ZTZT=F=HF
R F+ - AR ENBERERER A RE
FRBEE  BHFEEBEMSITHARKHZE
o BEER - E—=—FE_T—AFHEILRERE
SERMARAREIREE  BETHASE
BT - BEE TR _E—RF+ AT -E—RF
N A BB R EGRFERIER AR AR ([HE
wWE]) (RO 527) 2T EZ (A— MRS
BEEXZMERAR([HRXADERLET2ZA
A BREAREIRRANTESERE T —RF
TZAEFATEBRRAER - R BIRRIEEIR
XBRBERMEREENSIRE - BAERERT
GRERSEcHRIAEE N EARLYELR -

Y EHES)

S AR R AT PR A WD
SR JURER

17



18

Management Profile

BB B g

DR. WANG ZHI (“DR. WANG”)

Dr. Wang, aged 40, joined the Company as executive Director on 12
April 2018. Dr. Wang graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University with
bachelor’s degrees in engineering and science, a master’s degree in
software engineering and a doctoral degree in engineering. From 2003
to 2004, Dr. Wang served as the chief technical officer of the Beijing
branch of Beiling Snsoft Technology Co., Ltd. (It REt KR A
[R 2 7]). From 2005 to present, Dr. Wang has served as the technical
director of Xi’an Hanyang Technology Company Limited (Fa% k5
B AR A E]). Dr. Wang has in-depth knowledge in the relevant
markets and possesses exceptional analytical capabilities. He has been
engaged in construction of computer software systems and analysis
and design of internet software platforms. He has extensive experience
in system construction, information consultation and corporate
operation. In respect of scientific research, Dr. Wang successively
organized and completed various national scientific research projects
as a main technical officer including “Digital City” (1L ) and
“Support Platform for Contemporary Service Industry” (T [m135 8 AR 75 2
XEFR).

MR. LI ZHONGXIA (“MR. LI”)

Mr. Li, aged 34, joined the Company as a senior investment manager
on 3 November 2014 and appointed as executive Director on 12 April
2018. Mr. Li has over 9 years of experience in the corporate finance
and investment industry. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Economics and Management from University of Oxford, and a Master
of Science Degree in Finance from London School of Economics and
Political Science. He worked at the corporate finance department in
ICBC International Capital Limited and Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
He also worked at client solutions department in Sun Hung Kai Financial
Limited before joining the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. CHOW SHIU KI (“MR. CHOW?”)

Mr. Chow, aged 51, joined the Company as independent non-
executive Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of
working experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance
areas. He holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr.
Chow is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has worked for various private and
listed companies at senior management level. He is currently serving in
a senior management role in a consultancy services company and an
independent non-executive director of China Assurance Finance Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090).

MR. CAO KUANGYU (“MR. CAO”)

Mr. Cao, aged 69, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking and
finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch for the
period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position was the
deputy president of the branch. For the period from February 1996 to
September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager of Bank
of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September 1999 to
September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank, Shenzhen
branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the investment
banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003 to
September 2007. Mr. Cao was an independent non-executive director
of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (stock code: 1303) from December
2011 to September 2017, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive director of New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 472), Dongwu Cement
International Limited (stock code: 695) and Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 758), all of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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MR. IP CHI WAI (“MR. IP”)

Mr. Ip, aged 51, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession. Mr.
Ip is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292) and Wealthy Way Group Limited
(stock code: 3848), both of which are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of China Bio Cassava Holdings Limited (stock code: 8129) from
September 2000 to November 2013, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. JI1 JIAQI (“MR. JI”)

Mr. Ji, aged 52, joined the Company as executive president on 20
February 2017. Mr. Ji has over 20 years of experience in scientific
research and practical work on risk control and investment operation
in financial market. Mr. Ji holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from
South China Normal University, a Postgraduate Degree in Economics
from the Communist Party School in Guangdong and a Doctoral
Degree in Finance from College of Economics of Jinan University.
He has published numerous articles in major periodicals relating to
financial and public management sectors. He once worked in provincial
governments, universities, and engaged in the bankruptcy works of
(BEERBIBEZ7EI%E A7) Guangdong International Trust Investment
Corporation* and reorganization of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
He is currently an adjunct professor of Tsinghua University and Jinan
University respectively, and also a distinguished visiting professor of
Central University of Finance and Economics.

*  For identification purpose only
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MS. KUANG YATING (“MS. KUANG”)

Ms. Kuang, aged 29, joined the Company as an investment analyst on
3 January 2017. Ms. Kuang has 5 years of experience in data analysis,
corporate finance and investment management. Ms. Kuang holds a
Dual Bachelor’s Degree in Management and Law from Jinan University,
a Master’s Degree in Finance from University of Bath, England. She was
granted the international mathematical modelling award. She obtained
the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and Financial Risk Manager (FRM)
Licenses and is a member of the HK Society of Financial Analysts.
She worked at the group business unit of China Construction Bank
Corporation, specializing in constructing performance models for banks
and provision of investment and financing proposals for clients.
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue decreased from approximately HK$668 million
in 2018 to approximately HK$271 million in 2019, mainly of because a
decrease of revenue in properties development segment. The decrease
was due to the number of residents units available for sales was almost
sold out during the year.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$77 million, or 52.5%,
from approximately HK$147 million in 2018 to approximately HK$224
million in 2019. The gross profit margin increased from approximately
22.0% in 2018 to approximately 82.8% in 2019. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in the revenue from loan financing segment
which earned a higher gross profit margin.

OTHER INCOME

Other income decreased to approximately HK$2 million (2018: HK$55
million) this year mainly due to no exchange gain (2018: approximately
HK$45 million) and no consulting service income (2018: approximately
HK$8 million) recognised during the year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS AND
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs maintained at approximately HK$5 million.
General and administrative expenses decreased to approximately
HK$78 million (2018: HK$210 million) mainly due to no one-off share-
based payment expenses in 2019 (2018: approximately HK$118
million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment decreased to approximately HK$22
million this year (2018: HK$30 million).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities investments in Hong Kong and PRC significantly
decreased from approximately HK$63 million to HK$15 million this
year because of the decrease in the portfolio of the listed securities
investments in the securities trading business.

Listed securities investments in Australia decreased from approximately
HK$66 million to HK$21 million this year because of the fair value loss.

Kore is a mineral exploration and development company listed on the
London Stock Exchange AIM platform, the Australian Stock Exchange,
and Johannesburg Stock Exchange. It is currently developing the
Sintoukola potash project located in the Republic of Congo.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group holds an aggregate of 75,285,511
shares of Kore, representing approximately 8.75% of the entire issued
share capital of Kore.

On 30 May 2019, Golden Season entered into a subscription agreement
with Kore, pursuant to which Golden Season agrees to subscribe and
Kore agrees to issue certain number of ordinary shares in Kore for a
consideration of USD2.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.6
million).

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances decreased from approximately HK$283 million
in last year to approximately HK$30 million this year mainly due to the
increase in cash used in loan financing business.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net assets attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$1,531 million (2018:
HK$1,609 million), a decrease of approximately HK$78 million when
compared with that of 2018.

As at 31 March 2019, total debt to equity ratio was 0.71 (2018:
0.78) and net debt to equity ratio was 0.69 (2018: 0.60), which
were expressed as a percentage of total convertible bonds and total
convertible bonds less cash and cash equivalents respectively, over
the total equity of approximately HK$1,531 million (2018: HK$1,609
million).
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BORROWINGS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has no bank borrowings and finance
lease obligations.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any charge on assets. As
at 31 March 2018, the margin loans payable was secured by the listed
equity securities placed with a financial institution held under the margin
accounts with market value of approximately HK$110,612,000.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), United States dollars (“USD”) and
Australian dollars (“AUD”). Considering the exchange rates between
these currencies are relatively stable, the Group believed that the
corresponding exposure to RMB, USD and AUD exchange rates
fluctuation were relatively limited. The Group does not undertake any
derivative financial instruments or hedging instruments. The Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its foreign currency risk
profile, and continues to actively monitor foreign exchange exposure to
minimize the impact of any adverse currency movement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$4,921,000 (2018: HK$7,284,000).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimize the cost of
funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralized. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in HKD, USD, RMB
or AUD. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments, the Group will consider new
financing channels while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2019 except
for the deviation disclosed below:

Code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to all Directors to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31 March 2019, certain
regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to
facilitate the Directors’ timely reaction and expeditious decision making
process in respect of internal affairs of the Group. All Board meetings,
nevertheless, were duly convened and held in the way prescribed by the
Bye-laws of the Company. The Board will use reasonable endeavour to
meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in future.
Adequate and appropriate information are circulated normally three
days in advance of Board meetings to the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”) for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board has delegated
the power to oversee the daily operational matters of the Group to the
management of the Company under the supervision of the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against the Directors and senior management of the Group
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises the following Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zheng Xiantao

Dr. Wang Zhi (appointed on 12 April 2018)
Mr. Li Zhongxia (appointed on 12 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

The biographical details of each current Director are set out in the
“Management Profile” in this annual report. Their roles and functions are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors also generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows independent and objective decision making process
for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review the
composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses the
appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet the
needs of the business development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the confirmation,
the Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all
other material matters. The Board held 4 regular meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2019. Individual attendance records of each
Director at the regular Board meetings are set out in the table on page
36 of this annual report. Sufficient notice with agenda and the relevant
information of the Board meetings were given to all Directors (except
that certain regular Board meetings were convened with less than
14 days’ notice). Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee were drafted by the Company Secretary and the final
version of the minutes of the said meetings were sent to all Directors
for comments and records. The signed minutes of the said meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matters will be dealt with by a Board
meeting rather than written resolutions and the Board will ensure that an
adequate number of Independent Non-executive Directors are involved
in the consideration of the relevant matters. Independent Non-executive
Directors are encouraged to take an active role in the Board meetings.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD
MEMBERS

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the newly appointed Directors
were given an induction after their appointment so as to ensure that
they had appropriate understanding of the Group’s business and of
their duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business performance of the Group to the Directors. The
Directors are continually updated on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional AAFBEHEZDHBEIERRE ([FEEE£R
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”) to Bl UBENEAREZ M MG - RIBEAR
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. According to the ARz BEEREE_T—NF=-H=1T—
records maintained by the Company, the training that the Directors AIEFEESZHEIRmmT -

received for the year ended 31 March 2019 is summarized below:
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Name by professional body Reading materials
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Su
Xiaonong is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In
accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and
performed by different persons.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for overseeing the functions
of the Board and providing leadership for the Board while the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for managing the businesses of the
Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). Under Bye-law 112.(A), at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Every Director shall retire from office no later than the third
AGM since the last re-election or appointment of such Director.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board with
reference to the Remuneration Committee’s recommendation as well
as the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively referred to as
the “Board Committee”) in order to maintain high level of corporate
governance standard of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai. The chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and provide supervision over the financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group and to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts and the interim
report and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee met twice
with the auditors of the Company (the “Auditor”). Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in the “Terms of
Reference of Audit Committee” which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee reviewed
annual audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 September 2018 with recommendations to
the Board for approval; made recommendations to the Board regarding
the re-appointment of the Auditor and approved the Auditor’s fees; and
proposed the adoption of the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee in compliance with the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2019. Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 36 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprised three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai, and
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Su Xiaonong.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are,
including but not limited to, to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and to establish a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in the “Terms of Reference of Remuneration Committee” which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management, the proposed remuneration of the newly appointed
Executive Directors and senior management and proposed adoption of
the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND
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The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended REBE-Z-NE=A=1t—"HBILFERXN  FNEZ
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annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and
Mr. Ip Chi Wai.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
including but not limited to, to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of
service and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in the
“Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee” which are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

The Board also adopted a Directors’ nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) on 29 March 2019 to formally set out the criteria
and nomination procedures on the appointment of Directors and
succession planning of Directors. According to the Nomination Policy,
the ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors
rests with the entire Board or the shareholders in general meeting,
as the case may be. The Board has delegated the relevant screening
and evaluation process to the Nomination Committee, which identifies
suitably qualified candidates and recommends them to the Board. In
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate, the Nomination
Committee takes into consideration the candidate’s character, integrity,
competence, skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the Group’s
principal business, devoting sufficient time and attention to the Board,
fulfilment of the independence requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules (for Independent Non-executive Directors) and diversity on
the Board. After reaching its decision, the Nomination Committee
nominates relevant Director candidates to the Board for approval and
for consideration and recommendation in respect of re-appointment
of any existing director(s) of the Board, for the proposed candidate to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Board will have the final
decision relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-
election as Directors at general meetings.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors,
recommended to the Board on the nomination of retiring Directors for
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company, identified
individuals suitably qualified to become Executive Directors and
recommended to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for Executive Directors; and reviewed and recommended to the Board
the adoption of the Nomination Policy, the revised Board Diversity Policy
and the revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in
compliance with the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during the year ended
31 March 2019. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 36 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the fees paid/payable to the
Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor were as
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follows:
Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)
PREME SE(E%TR)
Audit services - SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited BRHMRS —fEKRM(EE) et EBRER AR 1,800
Non-audit services — SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited EERE —fEkRM(BE) e MEBRERAR 430
Internal audit review — SHINEWING Risk Services Limited NBEFEH —ERIREREEERAF 190

and ESG report BIRIE

drafting HekEn

wEER
Tax advisory services - SHINEWING Tax and Business WBERRE SRR NREREEEAERAA 66
Advisory Limited
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BERZEERE 7 HEEE

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the individual attendance record REBE-Z-—NFZA=+—HIFERN RE=

of the Directors for the regular Board meetings, the Board Committee RN THEEgesn =2L8828% N2

meetings, the AGM held on 6 September 2018 is set out below: —N\FNAARBREITZRFEAFRg 2EREFRE
FEFAT -

Attended/Eligible to attend

BHR/RERLRE
Regular Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
EH ENZES FHzES ReZEE
#E Ezeed S R g2 RREFAE
Executive Directors
YrEs
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 3/4 N/A N/A 1 il
TRERE TER TER
Mr. Su Xiaonong 4/4 N/A 2/2 N/A il
BERLL Qcliil TER
Mr. Zheng Xiantao 0/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
BrErs TEA Gyl TER
Mr. Wang Zhi (appointed on 12 April 2018) 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
THEET(R_E-N\FNAT_ARZE) TEm TER TR
Mr. Li Zhongxia (appointed on 12 April 2018) 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
ZRELE (M- \FNAT-BEZE) TaR TR Tam
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 4/4 2/2 2/2 1 11
AERRE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu 3/4 2/2 1/2 N/A 0N
ERFEE TER
Mr. Ip Chi Wai 3/4 2/2 212 il i
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DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITOR’S STATEMENT

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has complied
with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. Management
is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate
the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2019, no significant risk
was identified.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follow:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the
Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

o The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external parties
such as the media, analysts or investors.

U Refer to inside information policy and procedures for more
procedures.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2019, no significant
control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the Board
via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but not limited
o (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience of
relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget
provided were sufficient.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”)
as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013 from an external
secretarial services provider. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Mr. Li Zhongxia who was appointed as an Executive
Director on 12 April 2018. In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rule, Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of the
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

RIGHTS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders may convene special general meeting (the “SGM”) of the
Company according to the Bye-Laws and the provisions as set out in
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Act”). The Board shall, on the requisition of Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly,
to convene the SGM. The requisition must state the purposes of the
SGM, and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708,
27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, and may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Act, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS TO THE BOARD

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.hk or by mail to the principle place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention
Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. All the
enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders are also
encouraged to attend the AGM and the SGM and to put their enquiries
to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated to the Shareholders
in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM
and the SGM. The Chairman, chairmen of each of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, the
senior management and the Auditor will attend the AGM and respond to
the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and the
SGM orally at the beginning of the aforesaid meetings.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

M

(i)

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either any
number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates or not less than 100 Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next AGM of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at www.dingyi.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
March 2019.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company considers it appropriate to
align the dividend payments with profit and ensure that it is able to pay
dividend on a sustainable and affordable basis. The Company may
declare dividend in any financial year after taking into consideration
the Company’s financial position, liquidity and cash flow, capital
requirement for future growth, economic conditions and any other
factors to be considered by the Directors. The Company will declare
dividend out of retained profit under certain circumstances, and
therefore there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any given year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Corporate Governance Report
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report issued
by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or
“We”) elaborates on the concept of sustainable development and the
fulfillment of corporate social responsibility of the Group. The ESG
Report provides a detailed description on the various works of the
Group in adherence to the principle of sustainable development and the
ESG performance of the Group during the period from 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2019 (the “Year”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social performance
of the core business of the Group in Hong Kong during the Year and
the disclosure of relevant key performance indicators. For detailed
information on corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 25 to 43 of this annual report.

REPORTING STANDARD

The ESG Report has been prepared based on “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The preparation of the ESG Report, which was supported by the
staff from different departments, has enabled us to have a clearer
understanding of our development in environmental and social areas.
The information we gathered is not only a summary of the environmental
and social related works carried out by the Group during the Year, but
also the basis for us to map out our sustainable development strategies.

During the preparation process of the ESG Report for the Year, the
Group has engaged an independent third-party consultant to assist
us in collection of opinions on ESG issues from internal stakeholders.
The collected opinions not only can help the Group to improve the
focus of the content of the ESG Report, but can also act as references
for strengthening the internal management. The Group will consider
enhancing the level of participation of the stakeholders in the future to
collect the valuable opinions and advice on the business of the Group
more comprehensively.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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At the same time, the Group believes that the opinions from our

stakeholders have significant value in improving the ESG performances.

Therefore, we are committed to effective communication with different

stakeholders through a variety of communication channels to listen and

respond to the expectations and requirements of the stakeholders.

Stakeholders
BihE

Expectations and Requirements
HASEEER

BREL - dha R RERh

B AR - ARBRERNDENERHIEIFESGH
HHRRBEEAEE - Bt - RIOBNDBERZEE
BRERTARNEETERER  REBL DR
NENHBEES -

Means of Communication and Response

BREDESRN

Government and
Regulatory Authorities

BUFEREEE S

Shareholders

BRER

Partners

BIERBMH

Customers

'FE

Environment
RIB

Employees
BT

Compliance with national

policies and laws and regulations

BTBRRBRPOERER
Income and returns

e Bl

Compliant operation
AREE

Increase in corporate value
’RARENEE

Information transparency and
effective communication
BBEARBRER
Operation with integrity
AR Sy

Performance of contracts
HEBL

Mutual benefits

BRHE

Quallity products and services
B A m E R
Performance of contracts
HOERR

Operation with integrity
BRI

Energy saving and emission
reduction

BRRERE

Protection of rights

R EE

Remunerations and benefits
HritE T

Humanity cares

AX R

° Inspection and supervision
. BEREE

o General meeting

s EKREARE®

° Announcements

e R

o Dedicated reports
e  HEER

° Review and appraisal meetings
e  EEHHILE
o Business communication

e  HEKER
o Engagement and cooperation
. hMAfE

° Customer service center and hotlines

o EPRBH LML

° Research and inspection

o P E
° Employee communication meetings
e EBIE@g
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Stakeholders Expectations and Requirements Means of Communication and Response
BHE HAEEER BEEEELR
Community and the Public o Participation in charity o Company’s website
HERAR o  RHENWEBHE o DAL
° Information transparency o Announcements

o« EMAHEH
INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For detailed information regarding the environmental, social and
corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the official website
(http://www.dingyi.hk) and the annual report of the Group. Should you
have any opinions or suggestions on this report, please email to the
following mailbox: info@dingyi.hk.

BOARD ENGAGEMENT

Quality ESG governance is inextricably linked to sustainable
development of business. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Group assumes the ESG management responsibility of the Group
and is responsible for monitoring the formulation and report of the
ESG policy and identifying and controlling the risks related to ESG
to ensure appropriate ESG governance policies are formulated. The
Board delegates ESG management and implementation powers to the
management of each department, and the management will implement
the ESG policies and measures established.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
ENERGY MANAGEMENT

The Group is actively committed to promoting environmental protection.
As an environmentally friendly corporation, the Group incorporates the
core value of sustainable development into daily operation. In order to
reduce the power consumption of the lighting system, apart from using
reflectors for focusing the light on those areas where lighting is needed,
we also adopt a highly energy-efficient lighting system, clean lighting
facility regularly, and employ a sectional lighting system. We clean air
conditioner filters regularly and check the air conditioning facility to
minimize the possibility of refrigerant leakage, and thereby improve the
energy efficiency of the air conditioning system. We set the temperature
of air conditioning system at 25.5 degrees Celsius or above, and
adopt low-emissivity glass to block ultraviolet, which in turn reduces
the power consumption of the air conditioning system. We encourage
employees to switch off unnecessary air conditioning facility, lights and
other electronic equipment, and prepare monthly electricity statistics to

monitor the power consumption.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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GREEN OPERATION

The Group believes that the establishment of green office culture is the
first step of the implementation of sustainable development. The Group
continues to strictly comply with the laws and regulations related to
emission. As a service-based enterprise, our business operation mainly
takes place in offices. The main source of wastewater of the Group is
domestic wastewater, which the sewage generated will be discharged
into the municipal drainage system for treatment. As we operates in
rented offices, the water consumption and water drainage were fully
controlled by the management company of the building, therefore the
data related to water usage cannot be collected. The Group adopts
a range of measures to conserve water and reduce wastage, such as
reducing water pressure to a feasible minimum level, installing water-
saving faucets and urinals, displaying water-conservation slogans in
toilets and inspecting water pipes regularly to prevent water leakage.
In addition, the business of the Group does not involve the use of
packaging materials. Since the Group’s business does not involve any
industrial production activities, vehicle exhaust is the main source of
our exhaust emission. We regularly check and maintain our vehicles,
and require our drivers to switch off idling engines, so as to reduce air
pollution generated from the idling of motor vehicle engines. During
the Year, the Group reduced the use of vehicles, thereby attaining
significant achievements in terms of reducing vehicle exhaust and
pollutants emissions, greenhouse gas emissions as well as energy
consumption.

In view of the potential threats of climate change on community,
the Group has implemented various measures to reduce carbon
emission in its operations gradually. With regard to transportation,
apart from encouraging employees to take public transport, we also
adopt conference calls and video conferences to replace unnecessary
overseas business travel. Furthermore, we promote and introduce
measures on lowering carbon emission to our employees through
different channels, such as emails and posters, so as to increase their
environmental protection awareness and hence to create a green office
culture.
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations related to
waste disposal, which include the Waste Disposal Ordinance and
Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance. The main source of non-
hazardous waste of the Group is generated from daily office operation.
The Group adheres to the “3Rs” principle of waste management. For
consumption and waste reduction (Reduce), we encourage employees
to adopt double-sided printing and the use of electronic means for
information dissemination whenever possible. Apart from using e-cards,
we also send facsimile via internet to reduce paper consumption and
the use of toners. Paper consumption is regularly monitored and
appropriate improvement measures are carried out. For waste recycling
(Reuse), the Group not only encourages employees to reduce the use
of one-off office supplies and replace them with environmentally friendly
stationeries and reusable materials, but also makes the best use of
paper products and utilises recycled papers. For recycling (Recycle), we
set up paper recycling bins, and arrange recycling company to handle
non-classified office waste papers. During the year, the Group recycled
126 kg of waste paper, which effectively reduced 604 kg CO, equivalent
greenhouse gas emission. For hazardous waste, all used cartridges
are collected and returned to suppliers for recycling. The Group also
complies with the Producer Responsibility Scheme on Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment, while acquiring the regulated electrical
equipment such as computers, printers and monitors, the Group
recycles the waste electrical equipment properly and hence reduce the
impact to the environment after using the equipment.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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CARE FOR EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND INTERESTS

Employees are the cornerstone and pillar of the Group’s success. We
emphasize talent operation and care for our employees. The Group
continues to strictly comply with the laws and regulations related to the
rights and interests of employees, such as the Employment Ordinance.
During the recruitment process, the Group offers all applicants with
equal employment opportunities, and will not tolerate any form of
discrimination on grounds of gender, race, family status, etc. We verify
the age of the applicants by checking their identification documents to
avoid any employment of child labour. Before the commencement of
employment, employees are provided with detailed job descriptions of
the working hours, duties and responsibilities of the position concerned,
and the employment is in accordance with labour contract to prevent
any forced labour. When overtime work is needed, it must be on a
voluntary basis to prevent forced overtime. We also arrange overtime
payment in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group adjusts employees’ remuneration annually based on factors
such as market conditions, employees work performance and index
of living, striving to offer employees with competitive remuneration.
Apart from basic salary, we also provide discretionary bonus according
to employees’ individual performance and the results of the Group.
We strictly comply with the laws and regulations relating to working
hours and holidays, such as the Employment Ordinance and offer
employees with different types of holidays, such as annual leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, compassionate leave, etc. In order to
improve the operation of the Group, we will arrange an exit interview
upon the receipt of resignation notice to understand his/her reasons of
resignation, and the balance of salary will be paid on time.

We continually monitor employees’ performance with a vision towards
establishing a premier team for the rapid development and efficient
operation of the corporation. The promotion mechanism operates on a
fair and open basis and we will not tolerate any form of discrimination.
The employees are encouraged to participate in external lectures and
seminars to enrich their professional knowledge.
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EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Work safety is the key to the sustainable development of the Group.
We continue to strictly comply with the laws and regulations related
to occupational health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, in our endeavour to create a safe and healthy
working environment for employees. Rescue, fire and evacuation
drills are conducted regularly to increase employees’ awareness and
involvement in accident prevention. The Group also creates a pleasant
and comfortable workplace by carrying out various measures including
the provision of adjustable seats and regular repair and maintenance of
office equipment.

RESPECT CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The daily operation of the Group does not involve bulk procurement.
Procurement policy is formulated to select reliable suppliers and
service providers in respect to the purchase of office supplies for
daily operation. Apart from taking into account the factors such as
reputation, quality and price-performance ratio of suppliers, we also
give priority to suppliers who perform well in social responsibility or
comply with our environmental protection policy, so as to encourage
suppliers to create a sustainable society together with us. For example,
we give priority to purchase products with higher recycling value, less
packing materials and higher energy efficiency. Under our consistent
principles of green procurement, we also assess the use of materials
constantly to avoid overstocking and waste of resources. If behaviours
of a supplier were found in breach of the Group’s policy, we will
terminate the cooperation relationships with the supplier concerned
immediately.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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EMPHASIS ON CUSTOMERS

As a financial service provider, protecting customers’ privacy
and safeguarding market fairness have core roles to play in the
establishment of a long-term and mutually trusted relationship with
customers. The Group continues to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance to handle
and protect all personal data of customers rigorously. The importance
of protecting the confidentiality of customer’ personal data is also clearly
stipulated in our Employee Handbook to ensure new employees fully
understand our confidentiality policy and manage such information
properly. The Group also stipulates that the staff who has resigned shall
not disclose any confidential information noticed during tenure and they
are required to return all information, records and documents received
during tenure to avoid leakage of customer’s information.

We are committed to providing customers with clear and accurate
information. Customers are advised of the details and terms of the
products (such as terms and interest rate), as well as any associated
risks, so as to enable customers to make an informed decision.
Furthermore, the Group has formulated guidelines regarding sales
materials, which require all information of sales materials to be true
and free from errors, and forbids any false, misleading or inaccurate
statement through any forms of communications. The Group respects
and protects intellectual property, and strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Copyright Ordinance and Trade
Marks Ordinance, to eliminate any alleged infringement.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

It is the unwavering principle of the Group to combat corruption and
advocate integrity and self-discipline. The Group continues to strictly
comply with the laws and regulations relating to bribery prevention,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance. A mechanism for declaration of interest is in place to
prohibit employees engagement in any investment activities that collide
with the interest of the Group, and requires employees to report any
situations that may involve conflict of direct or indirect interest with the
Group. There is also a whistle-blowing policy to provide a channel for
employees to report suspected misconduct.
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CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY

While striving for the business development over the past years,
the Group also has persistent engagement in public welfare and
relentless effort in charitable activities with a view of paying back to
the community. The Group also encourages employees to actively
participate in various volunteer activities and establish close and
long-term relationships with the community. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue to uphold the principle of being responsible for
its customers, employees, business partners, shareholders and the
society, to strengthen the connection and communication, and to seek
further opportunities to develop a harmonious relationship with each
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stakeholder.

MAJOR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key performance indicators data of core business in Hong Kong of

the Group are as follows:

T BRREBIER
REEREBRLEBHRMSAREERENT

Environmental Indicators RIFEE 2019 2018
Vehicles Emissions BHEWBERY
Nitrogen oxides emissions (kg) AetmBEmE (A7) 0.52 2.13
Sulphur oxides emissions (kg) ZR e E (A T) 0.02 0.08
Particulate matter emissions (kg) SRR E (AFT) 0.04 0.16
Greenhouse Gases BERE
Total greenhouse gas emissions (tCO.e) BEREHNESE (HE_AtRES 22 35
Greenhouse gas emissions per staff S ETHEEMAEEREE
(tCO.e/staff) (—EfkirEE,BT) 2.24 3.51
Waste BEEY
Total hazardous wastes produced (kg) BEEREYESRE (RAT) 0.48 1.44
Hazardous wastes produced per staff BUEBIMEENEEEEYE
(kg/staff) (Afr/8I) 0.05 0.14
Total non-hazardous wastes produced (tonnes) mEREYELBS (F) 0.61 0.62
Non-hazardous wastes produced per staff BUEBTITMEENEZSREYE
(tonnes/staff) (Mg, 8I) 0.06 0.06
Use of Resources EREA
Total energy consumption (MWh) R EfFERE CKEE) 37 76
Energy consumption per staff (MWh/staff) BB THREREE JkER 8T) 3.62 7.58
Consumption of non-renewable fuels (MWh) TR BAMBFEE CRER) 13 51
Electricity purchased for consumption (MWh) BEEHENE N JREE) 24 24
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2019 analysed by reportable segments are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 81 and 82. No
interim dividend was paid during the year ended 31 March 2019. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in Notes 29 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out on page 85 to 86 and Note 39a to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, there is no reserve of the Company which is
available for distribution to Shareholders (2018: nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 and 3 and on pages 22 to 24 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 20% of the Group’s total revenue and the aggregate
amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 88% of the Group’s total purchase. None
of the Directors, their associates nor any Shareholder (whom to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or five largest customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 65 full-time staff (2018: 68) under its subsidiaries
globally as at 31 March 2019. Total staff costs amounted to
approximately HK$26 million (2018: HK$22 million) for the year ended
31 March 2019. The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed
periodically on the basis of job nature, market trend, company
performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the
share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019

E RN E S

RBEE-FT-NFZA=1T—HLFER £A%£E
ME - BE LR B EBENA G BRERME
15/ ©

RIS 22 I B 55 (Ol R

NEEZHEME LT KEED R
NEE22FE24H

IHNE2EIR

2EF RHEER
RBE-T-NF=A=t-BLFE FEEZ

AARBEF G 2 B AR RSB 2 BIRA 4 20%
RAEE ARMEEEZBEBBEAEEZ
BIEEREN88% - REE - ABBEA LA RBKRR
(ESA HEARRARBEITRDE 5% RE)
BEN RSB A ARERR AR HEE E
1

o

Bk

& B N Fr o
RZZE-NE=A=1+—H  AEFETHELT
RERERSBEHME T (ZZT—\F :68%) °

REBE-_T-NF-A=1T—HILLFE BEITHEX
RAELEE2,6008L(ZF—/\F : B%2,2008
TT) c ARBZHFMBETIRIERERE Z TS
MmHBY - RAREARERE T2 RBMEREH
wEl o Htb B TN eERNBEMEARE - RIK
st R AN mIERRER S ([ BRETE]) -

BIrimEE

NAARTERELBER AT - BAREARA]
Z et B R E AP - BRI B AR
i o



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company repurchased a
total of 23,200,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximate HK$16.8 million and 82,000,000 Shares
(including a total of 58,800,000 Shares repurchased by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018) were cancelled during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Particulars of the shares repurchased are as follows:

Total number
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82,000,000 & 15 (‘B354 $£ 58,800,000 & A A 7]
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VAGEEH ©

FrEgmEA Y 2 F BT

of Shares Aggregate
Month repurchased Purchase price paid per Share consideration
FrEgmE
=) IR 2 S BRZNBEE BRE
Highest Lowest
=31 =43
000 HK$ HK$ HK$’000
TR B B BETFT
2018 —EB-N\F
July +A 23,200 0.74 0.68 16,781

The Directors consider that the above share repurchases are in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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HRGgHREE

DIRECTORS =

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2019 and REE_E—NWF-A=+—"HLEFERKEER
up to the date of this annual report were: FHREBIEZEFESOT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman) ENBKE(FE)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer) EREDE A (FTHAEEL)

Mr. Zheng Xiantao 5B A

Dr. Wang Zhi (appointed on 12 April 2018) FEE+T(RZE—/\FOAT+=BEZT)
Mr. Li Zhongxia (appointed on 12 April 2018) EMEXE (R \FUA+_BEZT)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BN IEITES

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki BAEERE

Mr. Cao Kuangyu BT

Mr. Ip Chi Wai BEREE

In accordance with bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Su Xiaonong, RIEATIMAZ F 112 (&4HA - EfrEEL S - EER
Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai shall retire from office and, being F e REER S EENEREREREF NS HIETE
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM. WHEERBEERER-

The directors who have served on the boards of directors of the REE_Z—NEF=ZA=+—HBUIEFENEELAR
subsidiaries (*Note) of the Company during the year ended 31 March SHEIERAREIMBAR M) 2 EEE TR

2019 and up to the date of this report were: LEER:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk FHIELE

Mr. Su Xiaonong BERSTAE

Ms. Lo Kwan BT+

Mr. Li Tao Hui FEELE

*Note: Dingyi (North America) Limited, Dingyi Strategic Advising Company Limited, *B#5% - Dingyi (North America) Limited * Dingyi Strategic
Dingyi North America Asset Management Company Limited and East Advising Company Limited * Dingyi North America
Endowment Limited of which Mr. Li Kwong Yuk and Mr. Li Tao Hui are Asset Management Company Limited }2 East
directors, ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company with effect from 29 March Endowment Limited (¥} G ERTEE L L BZ
2019. B{EE IR E CRYI) BBR 2 Fof which Mr. Li Kwong Yuk and Mr. Li Tao ERRER)BEZT-NF=ZA-TNLBETHEAR
Hui are directors, ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company with effect from NAEIME AR - MIEERIEE ORI BRAA (FX
30 March 2019. REERFRERER/ZARNES) BT NF=

A=+ HBTBREAFMBRRF -
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and all of them are still being
considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
as set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had no contract
entered into in respect of the management or administration of the
overall business or any material business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, none of the Directors have
an interest in any business constituting a competing business to the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

A e

LD“

EERTBITHRABZE

E\

RIZB-NF=A=+—HB ARREEFRET2T
HABRANRR R EEEEZE (ERREHF LR
fif) ([ 58 25 R BRI ) 55 XV BD) Z Bedn - HRAA
10 R ABEZ T AT A B IR IRRE 77 R BB R P XV &
F7TRFESNEMMEARRT MR P2 s MoxR
(BRERIEE S MG IR 2 A BB IR AR
1EHRA 2B MOXR) - AR EEN AR AIRE
o MEGRPIF 352 R ERTFEZERMA
Z RS MRR - SIRBRETRIASITHEAAR
KB Pz Bz FORRIATE

AR B E B AR 2 iF B

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares
Number of underlying of the Company
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)
BERAR
BRITRG
i
g
EEps 4 EER#A HERAEE By (Hizt1)
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr. Li")  Interest of controlled 3,591,480,405 - 3,591,480,405
FRELE(ERE]) corporation (Note 2)
R EEER (Fit2)
Beneficial owner 251,195,000 1,255,000,000 1,506,195,000
EREEA (Note 3)
(Hizt3)
5,097,675,405 69.56%
Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner 14,655,000 20,000,000 34,655,000 0.47%
HERLE BHREAA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Mr. Li Zhongxia Beneficial owner 3,000,000 1,500,000 4,500,000 0.06%
THELE ERBmAA (Note 5)
(Hizts)
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Notes:

Based on 7,328,060,715 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2019.

These shares are held by Wincon Capital Investment Limited (“WCIL”) as
to 3,580,005,405 and Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”) as
to 11,475,000. Each of WCIL and WAML is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Li. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in these
3,591,480,405 shares.

These underlying shares comprise (i) 5,000,000 share options granted by the
Company on 28 December 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.792 per share
pursuant to the Share Options Scheme, and (i) 1,250,000,000 conversion
shares which will be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 issued by the
Company to Mr. Li on 26 March 2018 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.80
per share.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme. These 20,000,000 share options were granted on 3
February 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.477 per share.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, These 1,500,000 share options were granted on 3
February 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.477 per share.
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE ISSUED SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY’S ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

INZN/NCID Sl b7 N A S & Nl S =)

Approximate

percentage of

total issued

Total number share capital

Associated corporation Name of Director Capacity of share held of WCIL/WAML (%)

HXBER/ KB

BECRITRAHAE

HEEE EEps &% R H 2 ZBHED (%)

WCIL Mr. Li Kwong Yuk Beneficial owner 1 100%
XBER TRELE ERBEAA

WAML Mr. Li Kwong Yuk Beneficial owner 1 100%
XBEE TRELE ExfBA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors BREXFI#HEEN RZE—NF=A=1+—0H"
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short BMERANTEELRTETHRAENRERAR T‘RE{

positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model Code,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND HRARRAFE

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Report of the Directors
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Approximate
percentage of
total number of
issued shares

Name of substantial Number of Number of of the Company
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares underlying shares Total (Note 1)
2 YN
BRTRH
Be
EER HERG BAESH
TERFRE BB 5t HB L= By (Biit1)
WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,580,005,405 - 3,580,005,405 48.85%
XBER(HiE2) BRERA
China Shipbuilding Beneficial owner 908,685,000 - 908,685,000 12.40%
Capital Limited
hERAEAERAA ERBEAA
Notes: Fit 3
1. Based on 7,328,060,715 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 1 Bigy s 71@ A=+—HE%777,328,060,715/%
March 2019. RAREBRETE -

2. WCIL is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Kwong 2.
Yuk was deemed to be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or,
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances

at general meetings of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules, are
as follow:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share options
to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible Participants”) to
subscribe for shares in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b)  any Directors (including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(d)  any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

()  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(@ any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;
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(h)  any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

(i) any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options and the share options granted under any
other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding share options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being.

In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may
determine, which may not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share option.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 September
2018 the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was
refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 716,541,365
share options under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 9.78% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 7,328,060,715 shares) as at 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, (i) no share options were granted
by the Company; (i) a total of 11,700,000 share options were exercised;
and (i) 2,500,000 share options and 1,500,000 share options were
lapsed and re-classified respectively. Pursuant to the Shareholders’
approval for the refreshment of scheme mandate limit on 6 September
2018, the outstanding number of the shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 978,960,000, representing approximately
13.31% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
7,353,060,715 shares) as at the date of this annual report.

The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019 are shown below:

RZEBE-N\FHARNBRITZARARRRBERE
L BEREE AT EIRERBELEN - U
RAGIRIBERERT 813517 5& % 716,541,365 0 I
B HERAATRR-_BE—AF=A=+—8H
2 BEITRD 428k (RN 7,328,060,715 B &1 ) 2 4J
9.78% °

REE-Z-NFZA=+—"HLFER " (A2
B M B AR AE ¢ (i) A 511,700,000 15 BE & 4
BHETE - K (i) 2,500,000 17 & BAE & 1,500,000
DERED B ESRANETDLE - RIBERER
—E- ) N\FHLANBHRETHERERS
RIEE AR E AT BT 2 MR BEITIRD B
#$978,960,000 % - #HE R AR A AR AR F ¥ B &
BE{TI D @ 8 (BN 7,353,060,715 % f% 17 ) 2 49
13.31% °

REBE-T-NF=ZA=1t—RHLFER REHE
Pt BIFR H Z BBRE 2 BB T RATR

Number of share options
Ehear
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At Date of grant Validity ~ Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March of share period of of share
of participant 2018 the year the year the year the year the year 2019 options share options options
H=8-N% REREN R-Z3-0E B
SRENZAT BA-B  RERRE  RERGR  REREE  REARN 28 ZR=1-R RaBE BRRENE REEGRR
HKS per share
BREs
Executive Directors
g
Mr. Li Kwong Yk 5,000,000 - - - - - 5000000 28-12-2015 28-12-201510 0.79
27-12-200
FrEtE - “E-RETCACTNR CR-RETCACTIRE
ECERCRCTHR
M. Su Xiaonong 8,700,000 - (8,700,000 - - - - 10042013 19:04-201310 0375
18:04-2018
HRRE 3-ZERATAR ZE-ZERMATARE
ZE-JERATNR
20,000,000 - - - - - 20000000 03-02-2015 03-02-201510 0417
02-02-2020
il “T-1£-fCRE
“ECTECRCR
Mr. Li Zhongia - - - - - 1500000 1,500,000 03-02-2015 03-02-201510 0411
02-02-2020
HhELE “2-RE-AH “5-nf-AzRE
(Appointed on 12 Apr 2018) “RoRECACR
(R=%2-/\EMAT-REZF)
Sub-fotal
Pt 33,700,000 - [B700000) - - 150000 26500000
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EREHA
At Granted ~ Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At Date of grant Validity - Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March of share period of of share
of participant 2018 the year the year the year the year the year 2019 options share options options
Ho%-N% ) _ NERER  HZE-AF Bhe ) )
SEEHEERN BA-B  REARE  REAGE  REREE  RERXN 8 ZR=t-B RiiAg BhREENE BREGRE
HKS per share
gt
Others
it
Employees 1,500,000 - - - - (1,500,000 - 03022015 08-02-2015to 02-02-2020 0417
E “T-1EZA=A E-RECACRE
ZECFECACH
58,000,000 - - - - - 58000000 19:-12-2016 19-12-2016t0 0738
18-12-2021
EREtZAThE ZE-AETZATHRE
SR-FTZATIE
Other elgble participants 3,500,000 - (1,000,000) - (2,500,000 - - 26-04-2013 26-04-2013 10 0375
B e atang 2504018
E-CEMACTAE CE-CERMACtABE
“%-)\fBA-t1A
9,000,000 - (2,000,000 - - - 7000000 08-02-201 08-02-201510 0417
02:02-2020
S “E-mE-fcEE
ZECEECACH
50,000,000 - - - - - 50,000,000 11-11-2015 11-11-201510 0638
10-11-2020
E-RET-A-B CE-RET-A-RE
3
275,460,000 - - - - - 275,460,000 28-12-2015 28-12-201510 0.792
27-12-0000
ZE-RETCACTNR ZE-RETCACT/BE
a2
467,000,000 - - - - - 467,000,000 19-12-2016 19-12-2016t0 0.738
18-12-2021
TERELCRTAR CEAETCATARE
SE-EDATIE
100,000,000 - - - - - 100,000,000 19-410-2017 1940-2017 10 0488
18-10-202
TE-HETATAR CE-LETATARE
EICERATIA
Sub-fotal 959,460,000 - (8,000,000 - (25000000 (15000000 952,460,000
gt
Totl 993,160,000 - (11,700,000) - (2500000 - 978960,000
o
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ERTHSE

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 18 April 2013, 25
April 2013, 2 February 2015, 10 November 2015, 24 December 2015,
16 December 2016 and 18 October 2017, were HK$0.37, HK$0.37,
HK$0.46, HK$0.63, HK$0.79, HK$0.74 and HK$0.46 per share
respectively.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2019, (i) a total of 716,300,000
share options were granted by the Company; (ii) no share options were
exercised, lapsed or re-classified and (i) 1,695,260,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme remain exercisable and the number of
shares available for issue in respect of these outstanding share options
is 1,695,260,000 representing 23.06% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company (i.e. 7,353,060,715 shares as at the date of this
annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 30 March 2016, Trillion Winner Investment Ltd (“Trillion”) as the
owner entered into an aircraft charter agreement (the “Aircraft Charter
Agreement”) with Dingyi Resources Limited (“Dingyi Resources”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the charteree,
pursuant to which Trillion agreed to provide and Dingyi Resources
agreed to hire the aircraft commencing on 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2019 for the charter price of US$2,000 per flight hour (“Charter Price”)
(excluding all other costs and expenses shall be for the account of
Dingyi Resources in relation to hire an aircraft). The transaction pursuant
to the Aircraft Charter Agreement constituted continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules as Trillion is beneficially wholly-
owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, the controlling shareholder, a chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company.

Details of the Aircraft Charter Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2016.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REZBRERT B8 (A ZE—=FE™A+N
E»—%—fimﬂ +£H»:?—£¢_ﬂ_
A -—2—H"&+—A+A8" —HF+=H8
:+l7_E|E| 7 /\i"” ﬂ‘f’/\E&fT ‘t
¢+ﬁ+ﬂﬂ)$Aﬂh@WmEn%ﬁﬂk%m
0.377L * #B¥#0.377T » #B%0.467T * E¥0.637T
BEE0.797T « BEE0.74 T RBE0.46 7T ©

HEZZ-NLF=-A=+—HLEFE®E ()X
R AR H A ££716,300,000 17 88 A% 48 ¢ (i) B = EE
PR HE LTI ~ B E T 48 K (jii) AR 4% B A 4
5T 811,695,260,00017 & IR E AR T1TE A
MM ARITEZERE THETRMEE
#$1,695,260,0000% + 8 & R AN A AR A F ¥ B
BB 217 i (n #E 8 (B17,353,0680,715 8% A% 15 ) 2
23.06% °

—RNFZA=1TH  RIBREERAB(A
Bl ERBEEAN)EARAZEEREZEMB LR
BERARAR([REER]  (FRABEAN)FTLE
i ([BEBRED - Bt BIBRER T+

FOA—BEE-ZE-NAF=ZA=t—HILREHEM
REERRAZEARYE  BHRERA/EBRIT/E

2,000% ([ B#ERE ) (TRESEEREREZ
FAMARKFEREMBRARAS) - AREIR
HIERARE - AAREFERITESTHELESR
BEDEA - BURE ETRA - BiGRE TS
X 5ERFERER S

B FIRERARTERS
=+BZAMA -

—NF=A



During the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, Dingyi Resources did
not incur any charter price payable to Trillion as Dingyi Resources had
not utilized the hiring services under the Aircraft Charter Agreement.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that the continuing connected transaction was entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (i) in
accordance with the Aircraft Charter Agreement governing it on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole; and (iv) has not exceeded the relevant amount
capped in accordance with the Company’s announcement dated 30
March 2016.

The Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements and include transactions
that constitute connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions for which the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules have been complied.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
31 March 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in pages 25 to 43 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization
of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation.
Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal
and external communications by means of telephone, emails and
conferences or such other communication means which are efficient yet
environmentally friendly. Also, we are able to minimize physical travelling
and printing.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest
service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking ways
to improve customer relations through enhanced services. Regarding
the securities trading and loan financing businesses, the Group has no
major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the
Group has maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure
their continued support to the Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial and equity markets,
the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its investments when
changing the strategic plans to adopt the unexpected changes of
external environments.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

FINANCIAL RISKS

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 33(b) to the consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” -
“FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES”.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 9 to 15 of this annual report and the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” on pages 62 to 66 of this report, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year ended 31
March 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of
the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and
liabilities associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public floats as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

I& 28 Fh ek
BAFREBIOEZ 15 B 2 BIRErTim oM A KA TR
£E2E66 82 | BAHEETE ] — &I EEIN -
ARFREE-_E—NWF=A=+—HLEFERL
EET AT AR E A e o

EARFTRIEIR

REAQG Z 2GR - ARBSESSEMER
BEURANGHER OEEASZTEA(NE) B
METERE N EEMNBEIT AR NEE LB
BRI BEAARRBIZEETESRHE - AQFE
PLEFF RN T H A= R B T e (TR A7
NEECZAERAFAEHERR -

PN EINN )
REE-F-NF=A=T—ALFER
W B BEAHAATNEEEAY S THT
IR R A -

R RNBHILE

W$¢Wﬂ R 2 BEERAITES mﬁﬁ
BzRHANRERERAM  REBE— n

i:ﬂ:+—5¢ﬂﬂ¢E’$Aﬂ—E$htm

RAIFTAE 2 RAARIHRE -



AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were
audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

for the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Auditor.

By order of the Board

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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Shineﬂ)an

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dingyi Group
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 240,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
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and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS IN RESPECT OF EARLY

ERRFER AT A ESF I 2 014
TR ITEZHE

REDEMPTION OPTIONS OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 109 to 110.

The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRNETNNEERRETER

As at 31 March 2019, the Group recognised derivative
financial instruments in respect of early redemption options
of convertible bonds of approximately HK$6,060,000.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, loss arising from
derivative financial assets of approximately HK$49,687,000 is
recognised.
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The Group has applied appropriate valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of the derivative financial instruments
that are not quoted in active market.
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements adopted by the Group
in determining the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments in respect of early redemption options of
convertible bonds.
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We have assessed the valuation methodology and challenged
the inputs and assumptions used in the valuation and
validated the observable inputs using external market data.
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VALUATION OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS IN RESPECT OF EARLY
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REDEMPTION OPTIONS OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

The key audit matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EFANEFSNEEERETSEE

We have identified the valuation of derivative financial
instruments in respect of early redemption options of
convertible bonds as a key audit matter because of its
complexity and it involves a significant degree of judgment
made by the management in determining the fair value.
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EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (“ECL”) FOR LOAN

AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
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Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the FLRAMAFPBERERM T2 NEII1E116B S

accounting policies on pages 111 to 116.

The key audit matter
RRETEE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMmET A EERREETER

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
has changed the Group’s accounting for impairment losses of
loans and interest receivables by replacing HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’s incurred
loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss
approach.
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had loan and interest
receivables measured at amortised cost amounted to
approximately HK$2,151,463,000 and no impairment loss
has been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019.
RZZE-NAE=A=+—1H  E5ERBHEKIAENE
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge
management’s basis and judgement in determining credit
loss allowance on loan and interest receivables as at 1 April
2018 and 31 March 2019, including the identification of credit
impaired loan receivables and estimated loss rates applied to
each customers;
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We have evaluated management’s assessment of the internal
credit rating of the loan and interest receivables by reference
to the past due status, past collection history and subsequent
settlement information.
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EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (“ECL”) FOR LOAN

AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

We have identified the ECL for loan and interest receivables
as a key audit matter because the determination of ECL for
loan and interest receivables are based on management’s
estimation by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue, customers’ repayment history, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgement.
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RECOGNITION OF REVENUE FROM PROPERTIES

DEVELOPMENT

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 129 to 131.

The key audit matter
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We have also tested the accuracy of a selection of input data
used in the ECL model.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMPNBANIEERRETSE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recognised
revenue from sales of properties amounted to approximately
HK$107,957,000 which accounted for approximately 40% of
the Group’s total revenue for the year.
REBEE_ZE-NF=ZA=+—HILFE BEEEBRKE
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As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from sales of properties is recognised at
a point in time when control of the properties is transferred to
the customer.
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Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
management’s process and control over the point of time at
which revenue from sales of properties is recognised.
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We have evaluated the terms set out in the agreements,
and obtaining evidence to assess whether the performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the properties
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customers.

HMEF A BEAES 2GR - YEGTEREEENENE
ERERE M EEBEERNECZ [EHE BB TR
Eo
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RECOGNITION OF REVENUE FROM PROPERTIES
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

The key audit matter
HARETEE

RAMEEREA ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRNETNUEERRETER

We have identified revenue recognised from sale of properties
as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and there is judgement involved
in determining the appropriate point at which to recognise
revenue from sale of properties.
HRMEHER AR HBERERMSBEK - MHRER
MEHEWAETES @RS LAE - BEFEEYEH
EZEBRARAEE SBREZEE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
28 June 2019

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

CREEES

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

2019 2018
—E-NfF ZE-)\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt BET T BT
Revenue A ) 270,882 667,950
Cost of sales SHERA (46,640) (520,908)
Gross profit EA 224,242 147,042
Other income E Aol A 7 1,572 54,901
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRA Rz K 37 6,963 10,331
Share of losses of associates e el o) = = (89)
Loss on early redemption of IRREO AR ES 2 B8
convertible bonds 30 - (34,838)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HENERRRA N ERE
fair value through profit or loss/ CERMEE/BEEE
held for trading investments REWEE (6,753) (6,943)
Loss arising from financial assets at fair REREREAAERIEZ
value through profit or loss/ held CRMEE HIEER
for trading investments WAEEZ F518 (49,687) (29,941)
(Loss) gain arising from derivative MESHMEEES
financial assets 2 (B18) e 24 (107,214) 90,185
Loss arising from derivative MEeRBEEEZER
financial liabilities - (96,575)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A HESREE 2 RBEBE
financial assets - (6,059)
Selling and distribution costs THE R HHK AR (5,190) (4,535)
General and administrative expenses —MERITHRER (78,196) (210,234)
Finance costs B & A 8 (159,466) (112,803)
Loss before tax bR RIES 1R 9 (173,729) (199,558)
Income tax expenses st &R 11 (38,779) (22,076)
Loss for the year FEFE (212,508) (221,634)
Loss for the year attributable to: DTFATELEFEESRE :
The owners of the Company KARER A (212,508) (221,629)
Non-controlling interests FEFE b ks - ®)
(212,508) (221,634)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR REE (BL) 13 (3.00) (8.79)

S 18 4 T B A PR W)
SR JUEER
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o PF R AR B At £ 5 B R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - FE—HNF=H=+—HIFZF

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE BT T BT
Loss for the year FEBSE (212,508) (221,634)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMES (EA) KA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently — B & AJs2E 27 P 1E 2 1575
to profit or loss: ZHE
Exchange difference arising on translating WMEBINETSE S 2 EH =58
foreign operations (139,352) 102,148
Reclassification adjustments for the RS EINESETABRZ
cumulative exchange difference included RitERERE s SHHE
in profit or loss upon disposal of foreign R
operations S 121 -
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEGESERED (351,739) (119,486)
Total comprehensive expense for the LTATEMEEREER
year attributable to: saxE
The owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZEWN (851,739) (119,481)
Non-controlling interests JEF M R - )
(351,739) (119,486)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
o OF B4 %551k DL &

As at 31 March 2019 R=-F—ANF=H=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AfF —E—)\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt BET T BT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment property and investment WEMHEREENEME
property under construction 14 17,302 19,524
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB &R 15 22,352 29,921
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESHEE 19 - 65,807
Non-current prepayments and deposits EMETENRERFHIES 21 4,528 1,721
Prepaid lease payments FENEERR 16 2,576 2,829
46,758 119,802
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 7,489 7,637
Prepaid lease payments FERHEENR 16 70 75
Properties under development ERERPYIE 17 398,666 131,843
Completed properties held for sale REHENER I 18 129,387 187,733
Other receivables, prepayments Ha U AR - B RIE
and deposits EFHES 21 21,510 476,323
Loan and interest receivables JEME TR E 22 2,151,463 1,546,227
Finance lease receivables FEY B E T & FIE 23 - 97,468
Financial assets at fair value through RE=RRIEA BRI
profit or loss ZETREE 19 35,638 =
Held for trading investments FIEEBRE 19 - 63,035
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 24 6,060 142,216
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 25 20,844 283,017
2,780,127 2,935,574
Current liabilities RENEE
Margin loans payable FERFESERK 26 - 12,357
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMAERR 28 96,949 143,613
Contract liabilities BHAaE 28 18,809 —
Amount due to a related company e —FEIRAE A RIR SR 27 7,211 1,773
Amount due to a director EN—RESZFHIE 27 20,496 772
Tax payables JERI IR 61,004 33,054
Convertible bonds AR E S 30 278,238 —
482,707 191,569

S5 8 4 10 4% A PR 4 )
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B B 7R DL R

As at 31 March 2019 RZ=F—/NF=H=4+—H

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-)N\F

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Bi5E BT T ST T

Net current assets RBEEFE 2,297,420 2,744,005

Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARS 2,344,178 2,863,807
Capital and reserves R AR

Share capital % 29 73,281 69,440

Reserves & 1,458,097 1,539,185

Equity attributable to the owners of RAEHB AELER

the Company 1,531,378 1,608,625

Non-controlling interests FERE I A = (7

Total equity B 1,531,378 1,608,608
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Convertible bonds AR ES 30 807,842 1,252,995

Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 31 4,958 2,204

812,800 1,255,199

2,344,178 2,863,807

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 240 were RESI1E240 B 2 &I BHRENR T —NFNA

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June —tN\BHEEEgERBEETRTH TESK
2019 and are signed on its behalf by: xRE=Z

LI Kwong Yuk SU Xiaonong

FHIE wERR

Director Director

EF EBEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
5 D HE £ 52 B %

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RATEE AR
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Other  Exchange equity Non-
Share reserve  Share option reserve  fluctuation  conversion Accumulated controlling
Share capital premium (note i) reserve (note il reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
&%
{2 Rt Ei TRERRS- FEHE
Rx  ROEE () BRERR (i) RBRE EREAEE  2iHER Lo 3 it
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

o AT BT A%t AMTn  B%Tn  B%Tr BMTn B%TR EMTn B¥Tn #%Tn

At 1 April 2017 R=F-t4MA-A 53,182 1,720,075 14 299,981 394,573 (35,288) 112,858 (1,858,626) 686,770 (12) 686,758
Loss for the year FREE = = = = - - - (21629 (21629 (B) (22163
Other comprehensive expense for the year TEEGGARRA
- Exchange difference arising on -BENEREEY
translating foreign operations EXEH = = - - - 102,148 - - 102,148 - 102,148
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRGAERLEE - - - - - 102,148 - (221,629) (119,481) (] (119,486)
Issue of convertile bonds-equity TR ARGRS - R AN, 30(i) & 30{v)
conversion component - - - - - - 1,300,051 - 1,300,051 - 1,300,051
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTHRESELTRG 29 & 30()
convertible bonds 588 78,035 - - - - (46,002) - 32,621 - 32,621
Early redemption of convertiole bonds REBRTERESR 30(i) - - - - - - (9.950) - (9,950) - (9,950)
Transfer upon early redemption of REERETARERHER 30
convertible bonds - - - - - - (89,355) 89,355 - - -
Recognition of equity-settied share-based RREEENRDAZRATR 35
payments vested 5B = = = 118,400 = = = = 118,400 = 118,400
Shares repurchased and cancelled RiVBERFHE 29(i) (588) (63,668) - - - - - - (64,256) - (64,256)
Share options exercised BifEERE 29)
5,538 380,090 - (118,655) - - - - 266,973 - 266,973
Issue of shares Bk 29(v) 10,720 580,740 - - - - - - 591,460 - 591,460
Transaction costs attrioutable to issue BROEERSHER
of shares - (3969 - - - - - - (3,969) - (3,969)
Effect of business combination HEBHT BN Y E
under common control - - - - (1,189,994 - - - (1,189,994 - (1,189.99)
At31 March 2018 RZZ-/\§=A=1-A 69,440 2,691,303 14 299,726 (795,421) 66,860 1,267,602  (1,990,899) 1,608,625 (17) 1,608,608

SR8 8 O 5% A PR )
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
5 BF HE i 52 B 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - FE—HNF=H=+—HIFZF

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RATEE AR
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Other  Exchange equity Non-
Share reserve  Share option reserve  fluctuation  conversion Accumulated controlling
Share capital premium (note i) reserve (note il reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
&%
RERE HibE EX TaRES- FiEp
Rx  ROEE () BRERR (i) RBRE EREAEE  2iHER Lo 3 it
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

o AT BT A%t AMTn  B%Tn  B%Tr BMTn B%TR EMTn B¥Tn #%Tn

At 1 Aprl 2018 K=2-/\FmA-A 69,440 2,691,308 14 200726  (195421) 66,860 1267602  (1990.899) 1,608,625 (17 1,608,608
Loss for the year FREER = - - = o o - (212508 (212,508) - (212508
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMGA (BR) KA
for the year
- Exchange difference arising on -HREENEREEL
ranslating foreign operations EXZE o o © o - (139352 - - (1393352 - (139352
- Reclassiication adjustments for the “REEBNEBET AR
cumulative exchange difference included ZHEREBENARRR
in profit or loss upon disposal of foreign
operations - - - - - 121 - - 121 - 121
Total comprehensive expense FELABREE
forthe year = = = - - (139281) - (of2508)  (31,739) - (317%9)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 37 - - - - - - - - - 17 17
Issue of shares upon conversion RERTRRERRETRD 29(i)
of convertle bonds 395 570803 - - - - (288079) - 286,681 - 286681
Shares repurchased and cancelled RIVEE Rt 29ii) (232) (16,548) - - - - - - (16,780) - (16,780)
Share options exercised BiiERERE 29() 17 6,547 - (2,073) - - - - 4591 - 4,591
Share option lapsed BRMERE 3% - - = (322) - - - 322 - - o
At31 March 2019 K=2-NE=A=1-B 78280 8,252,105 14 07331 (195421)  (12071) 079524 (2203085 1,531,378 - 1531378
Notes: Bi%E
() Capital redemption reserve in accordance with law of Bermuda which has been @) BAREERFEERBEAREEFIE BARARAHEHI IR
paid out of the distributable reserves of the Company. fEELT -
(i) Other reserve represents: (i H b EfETE -
(@  The change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries @ AEERREWBARZHEREEZ 2 ZFEMm
that do not result in loss of control over those subsidiaries; and WS AEEE B AR RELERE : &
()  The recognition of deemed contribution from Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr. ) REZE-N\F=ZAZT+"HEXEEREERE
Li") under merger accounting upon the completion of acquisition of BRAR ([EE]) REMBAR ([ TXHEA
United Faith Investments Limited (“United Faith”) and its subsidiaries [BEEE ) BERANREHET TERERELE
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “United Faith Group”) on 26 ([ZFasE ) SIERFIERBEEER 2/EK
March 2018, representing the differences amongst the investment cost NELFETRE R BBR R 2 A =R R B AR A

for the acquisition of United Faith Group and the amount due to related #)
companies, and elimination of the share capital of the United Faith.

8 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
S SR ER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRESEE
Loss before tax BrE A ES1E (173,729) (199,558)
Adjustments for: BB TSIE
Bank interest income HRITH EMA (237) (498)
Share of losses of associates BREE AR 2 B1E - 89
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA R W (6,963) (10,331)
Finance costs BhE R AR 159,466 112,803
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BE REEITE
equipment 6,015 6,503
Depreciation of investment property HEMENE 951 843
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEREE (s 70 71
Written off of property, plant and equipment ~ Hi#5%  FiR= k& 18 =
Loss arising from derivative financial MESMBEEEZBE
liabilities - 96,575
(Loss) gain arising from derivative TEESMEE
financial assets EAz () ks 107,214 (90,185)
Loss arising from financial assets at fair RERREAREREZS
value through profit or loss/held for BMEE RBIFEBEREE
trading investments 2 BB 49,687 29,941
Loss on early redemption of convertible REERARRES 2
bonds B8 - 34,838
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AtHESREEY
financial assets B EE - 6,059
Share-based payments expenses LARR 10 LR 2 TR SZ - 118,400
Operating cash flows before movements HEESEPHI LERE
in working capital mE 142,492 105,550
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERL GEm) 148 (144)
Increase in properties under development RV (274,464) (262)
Decrease in completed properties held BIEHEE R TR
for sale 46,004 520,320
Decrease in other receivables, E it R BR R - TR RIE KR
prepayments and deposits GRS R 432,636 66,216
Increase in loan and interest receivables JE U B 3k & F B3 (703,946) (1,010,911)
Decrease in finance lease receivables FEW B & TR ERIRER 90,837 351
Decrease in financial asset at fair value RIBRERALBEEEY S
Ithrough profit or loss/held for trading REE SESERER
investments
P 43,517 259,567
Increase (decrease) in trade and other B 5 Rk B ET AR R
payables 0 Rk >) 6,112 (289,902)
Decrease in contract liabilities aEHBERD (20,434) =
Cash used in operations SEMAZRS (237,098) (349,215)
Income tax paid B ATER (5,963) (18,329

S5 8 4 10 4% A PR 4 )
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HHHERER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE _—F—h#F=H=+—HIFE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE BT T BT T
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHMAZE ST
ACTIVITIES (243,061) (367,544)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBRARZRERH
subsidiaries JRER 37 (851) (59)
Purchases of property, plant BEYE  BEMERE
and equipment (112) (9,724)
Interest received B UF & 237 498
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEHIESHEE
assets = (5,009)
Construction cost of investment property BB 2 BEK A = (244)
Acquisition of investments in associates INEE R B E AR 2R E = (300,192)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REFBFIAZE ST
ACTIVITIES (726) (814,726)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REER
Advance from (repayment to) a director mkyg
(BHT)—RES 19,759 (73,621)
Advance from (repayment to) a related iy =
company (BRT) —H@EAR 5,646 (200,888)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T RE AR AT 1S SIE 4,591 266,973
Interest paid BRFE (166) (2,892)
Repayment of margin loans REBESERZER (12,357) (168,779)
Payment on repurchase of shares READEE R Z 3R (16,780) (64,256)
Payments for early redemption of IREERARES
convertible bonds (BN 30 - (113,078)
Repayment of bank borrowings IRITERZER = (60,972)
Proceeds from issuance of REBITAMBRESZ 30() &
convertible bonds Fr{S5R18 30(ii) - 630,000
Proceeds from issuance of shares BTN 2 P18 s - 591,460
Expenses on issue of shares BT 2 = (3,969)
New margin loans raised EEMLRESEN = 2,851
NET CASH GENERATED RMETHELEZRSE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEE 693 802,829
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH BE&RBELSZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Omi2) B hnFEE (243,094) 120,559
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ROA-HZRER
AT 1 APRIL HEZEEY 283,017 148,276
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates — HNEFE R& ) 7 322 (10,079) 14,182
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=A=+—-HBZ
AT 31 MARCH ReRELZEY 25 29,844 283,017

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B 5 e B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dingyi Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report.

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“Wincon Capital”), a private limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in sale of food and
beverages, loan financing, financial leasing, securities trading and
properties development.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company. Other than those subsidiaries established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), whose functional
currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), the functional currency of its
subsidiaries is HK$.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z - FE—HNF=H=+—HIFZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time, the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs, which include
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”),
amendments and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and related Amendments

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

As part of Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-
Interpretation 22

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers have
been summarised below. The application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

90 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HIF&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and the related interpretations and it applies
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those
contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard
established a five-step model for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised. The Group has elected to adopt
the modified retrospective approach for contracts with customers
that are not completed as at the date of initial application (i.e. 1
April 2018) with the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
losses and comparative information is not restated. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue.
Details are described below.

The Group’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are
disclosed in detail in Note 3 below.

The impact of transition to HKFRS 15 was insignificant on the
accumulated losses at 1 April 2018. The amount of adjustment for
each financial statement line item of the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 April 2018 affected by the application of
HKFRS 15 is illustrated below. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

FERFTE] MR ERT B BMERE
R ([ FBMBREER ) )

BRUBHREERE1GHRIFFEL
LONIE )

Trade and Contract
other payables liabilities
BESRHEM
FEATBRRR BHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Carrying amount previously reported RZE—\F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2018, as originally stated FA2H FEE(WREZ5) 143,613 -
Impact on adoption of HNE AR EERE 155
HKFRS 15 - Reclassification HE-BHNDE (41,760) 41,760
Carrying amount as restated RZZ—N\FHA—BEET|
(before adoption of HKFRS 9) at 1 April 2018 ZERAE (MBS EHRE
AERIE 95RAT) 101,853 41,760

The Group receives advances from customers upon signing the
contracts in respect of properties development business and food
and beverages business. As such, at 1 April 2018, the carrying
amount of advance payment from customers of approximately
HK$41,760,000 was reclassified to contract liabilities.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group presented these
advance as receipts in advance, which are previously included in
trade and other payable in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, these advances
were reclassified to contract liabilities. Besides, the Group
assessed whether there is a significant financing component for
the contracts where the length of time between the customers’
advance payment and the transfer of goods to the customers is
more than one year, taking into account the prevailing interest
rate, and where appropriate adjusted the transaction price at
contract inception. Since the period between payments and
transfer of the associated goods is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction
price for any significant financing component.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &ZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the year ended
31 March 2019 as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018

The following table summarises the estimated impact of applying
HKFRS 15 on the consolidated statement of financial position at
31 March 2019, by comparing the amounts reported under HKAS
18 that were in effect before the change. Line items that were not
affected by the adjustments have not been included. The adoption
of HKFRS 15 did not have material impact on the Group’s financial
performance as well as operating, investing and financing cash
flows.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2019 is as follows:

2.
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MRHFZEWT

Trade and Contract
other payables liabilities
BEFR

H At FE AT BR AR BHEE

HK$'000 HK$’'000

BETT BETT

At 31 March 2019, as reported RZE-NEF=A=1+—H(WEH) 96,949 18,809

Impact on adoption of HKFRS 15 RNEBMBREENE 1SR TR 18,809 (18,809)
At 31 March 2019 without adoption of HKFRS 15~ R =T—hE=A=+—8 (¥ &

RNB BB S ERE155%) 115,758 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The Group
has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to financial instruments that
have not been derecognised at the date of initial application (i.e.
1 April 2018) in accordance with the transition provisions under
HKFRS 9, and chosen not to restate comparative information.
Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets on initial
application are recognised in accumulated losses as at 1 April
2018.

The Group’s accounting policies for the classification and
measurement of financial instruments and the impairment of
financial assets are disclosed in detail in Note 3 below.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
Group’s existing financial assets as at 1 April 2018 based on the
facts and circumstances that existed at that date and concluded
that the initial application of HKFRS 9 has had the following impact
on the Group’s financial assets as regards their classification and
measurement:

For the available-for-sale equity securities carried at fair value
amounting approximately HK$65,807,000, the Group has not
elected the option for designation at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and reclassified them to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
The adoption of HKFRS 9 did not have material impact on the
accumulated losses at 1 April 2018.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Equity investments previously classified as held
for trading investments carried at fair value

The Group’s equity investments amounting to approximately
HK$63,035,000 are required to be classified as FVTPL under
HKFRS 9. The adoption of HKFRS 9 did not have material impact
on the accumulated losses at 1 April 2018.

All financial liabilities measured at amortised cost under HKAS 39
continued to be measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECL!!)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s accounting
for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing HKAS 39’s
incurred loss model with a forward-looking ECL model. As at 1
April 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the Group’s existing financial assets and finance lease receivable
for impairment using reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9.

It is concluded that, at 1 April 2018, no additional credit loss
allowance has been recognised against accumulated losses as
the estimated loss allowance under ECL was insignificant.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below summarises the original measurement categories
under HKAS 39 and the new measurement categories under
HKFRS 9 for certain class of the Group’s financial assets and
reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under HKAS
39 to the carrying amounts under HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018. Line
items that were not affected by the adjustments have not been
included.

2.

Carrying amount

%%%ﬂ&%%ééxﬁfﬁ%
R ([HETFmEZER ) @
% RERBBMBREENFIRE

ZREBE
TRBAAEEE THECHEEREETE
SRTERIE 305 2 Rt B R MRIEE B H
BmEEANE G 2 HTERR - WHR=
T—\FMOA—-BAREEEGHERIFE 395K
ZERMEEZRAERRBE YGRS E
AIFOFZ R EETHER - YEBREARR
AETZERIAR o

Adoption of Carrying amount

at 31 March HKFRS9  at 1 April 2018
2018(HKAS 39)  Reclassification (HKFRS 9)*
RZE-N§ RZE-N\F
=ZBA=t-H RQES mA—H
ZIRHE BREREE ZEHE
(BAETEL Blgos:  (BRUKES
£39%) ENNE ERIEIH)*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivable ERRENRE
- Deposit and other receivables — &% REMEYERR 340,569 (340,569) -
— Loan and Interest receivables —~EREFTRFIE 1,546,227 (1,546,227) -
- Finance lease receivable —ENmERETE 97,468 (97,468) -
~ Cash and cash equivalents ~BERESSEY 283,017 (283,017) -
At amortised cost BB SRR
- Deposit and other receivables — e RHMEKER = 340,569 340,569
- Loan and interest receivables —EWETLFIE - 1,546,227 1,546,227
- Finance lease receivable -ENRERESE = 97,468 97,468
- Cash and cash equivalents -HERBSEEY - 283,017 283,017
Available-for-sale (‘AFS”) THHE (THHE])
investments (at fair value) RE(BLAE)
- Listed equity securities — AR EA 65,807 (65,807) =
Financial assets at fair value RERREAAERE
through profit or loss (FVTPL”) (TREEREAAERE])
LEREE
- Listed equity securities — EMRAES 63,035 65,807 128,842

* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from
application of HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HI F&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

There were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the
Group had previously designated as at FVTPL under HKAS 39
that were subject to reclassification or which the Group has
elected to reclassify upon the application of HKFRS 9. There
were no financial assets or financial liabilities which the Group has
elected to designate as at FVTPL at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9.

New and revised HKFRSs issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amended
to HKFRSs and interpretation that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 L eases’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Amendments to definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'
HK(FRIC)-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
® Effective date not yet been determined.
4 Effective for business combinations and assets acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described
below, the application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the initial
estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17
Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will
therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only
to contracts that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting model to short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019 and will not restate
the comparative information. As disclosed in Note 34, at 31
March 2019 the Group’s future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases amount to approximately
HK$35,185,000, the majority of which is payable between one
and five years after the reporting date. Upon the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and the
corresponding right of-use assets will be adjusted, after taking
account the effects of discounting, as at 1 April 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Group:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals (including
properties under construction for such purpose).

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment property over the estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of the estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment property under construction.

Investment property under construction is initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure until either
is fair value becomes reliably determinable and measurable or
construction is completed, whichever is earlier.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for own
use in the production or supply of services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future use
as held-for-sales are classified as properties under development
and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the expected sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion, or by management estimates based on prevailing
marking conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalised and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties under
development are transferred to completed properties held for
sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of the year are
stated at the lower of cost and net realise value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expense, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marking conditions.

Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise
cash at banks and in hand and cash at financial institutions. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash, as defined above.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirely at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are classified,
at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCT”), and
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them.

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the

amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-impaired
on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding ECL, through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including ECL, to the amortised cost
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross
carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the Group recognises interest income by applying the credit-
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from initial recognition. The calculation does not
revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue (Note 5).

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

- Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL,
unless the Group designates an equity investment that
is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration
arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI on initial
recognition.

- Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “Loss arising from changes
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
33(c).

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term; or

= on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

= it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
other receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables and cash and cash equivalents) that are
measured at amortised cost. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

For other receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables and cash and cash equivalents, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of
the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019

N

=+

EE+E&% (%)

= HERHE B R HERAREERRZE
BEIRINE - iSERBATER

TR TEMNIMB(HH ) A EERFR
M ERSTREREE R -

FESHT AN EERRIEE
BERL  ERFZE  BEBAGHE
WIEHERNESREEN AR BERE
BN AR R REE

£75 - BRI B LA RES R
TRISE) - TEEEER AEEENA
BT -

BEHARERELRERNFERHIRR
2Rt

A—EEANEMESR T ANEERR

BREIRI R

]

und
K



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

= an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI FF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

= it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKAS 17
Leases.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI FF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 35 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 35 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets represent the financial asset held-for-trading and
a financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is classified as “loss arising from changes
in fair value of held for trading instruments” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 33(c).

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including other receivables and deposits, loan and interest
receivables, finance lease receivables and cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost

is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI FF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan and
interest receivables and finance lease receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of other receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables
and finance lease receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When other receivables and deposits, loan and
interest receivables and finance lease receivable are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the impairment takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at the amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant Period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE - E—NF=H=+—HI FZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain the liability,
equity components and derivatives components (which are not
closely related to the host liability component) are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument. At the date of issue, both the liability and derivative
components are measured at fair value. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair values assigned to the liability and derivatives components
respectively, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity (i.e.
convertible bonds-equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The derivatives components are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds-equity reserve until the embedded
option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible bonds-equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium).

Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds-equity reserve will be
released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF 9 5 e 3 B e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # %2 — %

3.

A=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Upon redemption of the convertible bonds, the redemption
consideration will be allocated to the liability component and
equity component using the same allocation basis as when the
convertible bonds were originally issued. Differences between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the liability component
will be recognised in profit or loss. The difference between the
redemption consideration and the equity component will be
included in equity (convertible bonds-equity reserve) and released
to accumulated losses.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivative when their characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
separately accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity (i.e share
option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods to
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services to a customer. Specifically, the Group uses a five-step
approach to recognise revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligations is transferred to
customer.

A performance obligation represents goods (or a bundle of goods)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are substantially
the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI FF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties and sales related taxes.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. T B@HE (&)
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For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are Bt
not presented on a net basis. AE

N

The Group recognised revenue from the following major sources: RNEE R E T EZHRBEZIA :

Sales of properties

Sales of food and beverages

The Group’s property development activities are mainly
carried out in the PRC. Taking into account the contract
terms, the Group’s business practice and the legal and
regulatory environment, revenue from property sales
contracts is recognised at a point in time. Under the
transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from
property sales is generally recognised when the property
is accepted by the customer, or deemed as accepted
according to the contract, whichever is earlier, which is the
point in time when the customer has the ability to direct
the use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the property.

Revenue from sales of food and beverages is recognised
at the point of sales to customers or when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

AEENMEBRREHTIEETERE
17 ° BETRA DGR - ARBEHEBIE
I MOERMEBERRE - MEHEMRS
WG 2R - RIBEEMTE
HELERNF1GREBIEHEL L W
EHEWABENETPEZMEFHHAR
BENTRAEER (AREE L)
R LAEEFPAENERERYE
WHISYEZ BAR D 82 T Hlas 2 K
B R T B

EERERXNERTEFPEMEFE
R ERRIEE R R YR IA ] & 2 HE
7]

S5 8 4 10 4% A PR 4 )
SRR

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF 9 85 e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for good sold and services rendered in the
normal course of business. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and transferred to the buyers.

Deposits and installments received from buyers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 35 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Consultancy service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF 9 5 e 3 B e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating leases payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE —FE—HNF=H=+—HIFZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

TESFTBER@®

REESERSEER  MBEHRE J’ADAEL
BIIMBEEBUINZ G (INE) T2
T3 5 H 2 B ETLAEIJJA“E’%(EUME\
BLBMEC T BRERE 2EE)E -
HERR - RINETIEZEHIAH TJHZEZ E
ZRITEREHIRE o L LRRAFFEIAID
BEEZIEKRBHAEMEE -

REERERARENMEERREMEL
R EENEL R AERETHER

SEFNEHUMBEERME - AREEINER
ZEERABEIRANEREMR 2 BITE
RMERAEE 25E% (BEK) - WA
RAXRBNRFAZFHEXRGE - EA
ZERZRE(NE) REMERE WARTERL
A AIE SR B RIR T Rt o

HEE  FEIEEAEREE(ARAAE
REAZEEERTERgh &) BRAmZE
BAAABARETEEZKAE  EEZF?
EEAR L BREZEFEATRAEILES
1E e

BT EA B A S R A IR A R3S
" -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC) and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI FF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group estimates and recognises liabilities based on the
submitted tax returns and expected the final tax assessment to be
received will have no additional tax become due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible allowance and expenditures including sales charges,
borrowing costs and all properties development expenditures.

The Group is subject to the PRC land appreciation tax in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. In recognising
the PRC land appreciation tax, the management estimated the
tax rates enacted to the Group with reference to the latest tax
jurisdictions of the cities of the PRC in which the properties of the
Group situated in. However, the PRC land appreciation tax rates
might vary upon the finalisation of payment.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
their estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of the property,
plant and equipment regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The determination of the
useful lives and residual values, if any, are based on the historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

The Group performs assessments on whether items of property,
plant and equipment have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying
amounts of the assets may not be recoverable, in accordance
with the stated accounting policy. Where there is an indicator of
impairment, an estimation of the recoverable amount is required.
Such estimations are based on certain assumptions which are
subject to uncertainly and might differ from the actual result.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment were approximately HK$22,352,000. (2018:
HK$29,921,000) No impairment loss was recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: nil).

Management performs a review at each reporting period on
the carrying amounts of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development. Based on management’s
review, write-down of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development will be made when the
estimated net realisable value has declined below the carrying
amount. In determining the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale and properties under development,
management based on recent global and local economic
developments, recent sales transactions of the Group and other
similar properties in the surrounding areas, marketability of the
Group’s existing properties, market survey reports available from
independent property valuers, internally available information and
management’s expectation on future sales.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of the completed
properties held for sales and properties under development were
approximately HK$129,387,000 (2018: HK$187,733,000) and
HK$398,666,000 (2018: HK$131,843,000) respectively. No write
down of completed properties held for sales and properties under
development was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: nil).
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

ECL on loan and interest receivables are assessed individually.
The impairment provisions for loan and interest receivables are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, bases on the number of days that an
individual loan and interest receivable is outstanding as well
as the Group’s forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional impairment charge to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. No loss allowance was
recognised as at 31 March 2019. Details are disclosed in Note 22.

As described in Note 33(c), the directors of the Company use
their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instruments, binomial option pricing
model is used to determine the fair value which involves several
key assumptions and estimates including volatility levels, credit
spreads, spot price and risk-free rate. The estimation of fair value
of unlisted equity instruments includes some assumptions not
supported by observable market prices or rates. Details of the
assumptions used are disclosed in Note 33(c). The directors
of the Company believe that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions are appropriate in determining the fair value of
financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

As mentioned in note 35, the Group has granted share options to
directors, employees and consultants during the year ended 31
March 2018. The directors of the Company have used an Binomial
Model to determine the total fair value of the options granted. The
Binomial Model require the input of subjective assumptions, such
as risk free rate, dividend yield, expected volatility and expected
terms, to be made by the directors of the Company in applying the
Binomial Model (Note 35). The fair value of options granted for the
year ended 31 March 2018 determined using the Binomial Model
was approximately HK$118,400,000 (2019: nil).

The Group determined that the sales contract with customers
requires the Group to complete the development of property
before transferring the legal title of the relevant property to
customers. The Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment from customers for performance completed to date
before the transfer of legal title of the relevant property to
customers. Consequently, the Group concluded that the timing of
transfer of properties is at the point in time when the property is
accepted by the customer, or deemed as accepted according to
the contract, whichever is earlier, which is the point in time when
the customer has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable arising
from sales of food and beverages, loan financing, financial leasing,

5. WA
WA ERNERBE  SXME - BAR
& BABERMEBBELOKA - K&

securities trading and properties development. An analysis of the BERNKAZ DA :
Group’s revenue is as follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Revenue from contracts with customer BHE—Z—NF=A=+—H
within the scope of HKFRS 15 for the IEFERBHT B R E %R
year ended 31 March 2019 F15RBEATF LA
Disaggregated by major products lines: RErEEREDE
Sales of food and beverages EHHE 2,548 2,617
Sales of properties SHEWZE 107,957 572,234
110,505 574,851
Revenue from other sources: E A AORKA -
Financial leasing income BEEEWA - 35
Dividend income B& 2 UL A 124 5,479
Interest income from provision of loan REEREE RS2 F EMWA
financing services 160,253 87,585
160,377 93,099
270,882 667,950

The Group initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method. Under this method, the comparative information is not
restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18 (see

Note 2).
* The amounts for the year ended 31 March 2018 were recognised under
HKAS18
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods delivered or provided.

During the year, the Group redefined its business divisions to
align with the Group’s operation development. Accordingly, the
segment information of certain subsidiaries previously included in
trading of wine business and finance leasing business has been
reclassified to “others business” segment. Accordingly, certain
comparative operating segment information has been reclassified
to conform with current year’s presentation.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

(i) Securities trading business;

(i)  Food and beverages — restaurant business;

(i)~ Loan financing business;

(iv)  Properties development business; and

(v)  Other business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # %2 — =

6.

A=z e Y

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEE®
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AREBZWAREEILZBETERIEENTE
reportable and operating segment: 2O
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZF-NF=ZA=1t—HLEFE
Food and
Securities  beverages - Loan Properties
trading restaurant financing development Other
business business business business business Total
#% 8- g% L Hitr
BEEK EBEY MEEYK REER £% ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT
Revenue KA
External revenue MR 124 2,548 160,253 107,957 = 270,882
Loss on disposal of financial assets ~ HENBRERRALE
at fair value through profit or loss REZSREBEZER (6,753) - - - - (6,753)
Loss arising from financial assets at ~ MERIRIR AL ER
fair value through profit or loss Z@mﬁﬁ%ﬁiz
B (49,687) = = = = (49,687)
Segment (loss) profit A8 (BB AR (56,316) (1,720) 157,173 18,930 118,067
Bank interest income FAMERA 27
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 2R 6,063
Finance costs E (159,466)
Loss arising from derivate ITEERAE
financial assets EEZER (107,214)
Unallocated corporate income AARARIBA 1,335
Unallocated corporate expenses RORARAL (33,651)
Loss before tax BRAEE (178,729)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HIF&

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHEEFE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DHEWAREE (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AREBZWAREEILBTERIEENTE
reportable and operating segment: AT
Year ended 31 March 2018 (Restated) HE-_T—\FZA=t+—HLEEFE(E)
Food and
Securities  beverages - Loan Properties
trading restaurant financing  development Other
business business business business business Total
Eeba 28— 5 ES ity
EEES ZERK HELH FEEH % B%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETTT BETTT BETT BETT
Revenue KA
External revenue MR 5,479 2,617 87,585 572,234 35 667,950
Loss on disposal of held for HERFEEREZER
trading investments (6,943) - - - - (6,943)
Loss arising from held for BIEEEREELE IR
trading investments (29,941) = = = = (29,941)
Segment (loss) profit 28 (BB 7R (37,464) (1,416) 83,794 42,674 35 87,623
Bank interest income FATHELA 498
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR MG 10,331
Finance costs BB (112,808)
Galn arising from derivate financial ~ $7E 4 RAE
assets EEzWa 90,185
Loss arising from derivate financlal {7448 EE
liabilties EEZER (96,575)
Loss on early redemption of REEOARRES
convertible bonds EE (34,838)
Shares of losses of associates BEHENR R 89)
Share-based payments expenses MIRD AR (118,400)
Unallocated corporate income APERAMA 54,403
Unallocated corporate expenses FARAFART (79,899)
Loss before tax BRiEIEE (199,658

S0 4 R A B
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of other income, gain on disposal
of subsidiaries, finance cost, certain central administration
expenses, gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivative financial assets and financial liabilities, loss on early
redemption of convertible bonds and shares of losses of
associates. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &ZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DFHEEFE)

AEBZEERABRERNREENBZD

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segment:

R -

2019 2018
—E-hF —N\&F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BEE T TT
(Restated)
(&7%))
Segment assets PEEE
Securities trading business BHEEEEK 35,638 63,035
Food and beverages — restaurant business B —BEXR 322 608
Loan financing business e GEE 2,151,463 1,546,227
Properties development business e E 581,561 516,597
Other business H b 2755 7,250 104,718
Total segment assets DEREEREE 2,776,234 2,231,185
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRAREE 50,651 824,191
Total consolidated assets EHEEEE 2,826,885 3,055,376
Segment liabilities ﬁﬁﬁ{*
Securities trading business BEEK - 12,357
Food and beverages - restaurant business ,«z@\_ BB S 3,806 4,222
Loan financing business B A T = -
Properties development business VSRR ERS 17,102 41,992
Other business H 2R = -
Total segment liabilities NIEAEEBTE 20,908 58,571
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBRARIAE 1,274,599 1,388,197
Total consolidated liabilities eHEERE 1,295,507 1,446,768

S50 18 T B A PR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z —E—hFE=H=+—HI FZF
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEE®

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSERBRASERSEERMS ¢

allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than o AEEENTEREEESE(ETHE
certain plant and equipment, certain deposits, prepayments KEE - BT HRHES  BNRERE
and other receivables, derivative financial instruments and IR ~ PTA SR T AN S KR
cash and cash equivalents; and SEBYHRIN) 0 R

e allliabilities are allocated to operating segments other than s FBEBREBENEELENE(ETHM
certain other payables, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities, FERTERSR - FEIHIIR - IRERIBAE -
amounts due to related companies, amount due to a FETREEE A TR « FEfN—REESFHIB
director and convertible bonds. R AT AR EHBRIN) o

152 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
- ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DFEER @

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_ZE—hF=A=1+—HLFE
Food and
Securities  beverages - Loan Property
trading  restaurants financing development Other
business business business business business  Unallocated Total
&5 8- BX nE
BEXK EEER REER BRER HthER o) ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT ST BET T BET T AU BETR
Amounts included in the meastre NS ERETNEE
of segment profit or loss or FRUNBEER
segment assets: TAZEE
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE
(other than financial instruments (TafEsRIA
and deferred taxation) RELHE) = 97 = - - 15 12
Written off of property, plant g BELEE
and equipment - - - - - 18 18
Depreciation of property, plant % BRRAENE
and equipment - 21 - 2,035 - 3,759 6,015
Depreciation of investment property REMENE 3 = = 951 - - 9t
Amortisation of prepaid lease BHRERTES
payments - - - 10 = = 10
Loss on disposal of financial assets fTEeHEEZARE
at fair value through proft or loss REEL/BE 6,753 3 = - - - 6,753
Loss arising from finencial assets at far ~ FMERERAS ERE
value through profit or loss LEREEEL B 49,687 = 3 S - - 49,687
Amounts regularly provided to the Eﬁﬂ}ﬂﬁ%i ae
CODM but not included in the KA ENE
measure of segment profit or loss ﬂ e 2-Eh
or segment assets: BERURTALZ
28
Bank Interest income BITHERA - - - = = (287) (237)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBL R e - - - = = (6,963) (6,963)
Finance costs RHERK - - - - - 159,466 159,466
Loss arising from derivative fEeBAE
financial assets EL7ER - - - - - 107,214 107,214
Income tax expenses FEHER = = 2,214 16,565 - - 38,719

S5 8 4 10 4% A PR 4 )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z -

6.

A=z e Y

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER@®
Other segment information (Continued) Hib o ¥EER (@)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Restated) BE-_ZE—)\E=A=+—HBItEE (&%)
Food and
Securities  beverages - Loan Property
frading  restaurants financing ~ development Other
business business business busingss business  Unallocated Total
&5 8- B3 nF
BEXH L HEXH EES HthxH AR fecs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT AT BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure REEHEHER
of segment proft or loss or BRINEAER
segment assets: TAZEE
Additions to non-current assets FTHEERE
(other than financial instruments (TRfEERIA
and deferred taxation) RERE) - 6 3,873 259 = 5,830 9,968
Depreciation of property, plant 0% BERZENE
and equipment 10 606 2,332 2,146 - 1,409 6,508
Depreciation of investment property REMENE - = = 843 - 843
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments NN Z#E = - - 7 - - 7
Loss on disposal of held for trading HEREEEREVER
investments 6,943 = = = = = 6,943
Loss arising from held for trading BEEEREEL BR
investments 29,941 - - - - - 29,941
Impairment loss on available-for-sale MEHESRER
financial assets JHEEE - - - - - 6,059 6,059
Amounts regularly provided to the THREFTELE
CODM but not included in the RRERNTEDE
measure of segment proft or loss B eI BEE
or segment assets: RUARSTACEE :
Bank interest income FITHERA = = = = = (498) (498)
Gain on disposal of subsioliaries HENBAR 2N - - - - - (10,331) (10,331)
Finance costs RHERKK - - - - - 112,803 112,803
Gain arising from derivative financal it eRAEEE R
assets = = = = = (90,189) (90,189)
Loss arising from derivative financl feRAREL BR
liabilities - - - - - 9,575 96,575
Loss on early redemption of REBETARES
convertible bonds ZER - - - - - 34,838 34,838
Shares of losses of associates NG = - - - - 89 89
Income tax expenses FSHER - - 11,595 10,481 - = 22,076

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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5 DF 4 B i R B sk

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HI F&
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER@
Geographical information thEE R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country of REBEBMNNES (FIERR HE)
domicile), the PRC and the United States of America (the “USA”). R ERERE TR ([ER]) -
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers BEAEBERBINEFL ZWAZ B RHZE
is presented based on the location of the operations. Information LREMEY - BEAEBR ZIERBEE (S
about the Group’s non-current assets (other than financial FT AN 2ERHIREEMEIBEME S
instrument) is presented based on the geographical location of the 5l o
assets.

Revenue from external customers

REMPEF 2 BA
31 March
31 March 2019 2018*
—E-N\EF
“E-NE=ZHB=+-H =A=t—-8*
Revenue from

contract with From other
customers sources Total Total
EFEHBMA REHMRR @t Bat

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ik e BETT BETL BT

Hong Kong (country of domicile) 5 (FERR /&) - 38,583 38,583 36,916
The PRC F 110,505 121,794 232,299 631,034
110,505 160,377 270,882 667,950
* The amounts for the year ended 31 March 2018 were recognised under * HE—_Z—)\F=ZA=1+—HItFEZEE
HKAS18 RIEBR EFTERIZE 18 57HER ©
Non-current assets
FREBEE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ETN\E
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Hong Kong (country of domicile) B (FIERRHE) 4,652 6,408
The PRC F 37,578 45,847
The USA ES - 24
42,230 52,274

AR IR A PR T
SRR 00
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHEEFE)

Geographical information (Continued) i EER (&)

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 REBREZ_ZT—NWFE_ZE—/\F=A4

March 2019 and 2018. =+—HIEFEITEANPREDREE -

Information about major customers EBETFTERXFHNER

The Group has a large number of customers, none of whom REEHEEAERF  BEERNEFERA

contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. EEWAR10% A E °

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Efthlas
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T

Bank interest income RATH S e 237 498

Exchange gain, net b i as - FEE = 45,287

Rental income from investment property (Note i) 1&& 2 & U A (FizEi) 276 88

Consulting service income BRI ARFSURA - 7,812

Others Hip 1,059 1,216

1,572 54,901

Note: MIE -

(i) The gross and net rental income from investment property for the 0] REBE_Z—NF=ZA=1+—HILFE  £&
year ended 31 March 2019 was amounted to HK$276,000 (2018: MEZ e WA ERE K FEE A B 276,000 7T
HK$88,000). (ZZ—\F : #¥88,0007T) °

8. FINANGE COSTS 8. RAMAK

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on margin loans payable ERESERF A 166 2,673

Effective interest expenses on convertible AR E S 2 BERF B
bonds (Note 30) F X (FF5E30) 159,300 109,911
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE - 219
159,466 112,803

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

9. KRTAIERE

BRI AT E IR E R T 5 &R -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments ~ EERFE2THAEM S
(Note 10) (FF5E10) 8,224 11,450
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and EMETHA(TEIEESR
chief executive’s emoluments) FETBAEMNE) 17,164 10,559
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIKEAGEIRR(TBREES
(excluding directors’ and chief REZITHRAEMS)
executive’s emoluments) 450 478
Total staff costs B TR A BEE 25,838 22,487
Amount of inventories recognised as ERERAHT 2 GEESRE
an expense 46,640 520,908
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN & 1,800 2,000
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TES R E (T R 70 71
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - E k&2 ITE 6,015 6,503
Depreciation of investment property KEETE 951 843
Operating lease payments in respect of rented  HXFR E{I 5B ot E W2
premises under minimum lease payments BT SR 18,950 20,448
Net exchange losses b 5 F E 18 4,563 -
Share-based payments expenses granted BT B 2 AR D B ERE R
to consultants (Note) F sz (Ff5E) = 118,400
Written off of property, plant and equipment WEEE - BB MR 18 -

Note: It represents share options granted to external consultants in exchange
for services rendered to the Group. Please refer to Note 35 for details.

FfaE « EARRINTER RN 2 BAE - WREIRAASR
B RS - S BRR2HMESS ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z —E—hFE=H=+—HI FZF
10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EEREEBTHAB ZHBA K
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ EEZH=
EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (@) EBERFETHAEZHE
emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and BEXHRENARFEEREEITHRABRS
chief executive of the Company are as follows: BZBMEmT -
For the year ended 31 March 2019
HZ-Z-NE=A=t-ALEFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contribution Total
3 RINEF
e HiER FHEIR a5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTR BRI BRTR ARTR

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect SEAERERAR
of a person’s services as a director, ENBLRES
whether of the Company and its PRt 2 RIBME 5
subsidiary undertakings bz Be
Executive Director: HTES:
Li Kwong Yuk B - 4,166 47 4,213
Su Xiaonong g - 466 36 502
Zheng Xiantao B4E - - - -
Li Zhongxia (appointed on 12 April 2018) ZHE(R-Z-N\F
MA+-BEEE) - 1,326 18 1,344
Wang Zhi (appointed on 12 April 2018) FRZE-N\E
MA+=REZT) - 1,745 - 1,745
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES .
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki BEE 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wai EER 150 - - 150

420 7,103 101 8,224

15 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
58 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

10. EERTERTHAE 2% B

A K

BE Z2M< @\
(a) EERFETHAEZME @)

EXNHENARBTEZTREIETHRA
BEEBZMET

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-T-\FZA=T-HLEE

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees  other benefits contribution Total
Hek RINER
ik Ethig R &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect REAEARR AR
of a person’s services as a director, HWBARES
whether of the Company and its Friett 2 RN
subsidiary undertakings bz Be
Executive Director: HTES:
Li Kwong Yuk e = 4,128 47 4,175
Su Xiaonong BER = 442 36 478
Cheung Sze Ming KB (RZ2-N\F
(Resigned on 17 March 2018) =RAt+tHEE) - 1,406 18 1,424
Zheng Xiantao gz - 3,138 - 3,138
Liu Yutong 2By (R -2 \F
(Resigned on 13 February 2018) —AT=HET) - 1,815 - 1,815
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki BEE 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wai LR 150 = — 150
420 10,929 101 11,450

SR8 8 O 5% A PR )
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE —F—hN#F=HA=+—HI F&E

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. “%&I ‘Iﬂ?/\E\Z 7 B
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ BE 2= (4

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

() EBREFETHRAEZHME (@)

emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Mr. Zheng Xiantao, the director of the Company (2018:
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors)
waived or agreed to waive emoluments of approximately
HK$2,880,000 paid by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2019. No emoluments were paid or payable by the
Group to the directors and chief executive of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three directors

(2018: four directors) of the Company, details of whose

emoluments are set out in Note 10(a) above. The

emoluments paid to the remaining two (2018: one) highest

paid individuals are as follows:

.“%&IﬁﬁﬁAEZ%M\
BE 2BiE

b) EEZME

hEREFALTEREARR=ZE(=ZF
—N\F:OR)EF REMeZFHE
5 EXE10(a) o XN T TRA
—EN\F —R)REFATZHE
LI

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-)N\E

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 4,625 1,186
Retirement benefit scheme contribution R {REFIET &4 =% 33 18
4,658 1,204

The emoluments of the remaining two (2018: one) highest

paid individuals fall within the following bands:

BRTIME(ZTE-N\F: —R)BESHA
TZHMEI D R TIIHE

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000

HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000

751,000,001 7T —
75 1,500,000 7T
751 1,500,001 7T —
75 2,000,000 7T
7% 2,500,001 7T —
75 3,000,000 7T

2019 2018
—®-hE  STN\F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EBEAH BB AH

- 1

1 -

1 —

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the two years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

REBE-_ZF-NER-_FT-N\F=A
:+—Elﬂ:ﬁﬁ1l¢ﬁ£§ﬂf‘§] » REERE
ENSENESHA LIS - ERKS
AR IIAR SR B ) 22 - SHER
BERA1E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #H#Z _-F—ANF=A=+—HIFE
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11. FTIiSHE A
2019 2018
—g-hE  —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T
Current income tax & RIS
Hong Kong 55 - 94
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PR EATSR
([Z2FEH]) 35,892 17,965
The PRC LAT o+ i E R - 333
35,892 18,392
Over-provision in prior years B EERERE
Hong Kong BB = (169)
- (169)
Deferred tax (Note 31) IRER T (MHFES1) 2,887 3,853
Income tax expenses s &R 38,779 22,076

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

U

(i)

)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. Since
group entities are not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime, Hong Kong Profits tax was calculated at a flat
rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits (2018:
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 as
the assessable profits is wholly (2018: partially) absorbed by
tax losses brought forwards.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”") and Bermuda, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the BVI and Bermuda.

Overseas profits tax, the USA taxation which was calculated
based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on
the estimated assessable profits. No provision of overseas
profits tax has been made, as the Group did not have any
assessable profits subject to overseas profits tax for both
years.

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties
developed by the Group for sale, at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% (2018: ranging from 30% to
60%) on the appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations, is calculated based on the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
cost of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.

1. FIISHE R @)

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

R-ZE—N\E=A=+—08  FH%
BB T —FERBUER]) (F75R)
BHER([EHIEZR]) - 5| AFEH
ERRE o AEHIERN=_E—\F=A
T N\BEEEXNAEE  URBBEAE
FHTE - BREMNGEHEMRS - 68
HEBEEE S B 2,000,000 TiEF 2
T % 58.25% + T A i 7 ¥ 2,000,000
TR Z TR A16.5% - HREEEE
TEEFISTHERBRHIELR - BEFE
T Bt (5t FE SR TR F 12 16.5% HY & —
HEFE(ZZE—N\F : 16.5%) - EJE
R m A e AR B IEBEEE (=
—N\F : Bp)HEiE - MUEHREE=
T-NERZE-/\F=A=+—HL
FREBBISTELEE

REBPEARKMBEEEFAESTOR( £
EREHE]D REEMRBIAEK
> PENBARZREE —FTF/\F
—A—HER25% °

REXBHEBARES ((RBEBARE
5D RBREIEOIRBAN - NEEH
ARNEBERREE RBREZEM
PRS®

BINFIBHAEBERIE - THRIBN B
ENERE R EET ERTORMNBA 2 HE
G l==)iN S Nl IR
FBIMNNISI Z ERERBOER - R
EELEINIGHEE -

B IR ER IR ASBEERIEHE
ZME - ARERE30% E60% (—F
— )\ : 30% £ 60%) ¥ + 3L EREEL
Y RIERRL - EetEIETIAN
EVFPAERAR AR (B
T E AR MY ERRMS)
fEH

S5 8 4 10 4% A PR 4 )
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 7 i 3 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

11.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as

follows:

FTSTHER ()

AERREHERRES HRERIIRZHRHR
RIERERRINT -

2019 2018
—E-hF = )\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Loss before tax BRI RIES 1R (173,729) (199,558)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate BT BE 25%
of 25% (2018: 25%) T )\F : 25%)
HE 7 HIE (43,432) (49,890)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT N 2 RIS 2& 55,562 64,705
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRGNS 2 R & (40) (28,121)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REER 7 TR IS 2 3,988 7,856
Tax effect of deductible temporary REERR IR TR =% 2
differences not recognised Miss 8 = 12
Utilisation of tax losses previously AT RER ZHIEEE
not recognised (96) (71)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences & 5c Bl < fE R 80 7] TR ET
previously not recognised 5P (125) -
Effect of tax exemption granted (Note ii) PP R 2 (MsEii) (20) (30)
Over-provision in prior years IR T E B = (169)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEEEREENEAR
operating in other jurisdictions TR RZE 22,942 27,534
LAT THEET - 333
EIT effect of LAT TR ET 2 BESRTE = (83)
Income tax expenses FiiSti& R 38,779 22,076

Note:

(i) The domestic tax rate in the PRC is used as it is where the operation of

the Group is substantially based.

(ii) A tax concession of 75%, subject to a ceiling of HK$20,000 (2018:
HK$30,000) per company. Tax exemptions represented reduction of
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year of assessment of 2018/2019 and
2017/2018 by 75%, subject to a ceiling of HK$20,000 and HK$30,000

respectively per company.

(iii) Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 31.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2019, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period (2018: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12.

13.

I B
REBEZ-_TE—NF=A=1+—"HILFEAH
SR SRR S 0 ThE B RS HIRIA
REZTARE (ZZ—N\F : &) -

FhER
ADRFEE ABESREARREEEIETE
A TR E

2019 2018

—E-hE —ETN\E

HK$°000 HK$’'000

Loss BB BT T BT
Loss for the year attributable to the KAREA ANEEFEESE

owners of the Company 212,508 221,629

’000 '000

Number of shares BRiEE T B T
Weighted average number of ordinary SAEERERREEER

shares for the purpose of basic TE AR INE 5 B
and diluted loss per share 7,092,359 5,851,539

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
conversion or exercise of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds, share options and call option from issuance of convertible
bonds since they would result in decrease in loss per share for
both years.

The dilutive loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018 are the same since the computation of diluted loss per share
does not assume the conversion or exercise of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds, share options and call option from
issuance of convertible bonds as they would result in decrease in
loss per shares.

AEEREEERE Y BRREBBRIITER

RAZ WARTTEARRES - B ET
AHEESZ RERE  RARZFEHRR
TESEHMEFEZSHRERRD -

RBE_Z-NFR-_ZE-N\F=A=1—
AR SRESEHIEMAE - THaNFE
BRESBHBRY BRI ABRIITEARFZ
AT A R ES R BETAIRRES 2B
BHE N REE - RASRFEBRAITER
EHERERRD o

ST 18 4 T B A PR
e 7L5|‘35|“3$ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z —E—hFE=H=+—HI F&F

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND INVESTMENT

14. WEMENRERREDE

PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Completed Investment
investment property under
property construction Total
BERTRANE ERIREME st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
COST D%
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZ—+FWNA—H - 18,179 18,179
Additions NE - 244 244
Transfer from investment property ERAEERENE
under construction 18,423 (18,423) -
Exchange difference EHER 1,990 = 1,990
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE—\$=HA=1+—H
k=ZF-N\FNA—H 20,413 - 20,413
Exchange difference I =% (1,326) - (1,326)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1+—H 19,087 - 19,087
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt &
At 1 April 2017 —Z—+tE5MA—H - - -
Charge for the year FEME 843 = 843
Exchange difference PN 46 - 46
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE—-\E=F=1+—8”
k=E-N\EMA—H 889 - 889
Charge for the year FERY 951 = 951
Exchange difference EXEE (65) - (69)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1+—H 1,785 - 1,785
CARRYING VALUES HREE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NAE=A=1+—H 17,302 - 17,302
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\$=HA=1+—H 19,524 = 19,524

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31
March 2019 was approximately HK$24,612,000 (2018:
HK$23,845,000). As at 31 March 2019, the fair value has been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out by an independent
valuer, not connected with the Group, International Valuation
Limited (2018: CHFT Advisory and Appraisal Ltd).

1 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND INVESTMENT 14, B &8 ME R EEEE W E(5®)
PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION (Continued)

The fair value was determined based on the comparison approach NREDNBEYEEA2EZA BN BYEZE
with reference to the realised price or current asking prices for MERESGHEETE  UHmEREEZT
the comparable properties and adjusted to take into account HHEERABRARBRAREBEREYERE
the market expectation from property investors to reflect factors ZHEE o IAREHIE  [GERTEEE) o

specific to the Group’s investment property. There has been no
change from the valuation techniques used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best REHEZEMEN AL ER  ZEMEIH
use of the property is their current use. BREEAEAKRERNAR -
Details of the Group’s investment property and information about REBNREHRARNIREMEFSBREBRA
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as AEFEEHESOT ¢
followings:
Fair value
As at
31 March 2019
ARE

Level 3 R-E—NF
FE=HFA =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT BT

Kindergarten located in the PRC MNRAREZ ) RE 24,612 24,612

Fair value

As at

31 March 2018

NI

Level 3 R \F

E=%HA =A=+—8

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T E¥EFIT

Kindergarten located in the PRC Rz 7 E 23,845 23,845
The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line L B E B REEE 20 FEFHRYT

basis over the lease term of 20 years. =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % » MENKG

168

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
improvements and office Motor
Buildings  and equipment equipment vehicles Total
BENE K RER
B  RBRR NG e EEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BB
COSsT %
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+FMA—-H 18,307 7,106 10,275 9,798 45,486
Additions AE = 3,565 347 5,812 9,724
Exchange difference ERZER 1,091 307 1,044 449 3,791
At31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018~ RZZ—\E=A=1—H
k=E-\ENA—H 20,298 10,978 11,666 16,059 59,001
Additions NE = 83 29 - 112
Written off fiisa - - (116) - (116)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) WERB AR (337) - - (82) - (82)
Exchange difference ERES (1,318) (434) (701) (298) (2,751)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 18,980 10,627 10,796 1,761 56,164
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z:HfE
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+EMA—A 3,244 6,058 6,016 5,722 21,040
Charge for the year FERT 992 2,209 1,390 1,912 6,503
Exchange difference ERZER 407 257 638 235 1,587
At31 March2018.and 1 Apri 2018~ R=ZE—\E=A=1—H
RZZ-\FMA—H 4,643 8,524 8,044 7,869 29,080
Charge for the year FERY 046 1,318 1,625 2,126 6,015
Written off i - - (%) - (%)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HERBAR (HE37) - = (67) = (67)
Exchange difference EHER (299) (205) 431) (189) (1,118)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=RA=T-H 5,290 9,637 9,073 9,812 33,812

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

15. W% ~ MR MR @)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures,

improvements and office
Buildings  and equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total

BENE K RER
B  RBRR WAERME e EEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BB

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=R=1+—-H 13,690 990 1,723 5,949 22,352
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\$=R=1+-H 15,655 2,454 3,622 8,190 29,921

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking into account of
their estimated residual values, at the following rates per annum:
Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter

of lease term

or 3 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 33 /5%
Motor vehicles 20%

bz - BB MR B TV R EAET
RERRERETE  IRAZFEERMT :

BF
HEYEREE

204
BBHEEF s
SFZEIEE
33/,%

20%

S 4 R A B
SRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI FF

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FENHEENT
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
ST 5T ST T

Leasehold land held under medium-term lease W B AR 493545 2

in the PRC and are analysed for reporting HETHERERA R
purposes as follows: LA
Current asset mENE E 70 75
Non-current asset FEMBENEE 2,576 2,829
2,646 2,904
17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. EEARYZE
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tEFMHAE—H 118,660
Additions NE 265
Exchange difference fEH =% 12,918
At 31 March 2018 and RZZE—-NF=ZA=+—HK
1 April 2018 R=ZE—N\FMNA—H 131,843
Additions INE 274,464
Exchange difference e =5 (7,641)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+—H 398,666
Properties under development are classified as current assets as EEYMESTEARTBHEE AN E@EY %
the construction period of the relevant properties development IXEIE B B EHITEE — RS EAEN T ©

project is expected to be completed in the normal operating cycle.

1 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HIF&

18. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are situated on a
leasehold land in the PRC. All the completed properties held for
sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/
HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

18.

19.

FEHENE R TR
REBREEE YRR ANRE L -
FER L ENERT YRR AR
BFERE 2 BIREFIR -

AHfHESRMEE FHEEER

B/ MERERANEREEZS
BLE E

31 March

2018

—E-N\F

=A=+—H

HK$’000

BT T

a) Available-for-sale financial assets a) AELESREE

— Equity securities listed in Australia (Note) — BN BT 2 RN B S (FisE) 65,807

31 March
2018

= )\F
E/A=ET—E
HK$'000
BT

b) Held for trading investments b) FEEERE

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LT ZBAES

63,035

S8 8 O 5% A PR )
SRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ - FE—HNF=H=+—HIFZF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/
HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS/

10. L ESRMEE BIEEEK
B/ PEZERALBEREZS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) BhEE ()
31 March 1 April
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
=A=t+-AH MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
¢) Financial assets at FVTPL o) REaERAREBEEREZ
SREE
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL ~ H/BIRNEHRIZA L ERIE
AEZEMERE
Listed equity securities held for trading: RHEBEE LmkAES
- Listed in Australia (Note) — BN T () 20,548 65,807
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLEM 14,608 63,035
— Listed in PRC — BT 482 =
35,638 128,842

Note: The available-for-sale financial assets represented the long term
investment were reclassified as held for trading. During the year ended
31 March 2019, such equity securities were expected to be sold in the
foreseeable future.

The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Australian
Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets and held for trading investments which have
been pledged as security for the margin loans payable was
approximately HK$47,577,000 (2019: nil) and HK$63,035,000
(2019: nil) respectively.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF S B A W
For the year ended 31 March 2019 &ZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 10. At HESRMEE FEEER
HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS/ B/ REREERANEEREEZS
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) BhE EE ()
Included in the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL (2018: available- AT AR EE st B AN 2 BT
for-sale financial assets) are the following amounts denominated BENSEFTANEENREBERIZANER
in currency other than the functional currency of the relevant BramBE(ZE—\F: AifttEsmE
group entity: BE):
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
=A=t+-AH =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
- AUD — BT 20,548 65,807
-RMB - AR 482 -
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Food and beverages ZE8R 239 387
Wine JBIR 7,250 7,250
7,489 7,637

8 B4 R 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z-—F—AF=H=+—HIFZE
21. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS 21. B FEUAR R - AN RIE L7 T
He
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEET T ook S n
Prepayments to suppliers XA TR 2 TR KRIE 3,185 137,475
Deposits paid EffiEke 19,004 23,594
Other receivables Hh IR 3R 3,677 4,725
Consideration receivables (Note 37) B E (F1sE37) 172 312,250
26,038 478,044
Analysed for reporting purposes: ERERE 2D
Non-current assets EMENEE 4,528 1,721
Current assets MENEE 21,510 476,323
26,038 478,044

174 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

22. EWWE R KA B

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BEET T BRI

Loan receivables TEWE X 2,009,816 1,532,970
Interest receivables JFE L B 141,647 13,257
2,151,463 1,546,227

The loans and interest receivables are due from independent
third parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due dates
started from June 2019 to March 2020 (2018: started from May
2018 to March 2019). The interest rates on the loan and interest
receivables are fixed ranging from 8% to 9.2% per annum (2018:
5% to 24% per annum).

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables
presented based on the loan drawn down date and interests
accrued at the end of the reporting period:

FEUE R R F S Ty 55 =5 2 F08
AEREREABEEANAE T — LT
NAREZE-TF=AI(ZT-N\F: 7
—E- \FERhARE_TE-AE=AIL) - &
WEFRRFEZHNEBEENTREFENE
92% (ZZT—N\F : BF 5% E24%) °

FEWEF KM BN ImERRRIBEEFIZERA
YA WL EZREROTAT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Within 90 days 0 HEA 522,357 489,556
91 days to 180 days 91 H=Z180H 1,274,485 232,031
181 days to 365 days 181 HZ365H 246,758 569,350
Over 365 days 365 A E 107,863 255,290
2,151,463 1,646,227

The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan and
interest receivables are due for settlement at the date specified
in the respective loan agreements. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

No loan and interest receivable are past due as the end of the
reporting period of the year 2018 for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.

FARBKERENEZAEEBERRERP
REERBRENETEZ AHZIHIREE - &
SEYERZFERT A TR

HAR —ZF— N\FERERBER G ER
KFB@a - AEEYETTRERREE

S 18 4 T B A PR W)
SR JUEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ - FE—HF=H=+—HI FZF

22. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the directors
of the Company apply 12-months ECL prescribed by HKFRS
9. The credit risk of loan and interest receivables is considered
as low since initial recognition as loan and interest receivables
at the end of both reporting periods are not past due. There
was no recent history of default of the debtors and they have
good settlement record with the Group. To measure the ECL
of loan and interest receivables, loan and interest receivables
are assessed individually by the management of the Group,
based on the financial background, financial condition and the
historical settlement records, including the past due dates, of
each borrower and reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic data that is available without
undue cost or effort.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting period
in assessing the loss allowance for loan and interest receivables.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HI F&

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 23. [ R EHERIA
The Group is carrying on financial leasing business during the AREBREXNEFHERBEHEEE - HAET
year. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the AR EMNERNETH BHEE - WHREEM
contract date over the lease terms. HR Q43 Tt o
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Analysed as: DT
Current MENEL - 97,468

= 97,468
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. FEYmE R ERIE (&)

Present value of minimum lease

Minimum lease payments payments
RERELTH BERENRZERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\E —E-NF —T-)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT BETT BT
Finance lease receivables comprise:  JEWEIAREZIEEHE
Within one year i - 97,468 - 97,468
Less: unearned finance income B AREARE KA - - N/A N/A
~ER TER
Present value of minimum lease U EREN R 2 RE
payment receivables - 97,468 - 97,468

Effective interest rate of the above finance lease ranges from
6.15% per annum.

The fair value of finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2018
is estimated to be approximately HK$97,468,000 using 6.15%
discount rate based on quoted one year swap rate and adding a
credit margin that reflects the secured nature of the receivables
balance.

At 31 March 2018, finance lease receivables are secured over the
machineries and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted
to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

£ OF B B e 3 B

F-NFZA=—AUFE

24, PTES T A

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Convertible bonds: R ES
Early redemption options (Note i) IR RE O HARE (FRED) 6,060 142,216
6,060 142,216

Notes:

Early redemption options

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group issued convertible
bonds with coupon rate of 7% per annum at a total principal value
of HK$630,000,000. The convertible bonds contained a clause of
early redemption by the Group. The aggregate fair values of the early
redemption options of approximately HK$53,350,000 have been
recognised under “derivative financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position on the corresponding subscription
date and reassessed at 31 March 2019 and 2018, amounting to
approximately HK$6,060,000 (2018: HK$142,216,000), resulting in a
total fair value loss of approximately HK$107,214,000 (2018: fair value
gain of HK$90,185,000) being recognised under “Loss (gain) arising
from derivative financial assets” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

The below table reconciled the amount of the derivative financial assets
on early redemptions options during the year and details are set out in
Note 30:

PG

TR o HitE
REBEZEZT—\FZA=+—HILEFE £&

BT & #8508 /75 630,000,000 7T © FE
5%7%7%27%%6% REBEDHEZ A
[B4E 58478 53,350,000 7T B R HEFEREE B
EA/\P‘-FEﬁ%ﬁK/R?%W [PTESRVEE | B Mg
wjﬁﬁf‘fi hWER—ZE—NEFE=ZA=+—H
EHAHE AA)E 56,060,000 7T (ZZF— N\ 4 :
7515142,216,0007T) * BHREBE_T—NF
FZZT-\F=ZA=+—HIEFEZEHES
RITTESRMEEEAZBRE(KS) ] BT
RANBEEEERELB107,214,0007T (ZF
—\F : AR EWKEEE 90,185,000 7T) °

TREERFANREEOHEGITESREE
2 &R RFFIBENMIEESO ¢

2019 2018

—E2-hF —TN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

At the beginning of the financial year R E A 142,216 32,988
Initial recognition from issuance of convertible bonds 7T AJ A (E % ¥ HER - 53,350
Early redemption of convertible bonds R EE AR ES - (23,556)
Conversion of convertible bonds SR AR E S (28,942) (10,751)
Fair value (loss) gain from remeasurement REEFTEZAAE(BE) K= (107,214) 90,185
At the end of the financial year BT EER 6,060 142,216

S 4 R A B
SR JUEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand
and cash at financial institutions with an original maturity of three
months or less:

25. WE NIRRT FEY

REeRBRSFEVERERTRE  FHEERS
KRB HEIR A =8 A AR 2 7R & B
BHEWT

2019 2018

—E-NE T )N\&F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Cash at bank and in hand RITBEeLFHERE 29,769 282,974
Cash at financial institutions REBERE 2R 75 43
29,844 283,017

Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at market
rates which range from 0.01% to 0.25% (31 March 2018: 0.01%
to 0.35%) per annum.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$28,695,000 (2018: HK$68,316,000) are placed with banks
in the PRC. The remittance of those funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

Included in the cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of relevant group entities:

BOHES AN eREBZREENTEF
0.01%ZE0.25% (Z_E—N\F=A=+—8:
0.01% £ 0.35% ) 2 THFKT & »

AEBZ2HSRASSEMHBE
28,695,0007T( =Z— \ 4 : #%68,316,000
o) IIFERP B ZR1T - S A eELF
BIZA X PR AP BU IS B 1 2 FNEE B PR )

BREEEEERIEEEN B kBeE
EBMEETIIERTHENEEE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

AUD RIT 36 69
RMB AR 89 95
UsD ETT 155 217
Others EAh 114 129

1 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
80 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



20.

27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

MARGIN LOANS PAYABLE

As at 31 March 2018, the margin loans payable was secured
by the listed equity securities placed in a financial institution
held under the margin accounts with total market value of
approximately HK110,612,000 (see Note 19).

The margin loans payable carried interest at the broker’s cost
of fund plus 3% per annum. The margin loan payable was fully
settled during the year of 2019.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY/
AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are
repayable on demand.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

26. ERHRFBEEEN
R-ZZE—N\FE=ZA=+—H MERLBELY
B #110,612,000 7T 2 FER R B & B 5K T5 A
RESEFE T ZREMEEERZ L
TR A RS A B (BisE19) ©

BNRECEREFRECHNLLERSIN
3%:TE - BNRFBEERERN_Z—NEFE
5‘1%(,21:!/%(’

27. BN —[E A&
EFIA

ZRERRE - BEARAREREERE

NEl/ EN—RE

28. B MHMERNERR EHEE

31 March 1 April 31 March

2019 2018 2018

—E-hF —N\& —N\&F

=BA=+—H WMA—HB =A=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T ST BT

Trade payables =) AL 2,099 4,430 4,430

Receipts in advance TR RIE - - 41,760

Accrual JEIRE A 54,620 60,743 60,743
Other payable (Note) H{th FETBR IR

(B3 40,230 36,680 36,680

96,949 101,853 143,613

Contract liabilities AHBE 18,809 41,760 =

Note: Included in other payables was an amount of approximately
HK$6,240,000 (2018: HK$6,240,000) which represented the
consideration payable to the non-controlling interests in respect of
the acquisition of the remaining 37.5% of issued share capital of a
subsidiary on 11 January 2016. The amount is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

MaE : E b M BRF B IE LB % 6,240,000L (= F
—\& : #B#6,240,0007T) * FERR-ZZE—X
F—A+—BRE—HEHBARIRTI7.5% 2
BB ITIR AT AT T I bl i e 2 (M8 - 3Z
SIEAERR - Tt B RIREREE -

RBEHRR - BEZERNEFIRERBHZR
ZIRERDMTEAT

S AR R AR
=F— hiﬁiﬁﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 DF 9 5 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (Continued)

28.

B 5 K E A0 S BR K ()

2019 2018

—E-hF —ETN\E

HK$°000 HK$’'000

BT T BT

Within 30 days 30BN = -
31 to 60 days 31£60H = 336
61 to 90 days 61290 H = -
Over 181 days 181 HEA E 2,099 4,094
2,099 4,430

The average credit term on purchase of goods is 60-180 days
(2018: 60-180 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.

Contract liabilities represent advance received for the sales
of properties and restaurant business. These advances are
recognised as contract liabilities until the sales transactions are
made.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 March 2019
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018 is
approximately HK$41,760,000. There was no revenue recognised
in the current year that related to performance obligations that
were satisfied in prior year.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FBEERZFHEEHARE0E180H (=
—/)\F : 60HZE180H) - AEBEFIE 75
FEBERER  BRAAEMNZKENMEED
PR ANEE ©

ANBREERYFEE REREGRE 2
- REBFHARBNEE  EEFELH

PN,
~

R

o

o S o)

N

REBE-_Z—hAhF=ZA=+—HILFEER
ZWABER=ZE—\FOUA—RBZEH8
E#)7EE 41,760,000 7T ° AFE W EpLEE
FERTRAOEZTEEEMERLA -



29. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

29. MR

Number of shares

Share capital

MR & H B AR
2019 2018 2019 2018
—B-hE T\ ZB-hF —T)N\F
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR Tk BET T BT
Authorised ordinary shares of BREES%0.017T
HK$0.01 each: IR BB -
At the beginning and the end of the ~ REARFEEFIMER
financial year 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares &R EEE 0.01 702
of HK$0.01 each: BEETRAE LR
At the beginning of the financial year — R BT EFEF 4] 6,943,972 5,318,163 69,440 53,182
— Share options exercised (Note i) —BiTEmERE () 11,700 553,785 117 5,538
— Issue of shares upon conversion of — — B A[ AR (E 4
convertible bonds (Note i) BT (P aEii) 395,600 58,824 3,956 588
— Shares repurchased and cancelled  — & {738 [E K it 4
(Note iii) (BFF=E i) (23,200) (58,800) (232) (588)
~ Issue of shares (Note iv) — 817 IRt (M v) - 1,072,000 - 10,720
At the end of the financial year REBEEFR 7,328,072 6,943,972 73,281 69,440

S 4 R A B

SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 DF 9 5 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. I

Notes: BEE -

0)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, options were exercised to
subscribe for 11,700,000 (2018: 553,785,000) ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$4,591,000 (2018: HK$266,973,000) in which
approximately HK$117,000 (2018: HK$5,538,000) was credited
to share capital and the balance of approximately HK$4,474,000
(2018: HK$261,435,000) was credited to the share premium
account. Share option reserve of approximately HK$2,073,000 (2018:
HK$118,655,000) has been transferred correspondingly to the share
premium account in according with policy set out in Note 34.

All the new shares issued during both year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$336,250,000 were converted into approximately
395,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount of
HK$288,078,000 in convertible bond reserves was transferred within
equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$50,000,000 were converted into approximately
58,824,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount
of HK$46,002,000 was transferred in convertible bond reserves within
equity.

All the new shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

0)

REE-_FT-NF=A=+—BHUIFEXN B
BRAECEITHE - LAREEA A A)11,700,000 f&
(ZZ— )\4 : 553,785,000 1% ) AR E1E 5 1
0.01702 EiBA% - BREL A 4,501,0007T
(ZZ— \F : B¥266,973,0007T) * EF L
7B¥117,000 70 (ZF — N\ F : % 5,538,000
T0) BERT AR R REEX B 4,474,000 T (=
T — )\ % : ¥ 261,435,0007C ) B 5t AR5
RIERR - BIERHELB 2,073,000 L (=2
—\4F : 51118,655,0007T ) EAR BT E34FF
B BOR AR =R BB -

Rz EFE TR RTE AR ES 7 B &
RARNZERSMA -

REBEE-_FT-—NAF=ZA=+—BLEFEE" K
& % 5 75 # 336,250,000 T Z A] IR fE 5 B
RETEBRESRAEKSS TEER AL
395,600,000 A% & fx ™ 1B /& #%0.01 T 2 L i@
A% o E It - 75 288,078,000 TEARE RN Z
AR E S o

BE-_T-N\E=ZA=+—R0 £&8BAB
# 50,000,000 7T 2 A AR (& % B 12 & & 15 32
BEAREN 0.85 T4 558,824,000 i
BREEBE0OI T2 EBR - Bt - B
46,002,000 TTBE A f s A 2 AR B o

R EFEEITE A AR D ES T mis 8
BEBRNZERFHA -



29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

29. MR ()
sk : (48)

During the year 2019, the Company repurchased its own shares through iy MZZT—NEFE AREEBABEBHIMEL
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as follows: HEEHRKRMHMT :
No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
SREE
B¥0.01 T2
Month of repurchase BE A 5B ZEREAE BRER EEANRE
Highest Lowest
B=E BIKE
’000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
TFh Vot ot BT
July 2018 —ZT—N\FtA 23,200 0.74 0.68 16,780
During the year 2018, the Company repurchased its own shares through R-Z—N\FEA KR RFE BB B FTEEE
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as follows: HEAERD - BATATR ¢
No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
FREE
B¥0.01 T2
Month of repurchase BeE A 0 LEREA BRER BfERE
Highest Lowest
B=E BIKE
000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
TFh Nokesd pridid BT
July 2017 —E—+F+A 22,085 1.16 1.11 25,297
Aug 2017 —ZT—+F)\A 32,545 1.18 0.97 34,966
Sep 2017 —T—+FNA 4,170 0.96 0.95 3,993
58,800

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

BT RS R R -

S 18 4 T B A PR W)
SR JUEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) On 15 December 2017 and 23 January 2018, arrangements were made
for a private placement to independent third parties of 600,000,000
shares and 472,000,000 shares of HK$0.443 and HK$0.69 each
on the two issuance dates respectively. They represent a discount
of approximately 20.00% and 19.77% to the closing market price of
the Company’s shares on 15 December 2017 and 23 January 2018

respectively.

The net proceeds were used for general working capital of the
Company. These new shares were issued under the general mandate
granted to the directors of the Company at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 28 September 2017 and rank pari passu with

other shares in issue in all respects.

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

29. MR ()

BicE

(v)

(%)

R_E—+tF+-_A+HEAEK=_ZT—\F—A
—+=H " RAWEETEBESRABLE =T
E H A A BE & 600,000,000 % K 472,000,000
AR EGRR &M 0.443 T R 0.697T ° HEIER
—E—+F+-_A+HEBER-_ZT—N\E—HA
Z+ =B RIEARARMD KT EITELD
20.00% &% 19.77% °

SERBEFERERRFN—REEER -
ZERBRDIBRBERARIR_F—LFNA
T NBARITHRRBFRE ERTARA
B REBEMBTRED BT ZEMBEND
ERNTHZEERSMA -

30. AJRARES

2019 2018
—E-hE —TN\&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Liability components BEMD

Current liabilities mBAE
— CB 3 (Notes i &ii) — AR ES 3 (B ek Kii) 278,238 =
278,238 =

Non-current liabilities JEREBEE

- CB 3 (Notes i & ii) — AR ES 3 (i Kii) 119,857 626,580
- CB 4 (Note iv) — Al AR ES 4 (FEEiv) 687,985 626,415
807,842 1,252,995
1,086,080 1,252,995

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 35 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30. AlIRES (&)
CB3 CB4 Total
ERESRS TBRRESF4 a5
Notes i & i Note iv
(P =Ei Rii) (BFfzEiv)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Y&E BT AT AT

Liability component at 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFNA—HZEESH 224,067 = 224,067
Add: Liability component on initial n: RUSHERE 2 BEDH

recognition 475,471 625,612 1,101,083
Add: Effective interest expense m: BEMEER 8 109,108 803 109,911
Reclassification of accrued coupon interest  EFT D MMt Z 8 EH M EF BRI

to other payables (46,848) - (46,848)
Early redemption during the year RENREER 30(iii) (91,846) = (91,846)
Converted into ordinary shares [REEEAV= TN 30 (43,372) = (43,372)

Liability component at 31 March 2018 RZF-NF=A=+—Hz

BEHHD 626,580 626,415 1,252,995
Add: Effective interest expense m:ERMEER 8 97,730 61,570 159,300
Reclassification of accrued coupon interest B DA E S EH M EMERR
to other payables (28,752) - (28,752)
Converted into ordinary shares BEnATER 30 (297,463) = (297,463)
Liability component at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=A=+—H
Z BB 398,095 687,985 1,086,080

AR IR A PR T
Sy T R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # %2 — =
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

)

The Group issued convertible bonds with 7% coupon rate at a total
principal value of HK$279,500,000 on 17 February 2017 and 14 March
2017 (the “CB 3”) to an independent third party. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 328,823,529 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
convertible bonds will be matured on 17 February 2020 and 14 March
2020 respectively. The Company shall have the right, as from the expiry
of 15 months following the date of issue of the convertible bond, to
partly or fully redeem the convertible bond early, by giving one month’s
prior notice in writing to the bondholder.

The Group further issued CB 3 at a total principal value of
HK$630,000,000 on 28 April 2017, 5 June 2017, 28 June 2017 and
30 June 2017 to independent third parties. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 741,176,471 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following
the date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly or fully redeem the
convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to
the bondholder.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$336,250,000 were converted into approximately
395,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount
of approximately HK$288,078,000 in convertible bond reserves was
transferred within equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$50,000,000 were converted into approximately
58,824,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount
of approximately HK$46,002,000 in convertible bond reserves was
transferred within equity.

All the new shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

30. AR ES

PG

0)

REBNR-—ZE—+F-_A+tAR-_T—+45F
= A+MBEITASMBEABY 279,500,000
TLT%EB Rz AR ESH ([T RES3])
FT—2BUE=T c JRREFBIRERSE

BETHSBASFANIBRESFHEAA (R
BRI RESF 2 B =@ A =/Em A HME
BERS ) AR BIR BB 0.85 T2 L K& A
328,823,529 kAR 17 ° AIMREF D RIN=F
—ZFE-_A++tAR-—T-ZTF=F+HAZ
B REAQREEEEEITAMKRESZ A
#15EAEmEERREFFEAZLE—EA
2 EAREEBAM I SCREUR P M B AR
&% o

AEEBR-_Z—+FMNA=F+/\B  —T—+t
FRARB —E—+tEXRNA-tTtNHE-Z
—tFARNA=THE—SEHITASBERBE
630,000,0007T 2 AI#ARE#H 3 THUE =7 °
ARBREFBIREASEARITH R 3F
REHEHFEE A (KRBT RERESZA
%= AZEmA HEEE) RIERERE
¥0.85 70 th eI 5 741,176,471 BRIR 5 ©
ARARBEREETRRESZBZ151EA
ERREARESFFEARE —EAZSELE
B AN T 2610 SR SR B B Al iR (E 5 -

RBEE-ZT—hAhF=ZA=+—BHLEE"
7N 4 # & 75 # 336,250,000 7T 2 A % & 5
EEETHRETSREE0SSTEERA
#9395,600,000 i & A% M & /& ¥50.01 7T 2 A&
AEIEBEK - Bt - I RBREFFEENEE
288,078,000 7T 2 & A A x A

REE—T—/\F=A=1+—HBILFE ' K&
%8 575 50,000,000 7T 2 AT &S B IR EE
BB GRS 0.85 TR A4 58,824,000
BREREEEE0OI TZARRLEER - B
It - AR E A R AU 46,002,000 T2 &
BB AR A

R EFE TR TA AR D ES 7 Eie &
BERNZERFHA -



30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &% —

£ OF B B e 35 B

F-NF=A=—AUFE

30. AIMIRES (#)

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (48)
The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2018 (ii) REHMBRARBERCEBEZE_Z—/\F=A
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as =+—BIFERBETZAHERESFET ¢
follows:
Date of issue: 28 April 28 April 5 June 5 June 28 June 30 June
7R 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
BtE ZEtF EtF  B-t§ Tt Z3-tf
mA-+\B WmA=tNB ~ARA ~NAREAR  AAZTNB ~A=TH
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT RETT BT BETT RETT BETT BETT
Cash received Bl 68,500 20,000 91,500 50,000 170,000 230,000 630,000
Fair values of derivative financial liabities (Note) ~ fi4 BB A4 E (1) 42539 12,420 69,932 38,214 65,716 19,775 348596
Fair values of convertible bonds issued BEATERES AAE 111,089 32420 161,432 88,214 235,716 349,775 978,596
Fair values of financial assets EREEIINE 4,309 1,268 8,567 4,682 12,99 21,538 53,350
Equity conversion component ErEndh (63,022) (18,401) (100,160) (64,732) (121,222) (198,938) (556,475)
Liabiity component on inital recognition RERSTSED
at issue date LEEShH 52,326 16,277 69,339 38,164 127,490 172,375 475,471
28 April 28 April 5 June 5 June 28 June 30 June
Maturity date 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
3%A e
mA-+\B WmA-tNB ~NAEA ~ARRE  A~AZTAB ~NA=TH
Note: Within the total of fair value of derivative financial liabilities above, MisE : R EMSTESMBEZ AR BEREF -

amount of approximately HK$252,021,000 has been recognised
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative
financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2017. The remaining amount of
approximately HK96,575,000 was recognised under the “Loss
arising from derivative financial liabilities” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018.

# A ¥ 252,021,000 L2 SEEREZE
T +F=A=t+—HBIEFEEZAEH
Bak[TEemBEEEZEE] Vg
R o #1751 06,575,000 THEDREE
—E-N\F=ZA=+—HBILEFEZEH
BaX ITEemAaBES 2 BB

7
s °©

S AR R AR A
=F— hiﬁiﬁﬁ
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(v)

On 16 January 2018 and 22 March 2018, the Company had early
redeemed the CB 3 with principal amount of HK$12,500,000
and HK$100,000,000 at redemption amount of approximately
HK$13,078,000 and HK$103,630,000, which held by two bonds
holders, Safe Arena Limited and Like Faith Global Investment
Limited respectively. The accrual interests up to redemption date
are approximately HK$10,986,000, which included accrued coupon
interest of HK$3,630,000 up to redemption date. The fair value of
the liability component was remeasured at the date of redemption
with the difference between the fair value of the liability component
and the redemption cost allocated to equity component, details are
set out on Note 24. As a result, an aggregated loss of approximately
HK$34,838,000 (i.e. loss on early redemption of liability component of
the convertible bonds and early redemption options of approximately
HK$11,282,000 and HK$23,556,000 respectively) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Upon the redemption of all

30. AR ES

PG

()

(%)

RZZE—NF—A+BE=FT—N\F=A
_+ B KABAERSEE( a%f’i.ﬁm )
#9785 ¥ 13,078,000 7T & 7% ¥ 108,630,000 JT 12
RERRAESEE A Safe Arena Limited &
Like Faith Global Investment Limited % B35 2
7K < %8 75 % 12,500,000 7T & 7 ¥ 100,000,000
T2 AR ERS - HEER A2 ET A2
fn)*%;‘%ﬁ%m 986,000 T * AR EHEZHEE A H
2 FEETZE B4 3,630,000 © A& w\z
"%{EMEEEMEEWEE maEHmhza
AEHEEEKAZ ZBESEZESDM0 (G
&R M 5E24) o B I+ %Y 7 5 34,838,000
T2 EEAE(RFER BB ES & ES
M2 BIE R T ERHE BB RIEE
11,282,000 7T & 78 # 23,556,000 7T ) 1A & 4t 18
WERPER - BATEAIRRESFWERE - A

convertible bonds, the remaining value of the conversion option reserve AR E 5 R 2 $A%E B 1 89,355,000 T # =
of approximately HK$89,355,000 was released to accumulated losses. RETEE -
The Group issued CB 4 with zero coupon rate at a total principal value ) ARER-F-N\FZA-TABETAEH
of HK$1,000,000,000 to the director of the Company on 26 March 2018 #8737 #51,000,000,000 7T 2 F 5 B 7] 2 R F
as the consideration for the acquisition of 100% equity interest of United FATALRAES  FRREBMR=F—t
Faith Group pursuant to the acquisition agreement dated 21 June 2017. FARA=T - ANBREHRREERE S
Details of such acquisition are set out in Company’s circular dated on BaONE - ZBBEENFBRRAAEA
28 February 2018. The convertible bonds will mature at five years after MAZE-N\FZAZ+/\BWBEK - ATAK
issuing of the convertible bond. The detail maturity dates of each batch EF R B TR FESRAFR - R
of issue are shown in following table at its principal amount or can be X Z B AR TRIZEA S RERIRKE
converted into 1,250,000,000 shares at any time between the date of FRAARETARRES 2 AEER B8
issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the bondholder’s fEIRER) LB R ERAER 08 T2 L RBIAR
option at rate of HK$0.8 per share. 1,250,000,000 15 -
The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2018 REFHBRARERZBE=F—/\F=A
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as ST BLEFRABRTZ AAREFET ;
follows:
26 March 2018
—E-N\F
=H=:7NH
HK$’000
BETT
Fair values of convertible bonds issued BRETIBRRERZARE 1,369,188
Equity conversion component IR N (743,576)
Liability component on initial recognition RETHBRYSERZBES D 625,612

at issue date

Maturity date Z|E A

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

31.

V)

The fair values of the above convertible bonds were valued by an
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL”"), as at issue date. CB 3 comprise a liability
component, an equity conversion component and early redemption
options whereas CB 4 comprise a liability component and equity
conversion component.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated by using
a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-convertible
bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were valued by using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion component, is included in the convertible
bond - equity conversion reserve under equity attributable to the owners
of the Company.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are

offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income

tax relates to the same fiscal authority.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax liabilities, after set

off certain deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities of the

same taxable entity, for financial reporting purposes:

30. AJIRES (&)

MieE : (&)

V)  BlAaRES AR ETRBILGERTE
BT R ERH A R AER AR ([ E8TT]) 7
FITAHEITRE - ARRES 2 RATBRERE
FIBHEEEND  BRBRTHRREED
iR mARiRES4 R ESD EaE

B]ERD

JEEMESEMD 2 AR ETHEREUT AT AR
RATBRRESZ TS EFE - ATRRES
ZARETER B PEEBEIETG
{8 - BE (EERER B 2 EE) IEtA
ARBHA NEGERIA T 2 AR ES —
IR

1. IRIEFRIA

A AIEORR BT 2 BN B IR IR A E
HHERHAEAEREEEMSHRER —M
BB R - RS EE MEEF
HABEEEEH -

RIERIES EREEERERNERBNE T
BEMIBEEEMERLEREAER - HTW
T

The Group
AEH
2019 2018
—E-hEF = )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIEAR 4,958 2,204

S8 T B A PR )
SR JUEER
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

31. BIEFBH AR @)

ATBAFEMBEFECHRAZ ETERT
HEAEBE) REEHER

years:

Fair value

change in

held for

trading

Accelerated  investments/

tax financial asset
depreciation at FVTPL Tax losses LAT Total

BE

BEERE/

RERRR

AAERE

i3 ZERERE
RENE WARERD HIEER T B ER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BT
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMA—H 781 11 (792) (1,675) (1,675)

Charged (credited) to profit ~ PEZEE (GTA)
or loss 402 782 (1,184) 3,853 3,863
Exchange realignment B 5 R - - - 26 26
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=R=+—H 1,183 793 (1,976) 2,204 2,204
Charged (credited) to profit ~ REzEK (GTA)

or loss (605) (660) 1,265 2,887 2,887
Exchange realignment ERTIEE LS - - - (133) (133)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NF=A—H 578 133 (711) 4,958 4,958

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$500,843,000 (2018:
HK$485,802,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$4,309,000 (2018: HK$11,976,000) of such
losses.
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately HK$496,534,000
(2018: HK$473,826,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of approximately HK$5,300,000 (2018: HK$3,588,000) that will
expire in the next five years. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$2,522,000 (2018:
HK$3,280,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$58,325,000
(2018: HK$67,636,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

31.

EXEFTEIAE @)

A AR 2R ) 2RO 2 AT TE R+ D Tk £
NARB) AT EHE 4 496,534,000 7T (=
T — )\ : ¥ 473,826,000 7T ) FER LA
BEBIEEE - RERAMIBEERIEGNR
R A F JE w2 BB 495 5,300,000 7T (= F
—\& : B¥3,588,0007T) ° HitbE51E AT &
PRHEAAEE o

RIEBR AERENTHREREZELD
752622000 ( = F — NG B
3,280,0007%,) ° FR AN A] B ERAG FE AR At i A1
LAB) AN ATH0R E R 2 58 - MO BE AT 408
TR EEEREMELEHIEEE °

BRECEMBHE BZTEENF—A—H
HB LA BIFT B A R ATER VR A B K 2 AR B8
U TEINF - WERE I IERER AT
M A Fl .z REtam F 478 8658,325,0007T (=
ZT— )\ : E#67,636,00070) fE(L 2 B =
BOREHIEELRE  RERTEEER
THZEERNEE RO RZEE RS
BEASTNARTRERA AT T8 B 2R B ) o
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32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes margin loans payable, convertible bonds and amounts
due to a related company/a director, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risk associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33. @I A

(@) =R TArER

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL REZFRRARBEEREEY
— Mandatorily measured at — BN IBRERIZ A E
FVTPL/held for trading REFE BHEER 35,638 63,035
— Available-for-sale financial assets —AHEESREE - 65,807
— Derivative financial instruments —TESMTAE 6,060 142,216
Financial assets at amortised REENAEZERMEE
cost/loan and receivables EFREWHIE(BRERE R
(including cash and cash equivalents) REEEY) 2,189,684 2,265,560
2,231,382 2,536,618
Financial liabilities A= =R
Financial liabilities measured at REERATTEC 2R AR
amortised cost 1,210,736 1,369,750

8 B4 R 7
Sy R
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale financial assets, other receivables and deposits,

loan and interest receivables, financial assets at FVTPL,
finance lease receivables, derivative financial instruments,
held for trading investments, cash and cash equivalents,
margin loans payable, trade and other payables, amounts
due to a related company, amount due to a director and
convertible bonds. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate finance lease receivables, margin
loan payable and loan and interest receivables.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate cash and cash
equivalents carried at prevailing market rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in HK$ and RMB base deposit
rate stipulated by the PRC arising from the Group’s
bank balances denominated in RMB.

The directors of the Company consider that the
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
pbalances is insignificant due to these balances are
either within short maturity period or the outstanding
balances are not significant.

£ OF B B e 3 B

33. €RTE (&)

AEEREMBEAZ ZHEE
BRAMERBECREREE—
fiEta - AREBRSRENEE
REZBETRAKEAEERA
REHEZ RITRABRMIARIRT
MIZME R R EBAAREFE
ZHRITREBEEZPEREZA
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC
with most transactions mainly settled in HK$ and
RMB. As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, the Group
holds financial assets at FVTPL (2018: available-for
sale financial assets) and bank deposits denominated
in AUD and USD. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the Group’s functional currency. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging the potential foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
denominated in currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of the relevant group entities at

R

J30

\|

/|

AEEEENFERTREER
% ERENRXHEENEER
AREEE -RN_T—-N\FR=
T-NF=A=+—8 r&E
FAWRITEETHEZ N B
RERANEREZCREE MR
TER(R_Z—N\F: A#td
ELRMEE) SMNER BN ERK
BERXZHHCHEREEREFENA
VIREENEEEE 2 EFHE
RPEEAE o ANSR B30 SR SN S R
R AM - BEESERINER
B Ko i 1A 4 B B 22 8 S A VB E S
R

EHIR - AEBARARS
TR EBMREEBIAINZ
K EHEZ BB EEZREED

i

;B X

\

the end of the reporting period are as follows: o
Assets
BE

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —F-)N\F
=A=t—R =A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
AUD JBIT 20,584 65,876
RVB AR 571 95
UsD ET 155 217
Others Hh 114 129
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at 31
March 2018 and 2019, no significant impacts on the
results of the Group would arise from the changes
in foreign currency rates, accordingly no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position as financial assets
at FVTPL (2018: available-for sale financial assets
and held for trading investments). The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. In addition, the
management has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the share price of the respective listed equity
securities had been increased/decreased by 20%
and all other variables were held constant, the post-
tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$5,952,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL.

33. €RTE (&)

HRAEER T \FER_F
—NWFE=A=1+—BHEENE
RNINEFTEEBEERAE &~
SENEETERINEEB) M T
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AEEFEBE FMRARFRE
& R A ERRR - M&F
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ERFHEEERE) BEES
B TRARER CREEAEER
ZERR - MIN BEEBERE
Fral/ MEEESRERER - W%
ERERLTERARR o

R|EMR - TXZHREDT
EREAE RN ERERE
EO

WEBEMBRAZFESMREL
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

If the share price of the listed equity securities
classified as held for trading investments had been
increased/decreased by 20% and all other variables
were held constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2018 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$10,527,000 as a result
of the changes in fair value of these listed investments.

If the share price of the listed equity securities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets had
been increased/decreased by 20% and all other
variables were held constant, the investment valuation
reserve as at 31 March 2018 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$13,161,000 as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from cash and
cash equivalents, loan and interest receivables, other
receivables, deposits and finance lease receivables. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent our Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, no impairment loss was recognised
as there was no objective evidence of impairment loss.

Upon the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
measures the loss allowance of loan and interest receivables
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL as there has been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of the loan and interest receivables because no loan and
interest receivables have been overdue. To measure the
ECL, the loan and interest receivables are estimated based
on individually significant customer with details disclosed
in Note 22. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Management considered other receivables and deposits
to be low credit risk and thus the impairment provision
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° Internal credit rating;

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from
the Group’s loan financing business, 9% (2018: 16%) of
the total gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 March
2019 was due from the Group’s largest customer and 38%
(2018: 61%) of the total gross loan and interest receivables
as at 31 March 2019 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s loan financing business.

In respect of the finance lease receivables arising from the
Group’s financial leasing business, 100% of the total gross
finance lease receivable as at 31 March 2018 (2019: nil) was
due from the Group’s largest customer and 100% of the
total gross finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2018
(2019: nil) was due from the Group’s five largest customers

for the Group’s financial leasing business.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan and interest receivables is in the PRC,
which accounted for 87% (2018: 55%) of loan and interest

receivables as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for finance lease receivables is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2019: nil) of finance lease

receivables as at 31 March 2018.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
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7 EES

TRt T H (@)

nBEEZEERRAR - TTHREF

SEFREERFREEETE 2 RIF

by international credit-rating agencies. SRR ERTT

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category
HHl

Description
iR

AR B A B AR TR BB
THER ;

Basis for recognising ECL

BRANCEERNERE

Performing

Rif

Doubtful

AJ &E

Default

fi
2

Write-off

i

For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
EHREREIRS B VIRREREEERBRAE REEM -
BzemEE(RE—MR)

BEEER

For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in

credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired

(refer to as Stage 2)

BYIRERE - FERBARENEEEEREZS
EEER)

BMEE (R

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
E-EIZEEMHeREENTARRRREREEE TN E
o ZEEHRAEREERE(RE=ER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

B RKAET AR ABRE I 5 R R R AR B W G5B
R

12-month ECL

2[R EMEEEE

Lifetime ECL — not credit

impaired

EEFERREERE -
EERE

Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

EEFERMEEER =
ERfE

Amount is written off

TR B A
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s
financial assets, as well as the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

W

W

k>
J30

==X
H
\

/

il

REERMR -

TRAMIILAKSEEREEZEFEE

EBURAEEZEERBRIRFENR

Gross Net
Internal 12-month or carrying Loss carrying
At 31 March 2019  credit rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
R=Z—NF 12B AR EEEFES
=A=+—H AR EFTAR HAHEEEE IREAE EiERHE BREFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
Loan and interest Performing 12-month ECL 2,151,463 - 2,151,463
receivables (not credit impaired and
assessed individually)
JEME TR HE Ruf 128 AR EE B R
(TEEEREK
ERIEFTA4)
Deposits and Performing 12-month ECL 8,377 - 8,377
other receivables (not credit impaired and
assessed individually)
rE MHEMEWIRR RiIF 128 ATEEAE EEE

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. T H )
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) 2REABEEBNREE(HE)

policies (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at W19 BEAREENERRZ AR
FVTPL as disclosed in Note 19 best represents their BEEEeREE RABERERTE
respective maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group ZEEEZHNEANEERR - N&E
holds no collateral over any of these balances. iR M2 E o o

8 B4 R 7
—e—nmem 200
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

33. @t T H (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

b) £REAREEBENRBEEM®E)

More than More than
On demand one yearbut  two years but Total
or within less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
REXS BR-F BBME KRR E
R—5R BARME BARLE RELE IREE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BRI BET BETR BETR
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-hE=A=1-H
Non-derivative financial FlteBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 REMERER 96,949 - - 96,949 96,949
Amounts due to a director BN —REEFE 20,496 - - 20,496 20,496
Amounts due to FETRIR A RIRAR
related companies 7,211 - - 7,211 7,211
Convertible bonds AHRES 200,744 132,925 1,000,000 1,423,669 1,086,080
415,400 132,925 1,000,000 1,548,325 1,210,736

S 4 R A B

SRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. T H )
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) 2REABEEBNREE(HE)

policies (Continued)

More than More than
On demand one year but two years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REXH Ba—F BBMF SiEEE
R—FRA {BORRE BARLE mERH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR
As at 31 March 2018 R=B-N\EZA=+-A
Non-derivative financial Firdz@aE
liabilities
Margin loans payable ERRELER 12,727 - - 12,727 12,357
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A EMER 101,853 = = 101,853 101,853
Amount dueto adirector  EN—ZEZEH 772 - - 772 772
Amounts due to related [ER &L A%
companies 1,773 = = 1,773 1,773
Convertible bonds A#RES 52,290 281,556 1,474,579 1,808,425 1,252,995
169,415 281,556 1,474,579 1,925,550 1,369,750

2 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
08 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. T H )
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHHBRRARAER AR
consolidated statement of financial position BitE
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREHEESRT A0 JHIEHRET
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of M ERNSWMERRZAREFE - I
each reporting period for recurring measurement, grouped BIEAEBSHBEREN AR BRI ER
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value ZRREDBEAEBE—HINEF=HFA -
is observable in accordance to the Group’s accounting
policy.

31 March 2019

“E-NEZA=1-H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E— A E=RA e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BRI ARTR

Financial assets at FVTPL RERERANERECZSRHEE
- Listed equity investments — FmARE 35,638 - 35,638

- Derivative financial assets in respect of early ~ — AR RRESFREEDHiE
redemption options of convertible bonds TS REE - 6,060 6,060
Total o 35,638 6,060 41,698

8 B4 R 7
—e—nmen 209
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE —F—hN#F=HA=+—HI F&E
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @RI @)
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHEBEMRARABRZAN
consolidated statement of financial position BEitE (&)

(Continued)

31 March 2018

~2-\F=A=1-A
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—53 B BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL RERREANEREZ SREE
Held for trading investments FEEERE
- Listed equity investments — FiRARE 63,035 S 63,035
Derivative financial instruments fTESBTA
- Derivative financial assets in respect of early  — BB AT ARESREERHE
redemption options of convertible bonds IS REE - 142,216 142,216
Available-for-sale financial assets TLELRER
Listed equity investments EMRARE 65,807 - 65,807
Total Gk 128,842 142,216 271,058

21 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
0 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. T HE @
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHHBERRNEABRZAA
consolidated statement of financial position EEp=AC)
(Continued)
There were no transfers between level of fair value hierarchy RAEEREBEFEE  EALBELRDIME
in current and prior years. A FEEE R o
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements on REBAE  —E—hER_ZE—\FE
financial instruments as at the date of inception, 31 March —A=1t—H8 EHsmIAZE=H
2019 and 2018 as set out below: RAREGTE2EREINWT :
Relationship of
Significant unobservable inputs
Valuation technique Key input unobservable inputs to fair value
TUEERAHER
BRI TERARE BEXATUBERAYE NhEZBE
Derivative financial assets Binominal option pricing Volatility levels, spot price Volatility levels of The higher the volatility rate,
model credit spreads and 39.7%-52.6% the higher the fair value
risk-free rate (2018: 83.9% t0 89.2%
and date of inception
48.2% t0 50.3%)
(TEERERE “EABEEERS REKT FEE FERE  REKT39.7%52.6% FBEHS AEES
RERRAE (Z2-N\F - 83.9%
£80.2% kiR
48.2%%50.3%)

8 B4 R 7
Sy A
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair value of derivative financial assets from early
redemption options in relation to issuance of convertible
bonds were determined by using binominal option pricing
model that consider the possible future prices for each
period in time as well as the respective probability.

The fair value measurement of the derivative financial
assets is positively correlated to the volatility level. As at
31 March 2019, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/increase in the expected volatility
by 10% (2018: 10%) would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss by approximately HK$1,890,000/
HK$1,450,000 respectively (2018: HK$390,580,000/

HK$330,482,000).

The fair value measurement of the derivative financial
liabilities is positively correlated to the volatility level. As at 31
March 2018, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the expected volatility by
10% would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss by

HK$360,723,000/HK$344,664,000 respectively.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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/R AN S BB 1B 360,723,000
TT/ 75 HE 344,664,000 T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF S 55 0 e
For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. ®m T H )
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHHBERRNERABRZAA
consolidated statement of financial position BEiftE (&
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on S EMEEETE=RAIARETZE
recurring basis: 2 HIER
Early
Call options redemption
Held for ~ from issuance options on
trading  of convertible convertible
investment bonds bonds Total
BITTRR gk
BFEE &5 BEEZRE
RE AEDE BEHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR AETR BRI ARTR

At 1 April 2017 N-E—+EmA—A 18,629 (252,021) 30,988 (200,404)
Issue of convertible bonds BT ES - 348,596 53,350 401,946
Early redemption of convertiole bonds 12 8 Al Rk (B2 = = (23,556} (23,556)
Conversion of convertible bonds BRI R ES = = (10,751) (10,751)
(Loss) gain arising on changes DhEREEE 2 (BE) e

of fair value (18629) (96,575) 90,185 05,019)

At31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018~ R=F-\F=A=1-H

;R=Z-\FHA-H - - 142,216 142,216

Conversion of convertible bonds BHRUARES = - (28,942) (28,942)
Loss arising on changes MEZYELER

of fair value = - (107,214) (107,214)

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H - - 6,060 6,060

8 4 R 7
—e—nmeg 210
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Since the level 3 of financial assets are not quoted in an
active market, binomial pricing model is used to estimate
the fair value. When estimating fair value using valuation
technique, observable inputs and data from the practical
market (e.g. share price volatility, credit spreads and risk
free rate, etc) are adopted. If the observable inputs in the
market cannot be obtained, the observable input data
that are calibrated as closely as possible to the market
observable data are used for estimating the fair value.

Meanwhile, the credit risk, volatility, correlation, etc of
the Group and the counterparty are estimated by the
management. The changing of these factors will affect the
estimated fair value of the financial instruments; therefore
there were uncertainty of accounting estimation on the level
3 of financial assets and liabilities.

The above loss arising from derivative financial assets
for the year ended 31 March 2019 of approximately
HK$107,214,000 (2018: gain: HK$90,185,000), and loss
arising from derivative financial liabilities for the year ended
31 March 2018 of approximately HK$96,575,000 (2019: nil)
are included in “Loss/gain arising from derivative financial
assets” and “Loss arising from derivative financial liabilities”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33.

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair values
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that carrying amounts of other non-current
financial assets and liabilities approximate to their fair value
as the impact of discounting of non-current assets is not
significant and the non-current liabilities are amortised at
market interest rates.

TRt TE @)
(C) Aﬁ? jﬁ&ﬂklﬂﬁmﬁﬁwm n J

HFT B (&

AABEERR  ANEHMEE
K& TSR MIAB SR AN ARk 2 B
fRESSREENA G REEEEM
B2 ARERE - ARREERE B
RIERBEEFEZFEL BN
MBEETIETISN R - EMIE
nBpTREERABREEREE AR
GEE=I

34. COMMITMENTS 34. I

(@) Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

REHREARE

RERR - AEEZHEVERED
AREHZ SR EMARARRIAN Z
RIEHEFRAE - HEEmHOT -

2019 2018

—E—-hF —ZE—)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Within one year R—FRA 13,529 14,955
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZHFN

(EEMEREEA) 21,656 18,419

35,185 33,374

S AR R AR A
=F— hiﬁil“:*ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZF

34. COMMITMENTS

The above lease commitments only include commitments
for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for
additional rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which
are to be generally determined by applying pre-determined
percentages to sales less the basic rentals of the respective
leases, as it is not possible to determine in advance the
amount of such additional rentals.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a
range of one to three years (31 March 2018: one to three
years) and rentals are fixed for a range of one to three years
(2018: one to three years).

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$276,000 (2018: HK$88,000). The
properties are expected to generate rental yields of 1.13%
(2018: 0.97%) on an ongoing basis. The property held has
committed tenant for 20 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:

34. EYEE)

A EAEERREANES AL - X
TeERNMNENES (FAEE)(E)
ZHESE - ZERIMHS - REREEZ
BAEEANLRSHEZEAEEM
BEE - R TR RES R EE A RARESME
BZER

SRR RER AR BN AEY
$EA0ES - EHEROAH =
(=B N\F=A=+—F: —E=
) RR—E=F2BHA(ZF N
% —F=F) BENET -

RERFTREUZ WS WAL BB
276,000 (= F — \ 4 : ¥ 88,000
TL) e MEBEANBEEE113%(=ZF
— N\ : 0.97%) 2 & Uz o P
AR 204 -

RIBEIR - KBS THERAKE
2 REBEEFREHFFTA

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within one year R—FA 177 189
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ERFR

(BEEMEBIELEA) 709 757

After five years RAFE 2,133 2,392

3,019 3,338

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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34. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34, HEHE @)
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RIREEAR - NEBH A TNE AN ALE -

following capital commitments:

31 March 31 March

2019 2018

—ZE-hE —E—)N\F

ZA=+—-B =A=+-—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

For properties under development BHZERB Y 4,921 7,284

8 B4 R 7
—e—nmem 21
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—ANF=H=+—HI F&F

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to its employees, the directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
contribute further to the development of the Group so as to
enhance value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was renewed, at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which might be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the shareholders in general meeting.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company. Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates would result in the
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

(Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option might be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the
board of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the
date of grant.

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the highest of the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and the nominal value.

35. LARRD BEMR 2N @)

R HBRRARRH BB 21 BAREIA
RSB A TTAE RER T 2 A -
B R AR IR AL AT BRI %A T 81 2 B
RAEMAERTE  ESSHUERARME
HAE  ARBRASERER L BHERT T
£

TEERARBZESEE  BTIRAR
AR E L B2 ETHE  ARRBEMHR
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FHEFERARBRMDZEE  KE5E
RE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE _—F—h#F=H=+—HIFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

Details of specific categories of options granted under the share
option scheme are as follows:

35. AR BRER 2 MR (&)

RIFRB AR IR 2 R e R A 2 FHIS AN T

Fair value Fair value Fair value
Vesting Exercise at grant date at grant date at grant date
Date of grant period  Exercise period price for consultants for employees for directors
BR EER EZ
RELAH it A8H RRLEH
RHAH GRY S 8 WARE M WARE
19 April 2013 Note 19 April 2013 to 18 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
“E-ZEmATAA WE  —E-ZERATARZE=E-\EEATNR B03757 BE0127 0127 BE0ATTL
26 April 2013 Note 26 April 2013 to 25 April 2018 HK$0.375 HKS$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
“T-=ERACTAR g ZE-CERACTAAECIENE 0375 012 BE012T BEOATTL
MA=tRA
3 February 2015 Note 3 February 2015 to 2 February 2020 HK$0.477 HK$0.19 HK$0.19 HK$0.19
“Z-1%-A=R fE  —F-RF-A=AR-F-FF-ACA 04T T 0197 BE0.I9T 0197
11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -
“I-RET-AT-A i ZE-RET-AT-BECT-%E 50,6387 BE027T - -
T—A1H
28 December 2015 Note 28 December 2015 to 27 December 2020 HK$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35
“Z-RF+-A-tAA WE  ZE-RET-A-t\BE-E-EF B%0.792 7 B%0.957 - A0357
TZAZttA
19 December 2016 Note 19 December 2016 to 18 November 2021 HK$0.738 HK$0.73 HK$0.73 -
“E-ETZAThA fE  ZE-AEtCRTABECECE 0738 BE073T B3 -
+-A+/A
19 Qctober 2017 Note 19 Qctober 2017 to 18 October 2022 HKS0.488 HKS0.22 - -
i S WE  ZE-tEtATAREZE-—#TATNR E%0.488 7 B0227 - -
Note: fI5E

In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were vested
at the date of grant.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RiEZE EIRO K

ZEBPRENR L AHRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HIF&

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 35. UK AER 7 NZHEE (8)

(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREEEE  EENEBEFNARQRE
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the BHEREBE S —NEF=A=+—HILEE
year ended 31 March 2019: S
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Transferred  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during during during  at 31 March
2018 year the year the year the year 2019
RZB-N% RZE-hE
mA-A ZR=t-H
Option type - fhydend HATE ERRL ERffE EREN EnEg WATE
Directors £z
19 April 2013 ZE-=EmATAA 8,700,000 - (8,700,000) - - -
3 February 2015 “2-1%-A=A 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTIA 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Employees k&
3 February 2015 “E-1%-A=R 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
19 December 2016 “Z-~EtZATAR 53,000,000 - - - - 53000000
Consultants B
26 April 2013 e S e N 3,500,000 - (1,000,000) (2,500,000) - -
3 February 2015 “5-1%-A=A 9,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - 7,000,000
11 November 2015 ZE-RET-AT-R 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZHIA 275,460,000 - - - - 215460000
19 December 2016 ZEETZATAR 467,000,000 - - - - 467,000,000
19 October 2017 ZZ—tETRTNA 100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000
993,160,000 - (11,700,000) 2,500,000) - 978,960,000
Exercisable at the end of the year EXAfEE 978,960,000
Weighted average exercise price METSTER HK$0.741 = HK$0.392 HK$0.375 = HK$0.715
BT BE030r  BE0ST AE0TI5T
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 35. UK AER 7 NZHEE (8)

(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TEREEES BEENBRREZE_Z—N
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the FZA=F+—RHILFEFE AN RERKRE
year ended 31 March 2018: EE -
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Transferred  OQutstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the duringthe  at 31 March
2017 year year year year 2018
RZB-t& RZB-N%
mA-A ZA=t-A
Option type EREsR BN EREH Rk EREN FRER WA
Directors EZ
19 April 2013 “Z-=#MATNA 41,825,000 - (33,125,000 - - 8,700,000
3 February 2015 “2-1%-A=H 25,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 20,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTNR 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Employees k&
26 April 2013 ZE-ZEMAZTAR 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - -
3 February 2015 “2-1%-A=H 5,000,000 - (3,500,000) - - 1,500,000
19 December 2016 “E-nFtZRTNA 53,000,000 - - - - 53,000,000
Consultants B
19 April 2013 “Z-=FMATNR 19,610,000 - (19,610,000 - - -
26 April 2013 “Z-ZEMAZT A 6,550,000 - (3,060,000) - - 3,500,000
3 February 2015 “E-1%-A=H 45,500,000 - (36,500,000) - - 9,000,000
11 November 2015 “2-nfr-At-H 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
28 December 2015 Z2-RFTZAZTAR 275,460,000 - - - - 275460000
19 December 2016 ZZ-NETZATNA 482,000,000 (15,000,000) - - 467,000,000
19 October 2017 ZE-tEHATAR - 536,000000 (436,000,000 - - 100,000,000
1,010,945,000 536,000,000  (558,785,000) - - 093,160,000
Exercisable at the end of the year EXAE 993,160,000
Welghted average exercise price METSER HK$0.704 HKS$0.488 HKS0.482 - - HK$0.711
BRI A%odeeT  AE0482T - - BRI
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35. AR BEMR Z N @)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

(Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.83
(2018: HK$0.60). The weight average closing price of the
securities immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised is HK$0.83 (2018: HK$0.56).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, options were granted on
19 October 2017. The estimated fair value of the options granted
on the grant date was approximately HK$118,400,000 and was
determined by using the Binomial Model. No share options were
granted during the year 31 March 2019.

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as follows:

RRAFEETE 2BRENS - RITER
HZ MEFERERER08IT(ZF—N
F:B%0.607T) - ERBRERETTE R HAT
Bfn 2 EFHRHELSEHE08T(=F
—/\%F : B¥0.567T)

REBE-_T—/\F=A=1t—HLFE &
BEER —ZE—tFTATABRY - R
HEHR T 2BREZ AT AABENSEYR
118,400,000 7L I LA “IEAE R B TFE - &
E_Z-NFZA=+-HALFERERD
LRI ARHE -

R-FEA R A EZEURINT ¢

Date of grant
REBH

11 November ~ 28 December 19 December 19 October
2015 2015 2016 2017
—E-0f —E-1fF ZE-NE —E—tE
+-A+-B +ZA=+NB  +ZA+hAH TA+hA
Share price at the grant date REH B2 R (E HK$0.610 HK$0.770 HK$0.730 HK$0.465
B¥0.6107T BE0.7707T B 0.7307T BH0.4657C
Exercise price per share BRTEE HK$0.638 HK$0.792 HK$0.738 HK$0.488
%0638 7T BH0.7927T %0738 7T #0488 1T
Expected volatility SEENEl 56.21% 56.18% 52.73% 68.45%
Expected life of options TR AR 1A 2.9 years 3 years 5 years 5 years
Expected dividend yield BHRER 0% 0% 0% 0%
Annual risk-free interest rate B E R & 1.15% 1.02% 1.66% 1.61%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

BB REARRRENEBEFEZE
SLRIRETE - AEEEREGHET - B
ZIEHRAMNE FEERE 2 TRIEEN -
TERVIETREEBRRRZZEMA R

Eﬁﬁko

S 0 T B A R )
SRR
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35.

30.

A=z e e Y

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options were
approximately HK$118,400,000 were to be recognised as share-
based payments expenses granted to consultants for the year
ended 31 March 2018 with a corresponding increase in equity.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the director’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer”) in Hong
Kong and its employees are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap
of HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500 per
month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During the year ended 31
March 2019, the total amount contributed by the Group to this
scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss was approximately HK$237,000 (2018: HK$188,000).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

35.

36
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o

PR EEREZAABEE LB
118,400,000 T KRB Z T —\NF=H
=T —RIEFEAERAR TR 2 ARG
RER ZNFFAE - W AEREE M

BREZAAETER -_EARE T AR
it AtEBBREARERERZZERER
DEREE 2 REMG - BREEERES T
IBRRZTIAZEMER -

RIRIER

REERB(EBRHERBSENREDA
HEAEBEERESTE - BB E
AHRBYSEATE L —BEBHIEARET
gl - BIFRESHE  AREREAZEA
Al ([MfBx]) kE BB ARBRESEOIRT
ZEBIRA Z5% MZst Bt - R=F
—mEXA—RA BREREESEZEHR
TR ERABEA2507T 0 A ZZF—UFN
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&
36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 36. ERIREF ()
The PRC =n
As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries in RIEFREEGERANNEN  REBEZHEA
the PRC are required to contribute to a state-managed retirement REREREEEARTFEZ — Tl AEEE
plan for all its employees at a certain percentage of the basic EEMHBERERRNTEEK - IREIR
salaries of its employees. The state-managed retirement plan is RIS AT BBEIURNETEI R A2 BRI
a defined contribution retirement plan and responsible for the RBESZNZzE2HEREEE - BERREIRE
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under RIRGETE - BREBFE 2HERIN - NREBNESE
the state-managed retirement plan, the Group has no further BERUER SN RS GRERE R EEE ST
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement F-HE2—ZT—NEF=A=+—HIFE -
benefits beyond the annual contributions. During the year ended ANEEMZTEVEL B AERESHHEZ
31 March 2019, the total amount contributed by the Group to this XA - A ABEE314,000T( —ZZ— N
scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or F : FB#391,0007T) ©
loss was approximately HK$314,000 (2018: HK$391,000).
37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. LENBAT]
(A) Disposal of its 100% equity interest in Dingyi (A) HEDingyi (North America)
(North America) Limited Limited 2 100% Bz #&
Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 30 March 2019, BREAMA_T-NF=ZA=1HZE
the Group agreed to dispose of 100% entire equity interests B AEERER—EEBIE=
in Dingyi (North America) Limited and its subsidiaries to an 77 i Dingyi (North America) Limited &
independent third party for a total cash consideration of HIB AR Z100% g - R RE
approximately HK$160,000. #5785 % 160,000 7T °
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HARKEIE, EERBEDT
HK$’000
BT
Equipment B 15
Other receivables, prepayments EMEWERR - AR FERGFTHIES
and deposits 52
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RIS 473
Other payables H MR (555)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFE (19)

S 4 R A B
SRR
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(A) Disposal of its 100% Equity interest in Dingyi
(North America) Limited (Continued)

37. LENB AT @)
(A) HEDingyi (North America)

Limited =2 100% A% & (&)

HK$’000
ST T
Cash consideration BENRE 160
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEAaEFE 15
Exchange fluctuation reserve BEE 54, Eh i 1 (19)
Non-controlling interest FEAE Il 1 A 2 (a7
Gain on disposal & e 143
Net cash outflow on disposal of HEMBARZIRE R FE
subsidiaries HK$’000
BT
Cash consideration HeRE 160
Less: Consideration receivables (Note) L FEUAR(E (B5E) (160)
Less: Bank balances and cash B BEHERIRITEREIRE
disposed of (473)
(473)

Note: The consideration was fully settled by cash in June 2019.

(B) Disposal of its 100% equity interest in Dingyi
Catering Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 30 March 2019,
the Group agreed to dispose of 100% entire equity interests
in Dingyi Catering Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries to an independent third party for a total cash
consideration of RMB10,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,000.)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 EZ —F—NWF=H=+—HIFE
37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. HEWREBEAE @)
(B) Disposal of its 100% Dingyi Catering (B) HiEDingyi Catering Investment
Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (Continued) (Shenzhen) Co. ’ Ltd.2100% %
FE (@)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HEREEGE 2 BEREED
HK$'000
BT
Other receivable oA e AR 3R 2,888
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRE S 378
Other payables Hoh FETER R (10,180)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEREFE (6,914)
HK$'000
BT
Cash consideration BENRE 12
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEFE 6,914
Exchange fluctuation reserve b W R BN (106)
Gain on disposal & WS 6,820
Net cash outflow on disposal HEMB AR CIRE ML F5E
of subsidiaries HK$’000
BT
Cash consideration RERE 12
Less: Consideration receivables (Note) B EURE (BT sE) (12)
Less: Bank balances and cash B BEHERNRITESRIIRS
disposed of (378)
(378)
Note: The consideration was fully settled by cash in June 2019. M RERZZE—NFAABHEUBREE
ﬁ °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B ZE —F—hN#F=HA=+—HI F&E
37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. LEHNBAR] (®)
(C) Disposal of its 100% equity interest in Dingyi (C) HERE(FE)BREBRATZ
(China) Investment Limited 100% Az
Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 30 March 2018, BEHHAE-_ZE—NF=A=+H2ZE
the Group agreed to dispose of 100% entire equity interests BEtpsE  AEBERE R —EZBYE =
in Dingyi (China) Investment Limited and its subsidiaries to HHERE(FRE)ZEFR A A REM
an independent third party for a total cash consideration BATZ100% ikt - BBRSREL R
of approximately RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to A R ¥ 250,000,000 7T (8 & 12 4978 ¥
approximately HK$312,250,000). Details are set out in the 812,250,0007T ) ° FFEH R AR E B
Company’s announcement on 30 March 2018. HE—_E-—NF=ZA=1+HZAM-
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HAREZSIEZEERBEDN
HK$’000
BT
Investment in associates REEERNE]ZIRE 300,103
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE 59
Prepayments SEANE S 1,757
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 301,919
HK$’000
BT
Total consideration BR(E 312,250
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (301,919)
Gain on disposal & W e 10,331
HK$’000
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiary H €M B AR 2R & mH /F5E ST oT
Total consideration HBRAE 312,250
Consideration receivables (Note) FEUARAE (BT 3E) (312,250)
Bank balances and cash RTER IR (59)
(59)
Note: The consideration was fully settled by cash in April 2018 fiteE : KEBR =T - N\FHABHNR S

s

Ho
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

38. BRABALTZRS

Such as disclosed in elsewhere of the consolidated financial M Aa OrET SRR E At th 5 PRI EE E 9] -
statement, the Group also had the following transactions REB IS BERER T ET IR S

with its related parties:

Details of the balances with related parties are as follows: EAFANE T 2 FERAREIBR AT ¢
2019 2018
Name of Company/director UNGIE=S - 8 —EB—hE —E—NE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Wincon Capital (Note i) an-wN{ L)) 7,211 1,773
Mr. Li e 20,496 772
27,707 2,545
Note i: The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital as the Mz« NRAREE#KEERNEARNR R Z B REK
immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company. EIERRAT] o
The emoluments of the directors and other members of key FANEERAEETZEE A CHA
management of the Group during the year were disclosed in KB 2 BN KT EE 10 P H 55 o
Note 10.

On 21 June 2017, the Group entered into the acquisition
agreement with Mr. Li, the controlling shareholder
and director of the Company, to acquire 100% equity
interest of United Faith Group for a consideration of

RZZE—tFA=Z+—RH AKEHHR
RATREBEBRRIRESEFRET W
i - AUEEE R E 100% B -
KB %% 1,000,000,0007T * EFEiB

HK$1,000,000,000, which was settled by the issuance ARARNKESER-F—N\F=A

of the zero coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate

ity WA PRI SIS raatl SN oL

principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 at an initial A7 1,000,000,000 7T 2 FR B AT

conversion price of HK$0.80 per share with maturity on the
5th anniversary of the issue date of the convertible bonds by
the Company to Mr. Li upon completion of the acquisition

on 26 March 2018.

BESFS VX EBESTREE
0.807T ' EIHAR AR A EETT AR E
S HHZERRATH -

S 18 4 T B A PR W)
SRR
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

39. KRR EA R K

2019 2018
—E-hE TN\
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PEHETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries FrihBt B A a2 807,245 807,245
Long term deposit REIFR 2,442 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EemEE = 18,230
809,687 825,475
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments HEab U BRFR - T FIE R
and deposits FHiEe 1,578 2,895
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHI B A RIBR X 1,876,514 1,790,963
Financial assets at fair value REZREA T ERE
through profit or loss ZEMEE 5,692 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTE 6,060 142,216
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEY 225 109,730
1,890,069 2,045,804
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FEAST BT B A B FIE 89,360 73,583
Amount due to a related company R NI E Q] 2,287 =
Amount due to a director N —REEFIR 11,160 =
Trade and other payables B 5 R HA R BRIK 41,089 64,681
Convertible bonds Al AR (E 5 278,238 =
422,134 138,264
Net current assets REEEFE 1,467,935 1,907,540
Total assets less current liabilities #EEERAEBAS 2,277,622 2,733,015
Capital and reserves BRAK #E
Share capital &N 73,281 69,440
Reserves (Note a) it (fizEa) 1,396,499 1,410,580
Total equity RS 1,469,780 1,480,020
Non-current liability FREBEE
Convertible bonds AT AR (E S 807,842 1,252,995
2,277,622 2,733,015

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39, AR A]EF&Hk T3 ()
COMPANY (Continued)

Note a: Reserves fizEa : B
Convertible
Capital Share  bonds - equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Note ) (Note i)
ThkES- R

RAEEE  SABR  HERE EABERE  BREGE  REEBE 0 ZiER g

(i) i)
Notes HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
it T MTr B It BT M T BT

At1 Aprl 2017 NE-tEMA-A 1,720,075 55,215 - 14 299,981 112,858 (1,925,140) 263,003
Loss for the year ERER = = = - - - (2r2,074) (272,074)
Issue of convertiole bonds /7R EA— 1B 30 &

- equity conversion ghis 30(v)

component - - - - - 1,300,051 - 1,300,061
Issue of shares upon REATRRERE 29l

conversion of convertible 2475343 301

bonds 78,03 = = = = (46,002 = 32,033
Early redemption of RERETERES 30ii)

convertile bonds - - - - - (9.950) - (9,950
Transfer upon redemption - R AR A 301i)

of convertiole bonds - - - - - (89,359) 89,395 =
Recogniton of equiy-setfed  BEC 5B bR %

sharc-based payments  BENRR AR

vested = = = = 118,400 - - 118,400
Effect of business KRB TRBAN

combinafions Lnder ph i

comman control - - (79,421) - - - - (795,421)
Sharerepurchasedand  ROBEREH 29(i)

cancelled (63,668) - - - - = = (63,608)
Share options exercised /7B MRIE 20) 380,000 = - - (118,655 - - 261,43
Issug of shares 014 290 580,740 - - - - - - 580,740
Transaction costs attoutable. /(3B BAA

o issue of shares (3,969 - - - - - = (3,969)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-H 2,691,303 55,215 (79,421) i 299,726 1,267,602 (2,107,859) 1,410,680

8 B4 R 7
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Note a: Reserves (Continued)

fizEa : (@)

39. RRBIFBEAMNT ()

Convertible
Capital Share  bonds - equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(notef]) (notefi)
ThRES-R
Rt GOV ARk GARORE  BRERE  EEARE Zithg g
(W) (W)
Notes HK$ 000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$000 HK§ 000
fifzt AETT BETT BT BB BETT BT AETT BETT
At 1 March 2018 WF-NE=R=1-A 2,691,303 55,215 (19,421) 14 299,726 1,267,602 (2,107,859 1410580
Loss for the year EpEE = = - - - - (28473) (284732)
Issu of shares upon RERTAREFRE 29
conversion ofconverte X
bonds 570,80 - - - - (288,078) - 282,725
Shares repurchased RiEERaHE 291i)
and cancelled (16,548) - - - - - - (16,548)
Sharcoptions exercised  TTRERE 2 6,547 - - - 073 - - 4474
Share opfions apsed BRMERE % - - - - (32 - K72, -
At 31 March 2019 R=F-1F=A=1-A 3,262,106 55,215 (19,421) 14 297,331 9604 (2,392,269 1,396,499
Notes: ME -

(i) As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the contributed surplus of
approximately HK$55,215,000 represents the difference between the
fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition and HK$48,989,000
represents the amount being transferred from share capital and share

premium as distributable reserve.

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to

shareholders.

(ii) Other reserve represents the differences amongst the investment cost
for acquisition of United Faith Group and elimination of the share capital

of the United Faith on 26 March 2018.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  40. &AA Rl = EM B AR 7 215
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-EBE-—hEL—_ZE—N\E=HF=+—H
2019 and 2018 are as follows: RRAFEEWMBRRZFBAT :

Place or country Issued and

of incorporation/ Class of paid up share

establishment/ shares capital/registered  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations held capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities

imaL/ AL/ BRRARRE/ KRR RER
A EX1AER FiRARH iftex  Rit#A RREELH IEEE

2019 018
ZE-0E )

Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& B Bk Ak

% % % %
SREE(MRAZAERAY  ThePRO - Registeed capialof NIA - 100 - 100 Ivestment adhisory
RMB50,000,000 and senvice and loan
paic-up capital of financing
RMB22,082,000
nE AMERARY TR BEERL
50,000,000 L R R A REFHE
AE%220820007
KN EERSERAA ThePRC - Registered and paic-up NA - 100 - 100 Restaurant operaton
capital of RMBA00,000
G HMRERRA TR fate
ARES000007T
(Golden Season Intemational Limted ~~~ The BVI Ordinary USS1 1 - 100 - 100 Securiies trading
and rading of wine
SRARARAT RERARES it 151 ZHEERERER
Ease Main Limited The BVI Ordinary US§1,000 1,000 - 100 = 100 Investment holding
and securites
trading
BERRAT RERERES il 1000%7 REARRERER

S 4 R A B
SR JUEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Continued)

40. RAREEMEB AR ZF1E @)

—T-NER=F-N\F=A=t—H
ARTEEHBARZHEOT : ()

Place or country Issued and
of incorporation/ Class of paid up share
establishment/ shares capital/registered  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations held capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ /BL/ BRARAREE/ KhARELfARER
LRER EXMRAER fsRERH iftgx kiR REZELA 1ERE
2019 2018
I )k
Directly  Indirectly Directly Inclrectly
Bk 3 B Bk
% % % %
Dingyi Financial Services Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 100 = 100 Loan financing
SRERRHRERRA 35 5t i e
Dingyi Bao Yin (Shenzhen) Financial The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Financial leasing and
Leasing Lig" RMBB00,000,000 and paid-up [oan financing
capttal of RMB85,700,000
SEER(MBEREARAD  %E & AR 800,000,000 TR RAREREHE
e RRA
AR 85,7000007
Zhanjiang Xintai Investment The PRC - RMB50,000,000 N/A - 100 - 100 Properties
Company Limted* development
EIEFRERRAT G ARH800000007 T VEEES
Dingyi (North America) Limited* The BV Orclnary USSt 1 - - 100 - Investment holding
DingyiNorth America) Limfted ABRBRHS 5] 11 RERR
Dingyi Catering Investment (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC - Registered capital of NA - - - 100 Investment holding
Co, Lid"* RMB50,000,000
SERRRE (M) RRAA L - B0 iR REAR
ARH500000007C
* The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The * NAIBBZENEZEMRE - ZZNFIZE

official names of these companies are in Chinese.

4 The subsidiaries were disposed during the year ended 31 March 2019.
Details are set out in note 37.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  40. AARIEEH B AT Z 5 (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes: B3E -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of ERINRAR AR EER AT EENREREENEE
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of the HMAEENBAT - NMATIESZR ATV EMHBA
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors RIERSEHERBANTITE -
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other MREREEIR » NATAEMEARER T B
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of BEMNKB AT - ZEMB AT AL RH
these subsidiaries operates in the PRC, Hong Kong and the BVI. - EARABERAEERE ZEWE
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as NAIHEZEBHANT
follows:
Number of subsidiaries
MELREE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2019 2018
FEHEK FELE B —E-hF —ZT-N\F
Inactive The BVI 3 6
EEER REBHEBRRES

The PRC 3 3

i

Hong Kong 2 2

BB
Investment holding The BVI 2 3
B ERERRES

Hong Kong 1 1

B

11 18

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities neither at
the end of both years nor at any time during both years.

1A R (8 6 R Bk MR M8 4 A AEAAT A e+ 5B
BARMERTERNERES -

S 4 R A B
SR JUEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #tZ —FE—HNF=H=+—HI FZF

41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, convertible bonds
with principal amounts of HK$336,250,000 were converted
into approximately 395,600,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of
HK$0.85 per share.

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2019, deferred cash
consideration for disposal of subsidiaries was included in
current assets of approximately HK$172,000.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2018, deferred cash
consideration for disposal of subsidiaries was included in
current assets of approximately HK$312,250,000.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

41, FTEFEBRERH

0)

(i)

REBE_T—NEF=ZA=+—HLF
& A& E A 336,250,000 70,2 A
B EH A EIREE0.85 T 2 B iR
B 82 %49 395,600,000 & & i% A B
¥0.01 T2 AR A E AR o

REBEE-_ZT—hAhF=A=+—HILF
E > HEWBARZEIERSREHA
TRENVEEX)E 172,000 7T °

REE-_ZET—N\E=A=+—HIE

i

E - HEMBARZETERERETIA
TRENE E 478 312,250,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZ& —E—hF=H=+—HI F&

41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, amount due to a
director and related party by the United Faith Group shall
be settled by certain held for trading investments in the
United Faith Group prior to completion of the Acquisition.
In the event that the amount of such assets is less than
amount due to a director and related party, the remaining
outstanding amount due to a director and related party of
approximately HK$2,232,000 and HK$185,194,000 was
unconditionally and irrevocably waived in full by Mr. Li.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, convertible bonds
with principal amounts of HK$50,000,000 were converted
into approximately 58,824,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of
HK$0.33 per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of United Faith Group for a
consideration of HK$1,000,000,000, which was settled by
the issuance of the zero coupon convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.80 upon completion of the
acquisition on 26 March 2018.

41. FEIERERF (@)

(V)

(vi)

REE-TE—NF=A=+—HLHF
- R TEA AT - BERBEENT—
FEZEREH 2 RENETRERES
ERFEEREY - WEBEEL®
BOREN T —RES BT 2K
18 - RIS A (R R S AT 3 B
WEEN T —BES RN 2 RIEL
712,232,000t M #185,194,0007T
ZERTRERFIE -

REBEE_ZT—N\EZA=+—HLF
[ N&EAB50,000,0007T 2 AT
&S B IRE e SR ESRREH0.337T
JEER 5458 824, 000A% B A I BB K
0.01 TZ AR RIERA ©

REBEE_T—N\F=ZA=+—ALF
& AEBE AR EE1,000,000,000
TREEEEEZIRE - TIUR=F
—\FE= A=+ BRE KR
BRIREAE0BOTLEITASBEE
1,000,000,000 7T 2 & B AJ AR &5 7
AEfT o

S5 8 4 10 4% A PR 4 )
SRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZF

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42, @& EZFFEL BENYE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRAEANEBREGZESAELBENE I
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B BREASIIERSEE - B EEHME
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for YREDRATREIKRA S RENE

= ==
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified HenBRNBABATDRENENALE

in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Accrued
coupon
interest
Amount due Derivative (included
torelated  Amount due Bank  Marginloans  Convertible financial in “trade and
companies  toadirector  borrowings payable bonds liabilities ~other payables”) Total
FitZe
EfgE JEfi-% Fft (FAEZR

il o L] ROER REEER  UERGS EGERR AMENER) it
HK$1000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$1000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$1000 HKS 000
AR B8 BETT Rt BET BETT ARt BETR

As at 31 March 2017 NE-tE=f=1-H 366,983 78261 57,986 178,285 224,067 22,021 6,667 1,164,290
Non-cash movements FhsE
Exchange diference EXEE 20872 (1,686) 2,986 - - - - 20
Fair value change on dervate BERRRE iR
fiancial iabiltes on call option BN ERY = - - - - 9,575 - 96,575
Convertle bonds issued a5 BBz HAlRE
consiceration for busness LIRS
combingtion = = = = 625,612 = = 625,612
Issuance of convertile bonds BmahEs - - - - - (348,596) - (348,5%)
Loss on ety redemption of REROTIRES
convertble bonds LBl - - - - 11,202 - - 11,282
Converted nto orcinary shares BERALAR - - - - 3372) - (10.299) (33,664)
Recassificaton of accrued coupon ENAREIEEE
interest to other payeble ERENES - - - - (46,848 - 16,848 -
Effect of busingss combinaion pak e (185,194) 223)) - - - - - (187,426)
Efectieinterestepensesincured~~~ 2EAEEAI S8 - - - - 109911 - = 109911
Finance cost incurred BEARENL - - 29 2673 - - - 2892
Financing cash infows BEBETA - - - 2851 475411 - - 478322
Fiancing cash outfons HEREMY (200,886 (13621) (61,191) (171,459 (103,128 - - (610,280)
Asat 31 March 2018 NF-N\E=f=1-H 1,773 mn - 12367 1262,9% - 43003 131,120

23 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &tZF —E—hFE=H=+—HIF&

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42, Bi& T HFTEL & B4 HER (@)

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

TRFMASERETHELIZABZE
8 BREASNMIFRES RERDELL
BERBREREXRKREREHIIAAH
RERERSRERPELTZRERE -

Accrued
coupon interest

Amount due (included in
to related Amount due Margin loans Convertible “trade and
companies to a director payable bonds other payables”) Total
L HEL
ErEE BR-% s (GATESR
AR - ET RESEX IaREs  AHERES) Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BBTT BT AT BRI ST
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-H 1,773 m 12,357 1,262,995 43223 1,311,120
Non-cash movements 2Ry
Fxchange difference EHEE (208) 39) - - - (243)
Converted into ordinary EERELAR
shares - - - (297,463) (18,160) (315,629)
Reclassifcation of accrued BN ABESZSTEM
coupon interest to other FEfIT
payables - - - (28,752) 28,752 -
Effective interest expense BELEEFISEY
incurred - - 166 159,300 - 159,466
Financing cash inflows HARETA 5,646 19,759 - - - 25,405
Financing cash outflows BEBSRN - - (12,523) - - (12,523)
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 7,11 2049% - 1,086,080 53815 1,167,602

S 4 R A B
SRR
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent change in fair value of the equity securities listed in

Hong Kong, Australia and the PRC

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there was a
significant decline in the fair value of the equity securities listed
in Hong Kong, Australia and the PRC. The total unrealised
loss arising from changes in fair value is approximately

HK$10,000,000 at report date.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

43.

WMEHRETA
RE®  ANRFE LD ZRABE AR E
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